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HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC
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Milestones in 2023

01) BiEHEE ZEEF%]

Active expansion and consolidation of our fundamentals

B BEFHRER
OUTSTANDING PROJECTS

\
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Shanghai Boteng Shangyanmin Development Center Project Guangzhou ISA Liwan International School Security Project

e R

58N RS I R E B BREKETEBERIER
Ganzhou Zhongyan Cigarette Factory Project Ji'an Jishui County Chinese Medicine Hospital Project

BT E)| |G B A e B ki 8 A B

Guangyuan Qingchuan County Qingzhudao Ecological Recreation R S = I ™ AR IE B
Community Project Tongxiang Wuzhen Scenic Area Urban Services Project
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Milestones in 2023
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Upgraded system and premium quality
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33.238 FAMZ iamE
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261 eI

379 mEED FTiE

QUALITY ENHANCING CAMPAIGNS
21 subsidiaries, 2()1 regular projects

52,151 customer visits under Jiarun Campaign

257,202 person-time free convenience services

332,300 sa.m. autumn and winter green replanting

3,278,500 sa.m. autumn and winter green pruning

Created 261 highlights

Setup 379 model windows

2023 LEADING COMPANY IN PROPERTY SERVICE SATISFACTION
Awarding Unit: CRIC Property Management

In 2023, the new upgrade of “Prosperity FUN" (324FFUN), a brand portfolio of
community culture (FUN Life, FUN Neighborhood, FUN Charity, FUN Sharing (£4/%
FUN, Z44BFUN, £4ZFUN, £4=FUN)), was released, which covered services for
the whole cycle, scenario and age of community culture and put forward the service
slogan of “Enjoy a Prosperity FUN Life” (24 Z£ 47 4 JEFUN). At the same time, an
IP image “Kaisa FUN" (f=/]\FUN) was launched, which brought a human touch to
community culture, established emotional connection of services, and created brand
characteristics.

The Group launched special campaigns of “Jiarun Campaign” (5B 77)) and “Meet
Prosperity for Best Customer Experience” (38 R34 » M = E1E) to improve its
customer services. The Group also launched a series of quality enhancing campaigns,
such as “Spring Breeze in Kaisa” (Z/E/K{E), “Construction with Sincerity” (&5 2&
f£), “Best Customer Experience” (i & 2l1=) and “Home with Kaisa” (% /085 1E).
We have maintained and beautified the landscaping of the community, renovated,
repaired and upgraded the equipment and facilities of the community, strengthened
the supervision and management of training, assessment and paid return visits for
various services of the community, and sorted out and optimized customer key contact
positions and corresponding service standards, so as to continuously improve the living
environment and experience.
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Milestones in 2023
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K Series Living constructs a 15-minute convenient urban living circle

— 7 ks
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In 2023, Kaisa Prosperity successively launched K
Series Living Exhibition Hall (/]N\K4E )& & /R £8) and
Neighborhood Living Circle (%5 & 4= /& &) to build a
comprehensive, one-stop and high-quality community
value-added service ecosystem. It provides rich and
convenient local services for the daily life of residents
in Kaisa's community, and creates a convenient ecology
with high-end quality of life, fast and convenient
consumption, meticulous and efficient services and
intelligent and innovative scenarios, so that residents
can enjoy diversified convenient services and a better
living environment without leaving home.

04) gRERE) EBWHES

Jiake Intelligent assists the construction of smart cities

ERIERRATAIRRPE - EE8RL AREF INERES  TINAME=7m5%  BORREIEEHRHEEEN
Bt BBRATE  BAICHBIRFEHERBEEAASRMERE - R - SRS ERAIFERRCEER - 20235 #
SRR EREERR O RE] BRRBIERSFEEIEETRTE  URREEVEEBEMERA - BT ERE - BH+
Jiake Intelligent has always adhered to the development vision of “customer first, quality first and innovation”. Focusing on deepening the third-
party market, it is committed to providing its cooperation partners with professional overall solutions, and has been included in the qualified
supplier database by 389 developers. At the same time, Jiake Intelligent is developing into an innovative technology enterprise. In 2023, it was
recognized as a national “Specialised and Sophisticated Enterprise”, and once again successfully passed the reexamination of “National High-tech
Enterprise”, enhancing the quality of property management, empowering urban development and assisting the construction of smart cities in China
with advanced technology.
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Milestones in 2023
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Social welfare, responsibilities and commitments
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18 cities across China

Held 46 charity activities under the “Firefly Plan”

with 2,474 participants

Since the launch of “Serving Beautiful China -
Firefly Plan” in 2012, Kaisa Prosperity has organized
approximately 1,000 public welfare activities in various
forms over the years, such as supporting education,
supporting the elderly, precise poverty alleviation and
environmental protection, spreading love to every corner
of the society.

The year 2023 was a year of glittering lights. Kaisa
Prosperity and One Foundation reached a public welfare
branding cooperation strategy to launch a Firefly Project
public welfare activity under the theme of “Prosperity
FUN - Yijiaren”, joining hands with property owners to
get closer to autism with small acts of kindness and
help families with members suffering from autism with
understanding and support; and participating in the One
Foundation’s “Warm Winter Campaign” which called for
donation of “love” supplies to send warmth and care to
children in need.
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Honors and Awards

HEJkE X 1T &£ E20235 8218 Awards received by Kaisa Prosperity in 2023

20235F4 A April 2023

2023 B R RB B R BE
2023 Top 100 Property Service Companies in China

FR 15 # 52k China Index Academy

20235E4H April 2023

N3P EREMERBELCE - S TREERE
2023 China Leading Property Management
Companies in terms of Characteristic Services

— Diversified Smart Businesses

FR 15 #F 2R China Index Academy

20235E4 R April 2023

2023+ ﬁi@i@#ﬁﬁ%lﬁ H

—REMERE c BRE (EF)

2023 China Five-star Property Service Project

— Chengdu Kaisa ® Regent Hong Kong (Residential)

FR 15 2R China Index Academy

20235E4 R April 2023

20237 Bl R 2 RERBIEE
—BNPRERE (BRiFaE)

2023 China Five-star Property Service Project
— Guangzhou Sinopec Building

(Commercial Office Complex)

FRI5#FZEEE China Index Academy

20235E4 8 April 2023

2023 B X RBESCHRRES B
2023 China Excellent Property Management
Companies in terms of ESG Development

FR15# 52k China Index Academy

SR RREARAT

20eRRAARRLESBEROARLY

&

20235£12F December 2023
N02R3EERXERYERGTHARLEE
2023 Leading Enterprise in the Property

Management Market in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-

Macao Greater Bay Area

FR#E®AZEB China Index Academy

20235E5H May 2023

2023 B EER FHARI2058
2023 Top 20 Listed Company of Property

o] Management Service
#£IkdrEsF (02168.HK )
& el RiMiHYE CRIC Property
EBRmmEMRMERAR
Shanghai CRIC Information Technology Co., Ltd.
20235E6 A June 2023
5o 023 AN EHTRBAREE
ot scd i 2023 Leading Companies of China in City Service
: [E2ISES 22-5vi] 3
D@ BTRYE Y
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI
202356 H June 2023
Sooe ABRENLEREHBED — R P RES
TSI 2023 Excellent Projects of China Property

Management — Shenzhen Central Plaza

RmE P
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI

@
...... usmaTooRe

LR ETRRAT

20235E9F September 2023

2023 B T RIS TOP20 1R
2023 Top 20 City Service Companies in China

RMHME RS
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI

202359 September 2023

20235 Bl MY ERT HHTOP10R %
2023 Top 10 Property Service Companies for Public
Facilities in China

"MRYE P
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI

2023598 September 2023

0BT ENERBEERERBER
—EHFUNRFE R

2023 China Property Management Enterprise in

terms of High-quality Service System — Prosperity
FUN

"mRYE P
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI

IR SR TR AT

20235E9F September 2023
0BEBFRNEEMERB N EREE
2023 Top 100 Property Service Companies in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area

,,,,,,,,,,,,,, | EWERWE RS
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI
20235E9F September 2023
W

2023 R AL AR 55 4 i R 303
R RIF AT IRAT)
@ @
=

=enn

20237 BIY) 3 ARG EE R dn k(B 3£ 3098
2023 Top 30 Property Service Brands in South China

"M YE P
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI

emnennrRALe

L RERE

2023598 September 2023

2023 B IR N B R
2023 Top 100 Property Management Companies in
China

RMHWE RS
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI

20234 (AP AL AR f AL SR 110058
IR RIFEAFRAT

o=zenn

202359 September 2023

20237 E R RBLERIEEE10058
2023 China Top 100 Property Service Enterprises in
Brand Value

"mmYE P
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI

20235£9F September 2023

20230 B ERBmERRERE
2023 Leading Company of China in Property Service
Satisfaction

"mRYE P
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (“Kaisa Prosperity” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the"Group”), | hereby present to you the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

In 2023, faced with the complicated and severe international environment and arduous
domestic reform, development and stability tasks, China’s economy withstood external
pressure and overcame internal difficulties, which continued to grow and develop
while overcoming challenges. While the world was entering a new period of reform
and transformation and the momentum of global economic growth was insufficient, the
annual economic aggregate of China exceeded RMB126 trillion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 5.2%. The economic development has rebounded and high-quality
development has been solidly promoted, demonstrating characteristics of “stability”,
“progress” and “positivity”.

In 2023, the overall management scale of the property management industry achieved
a steady growth. However, as affected by the upstream real estate industry, the overall
growth rate slowed down. Property management industry continued to adhere to the
main theme of high-quality development. On the one hand, property management
companies actively responded to the changes in the market environment and stopped
blindly pursuing scale. For loss-making projects, companies took the initiative to “give
up” and quit, so as to “stabilize” or even “reverse” cash flow. Meanwhile, they paid
more attention to quality expansion and carried out project expansion after selection
and with purposes, which laid the foundation for sustainable development. On the
other hand, under the background of industry development returning to the essence
of service, property management companies were deeply aware of the importance of
customer satisfaction to company development. Differentiated service quality based
on their own service ability has been becoming an important factor to evaluate their
development ability. They can only win the trust of property owners and residents by
improving their satisfaction with quality service.

In 2023, the central government issued a series of policies on aspects including urban
renewal, urban village reconstruction, indemnificatory housing, community pension
and child care, which provided greater market space and guidance for diversified
development path in the future of the property management industry, and also put
forward higher and more professional requirements for the service quality of the
property management industry.
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As one of the leading comprehensive urban service providers in China, Kaisa Prosperity
has always taken “Prosperity is underway” (E4F IEfEZ4E) as its guide and
implemented the service concept of “With all one’s heart and mind” (FH/0 /7 @ 200
%) to integrate the pursuit of quality into the entire process of property management,
and refined various aspects of property management in a more scientific and effective
manner by means of intelligent technology. To ensure the long-term stability of our
operations, we have established the quality approach of “sincerity, rigour, pragmatism
and efficiency as well as continuous improvement” (2223 - B2 & - 5
B  HEM#E) to continuously improve the quality of our services, which has
gained the trust and recognition of our customers, and the value of our brand has also
gradually gained recognition in the market.

Looking back on 2023, the challenges of the industry still existed. Kaisa Prosperity has
adhered to the principle of “striving for progress while maintaining stability, giving
priority to efficiency”, deepening its service, cultivating its business and conducting
in-depth operations, and maintaining a good momentum of steady and high-quality
development through the dual-wheel drive of “Organic growth + Independent
expansion”. The Group’s management scale has reached a new level with a GFA under
management of 102.3 million square meters and 720 projects under management,
establishing presence in 74 cities in 19 provinces.

Through unremitting efforts, the Group was awarded 2023 Top 100 Property
Management Companies in China, 2023 China Leading Property Management
Companies in terms of Characteristic Services, 2023 China Excellent Property
Management Companies in Terms of ESG Development, 2023 China Five-star Property
Service Project, 2023 Top 20 Listed Company of Property Management Service, 2023
Top 100 Property Service Companies in China, 2023 Leading Company of China in
Property Service Satisfaction, 2023 Leading Companies of China in City Service, 2023
Top 10 Property Service Companies for Public Facilities in China, 2023 Top 20 City
Service Companies in China, 2023 China Property Management Enterprise in terms
of High-quality Service System — Prosperity FUN, 2023 Excellent Projects of China
Property Management — Shenzhen Central Plaza, 2023 China Top 100 Property Service
Enterprises in Brand Value, 2023 Top 30 Property Service Brands in South China, 2023
Top 100 Property Service Companies in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area and 2023 Leading Enterprise in the Property Management Market in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

The Group has been well-prepared for the significant changes in the economic
environment and the new pattern of development of the property management
industry, and continued to practice the development vision of “Serving Beautiful China”
to embrace the opportunities and challenges of the future.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's revenue increased by approximately
RMB10.4 million to RMB1,794.3 million, representing an increase of approximately
0.6% as compared with that in 2022. In particular, revenue from property management
services amounted to RMB1,388.1 million; revenue from pre-delivery and consulting
services amounted to RMB155.8 million; revenue from community value-added services
amounted to RMB176.1 million; and revenue from smart solution services amounted to
RMB124.3 million.

The gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 increased by approximately 2.2%
to approximately RMB481.3 million from approximately RMBA471.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The consolidated net loss as of 31 December 2023 was approximately RMB437.6
million, compared with the consolidated net profit of approximately RMB106.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

ENRICHMENT OF SERVICE PORTFOLIOS AND MAINTENANCE OF
FOUNDATIONAL SERVICES

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to focus on the “Whole portfolio
and Whole cycle” (2288 -+ 2 FHf) high-quality service scenarios, and vertically
extended the depth of research on services and horizontally expanded the breadth of
services. As we had been constantly enriching our property portfolios, we released the
new culture and tourism property service portfolio and our property service portfolios
covered 9 property types, namely residential, commercial and office buildings,
recreational stadium, schools, high-end sales offices, hospitals, urban public buildings
and culture and tourism.

In 2023, the new upgrade of “Prosperity FUN" (324FFUN), a brand portfolio of
community culture (FUN Life, FUN Neighborhood, FUN Charity, FUN Sharing (£%)&
FUN ~ ZE28FUN - Z22FUN ~ £4=FUN)), was released, which covered services for
the whole cycle, scenario and age of community culture and put forward the service
slogan of “Enjoy a Prosperity FUN Life” (24 35474 JEFUN). At the same time, an
IP image “Kaisa FUN" (f=/J\FUN) was launched, which brought a human touch to
community culture, established emotional connection of services, and created brand

characteristics.
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In respect of the foundational service quality, the Group took “Strengthening Foundation,
Reducing Cost and Increasing Revenue” as the main operation principles to maintain
service quality while strictly control risks. The Group launched special campaigns of
“Jiarun Campaign” (f£E77%)) and “Meet Prosperity for Best Customer Experience”
(B RFEL + mEEE) to improve its customer services. The Group also launched
a series of quality enhancing campaigns, such as “Spring Breeze in Kaisa” (Z/EA
1), “Construction with Sincerity” (F5#%2&1=), “Best Customer Experience” (il 2.
Z|{£) and “Home with Kaisa” (Z/0>E51E). We have maintained and beautified the
landscaping of the community, renovated, repaired and upgraded the equipment and
facilities of the community, strengthened the supervision and management of training,
assessment and paid return visits for various services of the community, and sorted out
and optimized customer key contact positions and corresponding service standards, so
as to continuously improve the living environment and experience.

In respect of the community building and community cultural activities, through the
creation of service systems including the “Prosperity Convention”* (SE£F2 47), “Firefly
Program”* (& A #&51El), “Kaisa's Neighbors"* (£#F{£37) and “Starry Shining
Community”* (BI52AT £ %572 4L[&), Kaisa Prosperity actively carried out community
cultural activities, and advocated the concept of providing fun for the children and
security for the elderly and awakening the passion of the youth (4078 Fr4é - B
B8 - FFEBEEE) Kaisa Prosperity took practical actions to care for the elderly and
care about the growth of teenagers and build a community service system with Kaisa
Prosperity’s own distinctive features, thereby building a beautiful community with
harmonious neighborhood, and enhancing the happiness of property owners.

In respect of building a safe and secured community, Kaisa Prosperity launched the
special campaign of “Alarm ringing” (%% & "5). Through firefighting and emergency
drills, the campaign has effectively improved the professional skills and risk prevention
and handling ability of employees regarding fire safety and the fire safety awareness
and emergency avoidance ability of property owners and residents, which safeguarded
the safety of property owners and residents. Kaisa Prosperity has gradually equipped
some projects in Shenzhen, Guangzhou and Huizhou with AED first-aid facilities,
and assisted customers to complete multiple emergency rescues through conducting
operational trainings and emergency drills with employees as well as improving
contingent rescue plans.

In respect of energy conservation and consumption reduction, in 2023, Kaisa Prosperity
continued to implement the system and standards including the Guidelines on
Management and Control of Energy Saving ( REJRENAE B IR 1EFES]) ) and the
Assessment Method for Control of Energy Consumption (  BEFEE FE15 0 & #Z it
%) ). By adopting a multi-pronged approach underpinning “management + technology
+ policy”, the Group significantly reduced energy consumption throughout the year with
the utilization of energy-saving renovation technologies with regard to lighting, water
pumps, air conditioners and atomized micro-spray for greening irrigation etc. and the
daily refined green operation management.
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CONSTRUCTION OF 15-MINUTE CONVENIENT URBAN LIVING
CIRCLE AND CREATION OF A SECOND GROWTH CURVE

While foundational services are the fundamentals of property management enterprises,
value-added services shall be increments of property management enterprises. By
expanding and deepening value-added services, creating a “second growth curve”
became an inevitable choice for property management enterprises.

As community living space deeply bonds to social value and living value, how the
community living space delivers high-quality products and intimate services to all
aspects of property owners' life and how to realize upgrades in ancillary facilities and
operation of community living space so as to empower a happy life have always been
the focus of “K Series Living”* (/]N\KAEJE).

On 30 June 2023, Kaisa Prosperity opened its first “K Series Living Exhibition Hall"*
(/NKAEE B 7R EB) in Guangzhou, and subsequently opened in Shenzhen and Huizhou.
The establishment of K Series Living Exhibition Hall was an important milestone for
Kaisa Prosperity to actively explore the neighborhood living services in community.
As an offline experience touchpoint of K Series Living services, it integrated all-
in-one value-added services such as community group buying, seasonal choices,
housekeeping and maintenance, tourism and rehabilitation, decoration for the entire
house, partial renovation, house rental and sales, asset custody, etc., and realized the
comprehensive integration and upgrade of the product portfolios, covering community
life in all aspects. At the same time, K Series Living Exhibition Hall has also selected
the leading enterprises in the industry to build a one-stop service platform, providing
online selection and offline experience to bring better scenario experience and make
good services and products visible and accessible.

On 25 December 2023, Kaisa Prosperity officially released the “Neighborhood Living
Circle” (%5 22 4 J& ). The Neighborhood Living Circle is a 15-minute convenient urban
living circle with mutual assistance, co-construction and sharing among neighborhood,
which is based on the digital service platform of K Series Living and combined with
community residents and surrounding tenants. It provides rich and convenient local
services for the daily life of residents in Kaisa's community, and creates a convenient
ecology with high-end quality of life, fast and convenient consumption, meticulous and
efficient service and intelligent and innovative scenarios, so that residents can enjoy
diversified convenient services and a better living environment without leaving home.

Kaisa Prosperity’s Neighborhood Living Circle combines “K Series Living Mall” (/]N\K4E
&) (online) and K Series Living Exhibition Hall (offline) to build a comprehensive,
one-stop and high-quality community value-added service ecosystem. In the future, K
Series Living Exhibition Hall will continue to be expanding quickly to the communities
under the management of Kaisa Prosperity across the country. The Neighborhood Living
Circle will gradually promote the improvement and popularization of the neighborhood
platform, and contribute to serving the people’s basic livelihood, promoting
consumption upgrading, and smoothing the community economic microcirculation.
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CONTINUOUS EXTENSION IN SMART SOLUTION BUSINESS
LAYOUT AND UPGRADE AND EXPANSION OF PRODUCT
PORTFOLIO

Shenzhen Jiake Intelligent Technology Co. Ltd.* (“Jiake Intelligent”) (YT =R
B ReRHE A BR A R]), a smart solution service provider under the Group continued
to develop the intelligent third-party market, and has been included in the qualified
supplier database by 389 developers.

In January 2023, Jiake Intelligent won the bid for the intelligent works of the “Guiyang
Taiyanghu Talent Town"* of Helenbergh Group (SR 2 £ [ EB KB WAL/
$8 | %881 TF2), which promoted Jiake Intelligent's business expansion.

In June 2023, Jiake Intelligent cooperated with Greenland Group to jointly construct
the “Chengdu Dafeng Greenland Town"* (5 &BA & 4% #b35k) and “Greenland Suining
1958 Cultural and Creative Industrial Park”* (4% 30 2% 521958 3 & & £ &) projects.
The launch of such projects marked the beginning of cooperation between both parties,
and also provided strong support for strategic cooperation in the future.

In July 2023, Jiake Intelligent won the bid for the intelligent work projects of the
“Juncheng e British Manor” (354 e FgILUZ&K) and “Juncheng e Aesthetic
Longjiang” (554 e 23,1 ), which demonstrated the trust and affirmation in Jiake
Intelligent of customers once again.

In September 2023, Jiake Intelligent won the bid for the intelligent work projects of
the “Foshan Nanhai Convention and Exhibition Center” (#5111 Eg8 & & 1.0, which
further deepened the brand awareness and influence of Jiake Intelligent in the Bay
Area.

In October 2023, Jiake Intelligent and Greenland Group cooperated again to jointly
construct the Yibin Inter City Space, which demonstrated customers’ recognition of
Jiake Intelligent and enhanced the depth of cooperation.

In December 2023, Jiake Intelligent undertook a ten million-level equipment supply and
intelligent work project of “Guangdong Yida Garment Factory” (/& 5% 12 B &%) for
the first time, which laid a good foundation for Jiake Intelligent in the new business
portfolio of industrial buildings.

Jiake Intelligent has further upgraded and expanded its products. The unmanned car
park system and its related products helped to achieve cost reduction and efficiency
enhancement in property management. Its self-developed high-altitude parabolic
intelligent monitoring system has been widely installed in various projects and
successfully reduced highthrow incidents happened of these projects, which greatly
reduced the human and material resources input for supervision. The intelligent door
lock products were further developed and upgraded from their original versions with
more diversified functions and significantly higher safety coefficient. By adopting
advanced technologies such as cloud computing, Internet of Things, big data and
artificial intelligence as well as unattended equipment, it built a private cloud server
for cloud parking and undertook parking lot renovation business, so as to build a smart
cloud parking brand of Jiake Intelligent.
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In May 2023, Jiake Intelligent was recognized as a national “Specialised and
Sophisticated Enterprise”. In November 2023, Jiake Intelligent once again successfully
passed the re-examination of “National High-tech Enterprise” after strict evaluation,
which demonstrated the recognition of Jiake Intelligent’s innovative ability in science
and technology, and was of great significance to enhancing the brand image of Jiake
Intelligent.

Jiake Intelligent has always adhered to the development concepts of “Customer first,
Quality first and Brave to Innovate”, and will strive to develop as an overall solution
service provider for smart cities with agglomerating efforts.

OUTLOOK

As an industry that derives from the real estate development business, the property
management industry has the exclusive characteristics of “Rigid demand + Long cycle”
and is also the most frequent contact point for customers. Property management
almost penetrates into the entire aftersales market of the real estate industry which is
of great development potential.

The year of 2024 is the 75th anniversary of the founding of New China, which is a
crucial year for the “14th Five-Year” Plan. With the continuous implementation of the
national supportive policies for healthy development of the private economy and the
real estate industry, we are full of confidence in the bright future of China’s economy.

Kaisa Prosperity will continuously take quality services and quality expansion as
the anchor to promote the orderly, quality and steady expansion of its management
scale, continuously extend and broaden the value-added service chain to create a
second growth curve and continuously optimize its brand influence. We will continue
to consolidate our fundamentals and sharpen our increments, seize the opportunities
and face the difficulties, and spare no effort. Leveraging on the national policy of
“Replacement Action Plan” (JABIRFT1TE) 5 =), we will launch community
rejuvenation activities, actively conduct trial operation of community elderly care
business, and promote the elderly-friendly and intelligent transformation of homes to
meet the diversified consumption needs of homeowners, so as to achieve all-round
and high-quality development with continuous efforts.
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Chairman
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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Overall Performance

Total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 increased by approximately 0.6%
to approximately RMB1,794.3 million from approximately RMB1,783.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 increased by approximately 2.2%
to approximately RMB481.3 million from approximately RMB471.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately RMB437.6 million
as compared to a profit of approximately RMB106.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the total contracted GFA and the total GFA under
management amounted to approximately 132.1 million sg.m. and 102.3 million sg.m.
respectively, representing a decrease of approximately 0.5% and an increase of
approximately 8.2%, respectively, as compared to approximately 132.7 million sg.m.
and 94.5 million sq.m. as at 31 December 2022 respectively.
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Contracted GFA ('000 sq.m.)
GFA under management (‘000 sg.m.)
Number of managed property projects 720 673

As one of the leading comprehensive property management service providers in China,
the Group specializes in providing comprehensive urban integrated services to mid- to
high-end properties and focuses on the metropolitan cluster regions that are supported
by the national macro-strategic policies and have high economic development vitality.
The Group has been providing property management services for 24 years since 1999,
and since then has established a strong footprint in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau
Bay Area, Yangtze River Delta, Bohai Economic Rim, Western and Central China with
enormous potential for economic growth, covering a wide range of properties and
providing property owners and residents with tailored quality services through the one-
stop service platform to enhance their quality of life and satisfaction.

The Group’s four main business lines, namely, property management services, pre-
delivery and consulting services, community value-added services and smart solution
services, form an integrated service spectrum encompassing the upstream and
downstream segments and covering the entire value chain of property management.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

As of 31 December 2023, the Group's property management services covered 74 cities
across 19 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in China, with a total GFA
under management reaching 102.3 million sqg.m. and a total of 720 managed properties
projects, comprising 342 residential communities and 378 non-residential properties,
showing strong momentum in market expansion and diversified property portfolio. We
focused on public urban services and moved towards holistic management services.

The table below sets forth (i) the contracted GFA, (i) the GFA under management, and
(iii) the number of managed property projects, as of the dates indicated:

HZ12H318
As of 31 December
20234 202245
2023 2022
132,103 132,746
102,294 94,518
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Geographic Coverage
The map below illustrates the geographic coverage of our managed properties as of 31
December 2023:
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The table below sets forth the breakdowns of (i) the total GFA under
management, and (ii) the number of managed property projects by geographic
region as of the dates indicated:

M2A31R
As of 31 December
20235 225
2023 2022
rE kg

EEEE ER#E EEHE HAHE
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of

management projects management projects

(FFEAK) (FFEAXK)

(000 sg.m.) (000 sg.m.)
BEBRKER Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Bay Area 22,769 14 19,409 108
R=fAiE Yangtze River Delta 58,797 474 57,066 477
RYSEE Bohai Economic Rim 5937 38 4823 35
i Wester China 9,127 41 8,575 3
i Central China 5,664 26 4,645 20
FCE Total 102,294 720 94,518 673

AEEBEBAEERMABRBLE =T M5E
RS

TREJAEEW()BEETRERE 0 RiiE
EMFERE RN BB

The Group continued to expand its business through organic growth and
independent third party market development.

Set out below are the changes in (i) the total GFA under management and (ii) the
number of managed property projects as of the indicated date:

2023 20224
2023 2022
xE g
EEmE EEHA EFEER HEYAE
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of

management projects management projects

(TEHK) (FEHXK)

('000 sq.m.) ('000 sg.m.)
R1A18 As of 1 January 94,518 673 90,267 672
nELe New engagement 18,625 152 15,934 107
SIS Termination (10,849) (105) (11,683) (106)
®12A318 As of 31 December 102,294 720 94,518 673
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Types of Properties Managed

The Group managed a diversified portfolio of properties covering mid- to high-
end residential communities and non-residential properties, including commercial
properties, office buildings, hospitals, schools, banks, arenas and stadiums,
government buildings, public facilities and industrial parks and culture and tourism
facilities etc.. Starting from Guangxi, Yancheng, Yangzhou and Jiaxing, we expanded
the cooperation with government platforms and our urban services business.
Regarding the property management services, the Group adopted two revenue models
under which property management fees are charged on either a lump-sum basis or
commission basis. For lump-sum basis, the Group recorded all the fees as revenue
and all the expenses incurred in connection with providing the property management
services as cost of services. For commission basis, the Group essentially acted as the
agent of the property owners and therefore records only a pre-determined percentage
of the property management fees or cost of services as set out in the property
management service contracts as revenue. By adopting these two revenue models, the
Group managed to cover the expenses incurred in connection with providing property
management services.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of (i) the property management services
revenue, (ii) the total GFA under management, and (iii) the number of managed property
projects by type of properties for the years/as of the dates indicated:

BZNANALEE/MAYA

Year ended/as of 31 December

mE k3

Pl n
REREER TER%EA Wi HEREER HRHEA
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects management projects

( \ ( \
(RVB000)

i Residenialcommunites 6174% 106 60259 %9 i 615,365 a0 53 186 I
Hiznz Noresidential propertes 650 606 04 0% i BiL 6122% 49 313 ir4 39
gt Totl 133099 1000 10229 1000 n 128191 100 Y518 1000 13
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TREFINFIREE, BHRKZEEAZIHH) The table below sets forth the breakdown of (i) the property management services
(VeI ARG 2% - ()47 E 245 E ¢ (i) revenue, (ii) the total GFA under management, and (iii) the number of managed property
EEMEHREPMA - projects by revenue model for the years/as of the dates indicated:

BZNANALEE/MANA

Year ended/as of 31 December

mE E
Lk} m
EERETR EREA g RERETR HR%A
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects Revenue management projects
(FTAR) (ARTT)
(RMB000) % (W0sgm)
NEEERE Proerty management senices
(a84) {lmpsum basis 12835% %9 2% T4 10 110305 %6 T0816 I8 bl
VEE Praperty management seies
(Had) {commisson basi] 54563 41 B0 15 1l 5%,1% i B fi %
& Totel 1336 099 1000 1029 1000 T 128191 1000 Y58 1000 73

FRANBENRE - stBESHIEAMS - 2 Itis important to note that for projects on commission basis, the Group recorded only
REEM N Y EEIRRBE SR EMNTELETEY  apre-determined percentage, typically 10%, of the property management fees or cost
XBEERBYREKAAR S (—HA10%)EU of services as set out in the property management service contracts as revenue, while
o MERHIEEME - BMEAMEMEERE  all the property management fees are recorded as revenue under projects on lump-sum
Btk A - basis.




«

24

BEEWE D
Management Discussion and Analysis

TREIIHMIRPIRFE, B RRFAEEE
D MEE RGN  (1BEERZER
T R E Y2 E A4

EIKEERIFEBAER/A T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED  “F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2023

The table below sets forth the breakdowns of (i) the property management services
revenue, (i) the total GFA under management, and {iii) the number of managed property
projects by type of developers for the years/as of the dates indicated:

BENANALEE/MANA

Year ended/as of 31 December

BE N0k
s m
REREER TER%EA EEREAR HRHEA
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects management projects
) (FEAR) (AR®TT) (FTAx)
(RMB 000 (000sgm) f (RMB 00 % (00sym)
REAEERERENNE Propetes cevelop y
{he Kaia Group BIIR 35 nm i HiK S0 o %206 33 m
HEUE=TEREE Proerts developed by ndependent
ARt thicparty property developers LA 05 80403 50 il 698,304 50 832 817 o
a3t Total 1,338,099 1000 10029 100 T 1208191 1000 9518 1000 73

AEBERERIB LS Z T EMREEREY
XI5 o R2023F - RfFE— P MAEBILE
ZHMEREEMAEYENSIELL - KA
EER0BF12ANBERHBIE = ME
HENMAENYEREMBLHARNIEET
K+ 8220224712 A31 HA94I58.3 5 B F 5 K AN
#4936% : BHN BB B = HVEMEFHEE
FEBKEHEE202F12A3HIEFEHA
R¥984E ST IMEEE2023F12831H b
FENARE0LIBET - MEEXEMHBEN
A1 BZRESEAYEES  REEER
FORBER TEEOMEETERBEEHE
REBZRIT -

The Group continued to explore the properties developed by independent third-party
property developers. We further increased the proportion of cooperation on properties
developed by independent third-party property developers in 2023. As of 31 December
2023, the Group managed approximately 60.4 million sq.m. of GFA of properties
developed by independent third-party property developers, representing an increase of
approximately 3.6% from approximately 58.3 million sq.m. as of 31 December 2022. In
addition, the revenue of projects for properties developed by independent-third party
developers increased from approximately RMB698.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB810.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. With a reasonable layout of the property industry, the Group has been able to
undertake engagement of a wide range of property projects and provide competitive
services and products. The overall development of property management services of
the Group is promising.
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PRE-DELIVERY AND CONSULTING SERVICES

Leveraging the Group's property management expertise, the Group offered a wide
range of pre-delivery and consulting services to address the issues arising during each
major stage of a property development project. The Group deployed onsite staff to
provide security, cleaning, concierge and maintenance services to property developers
for property construction sites, pre-sale display units and property sales venues at the
early stages of a property development project. Meanwhile, it also provided consulting
services to other property management companies with respect to the management of
properties.

In 2023, the Group's revenue generated from providing pre-delivery and consulting
services amounted to approximately RMB155.8 million, which accounted for
approximately 8.7% of the total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023,
representing a decrease of approximately 35.1% as compared to approximately
RMB239.9 million in 2022. The decrease was primarily attributable to the impact of
national macro economic policies, market conditions in the real estate industry, where
the demand for services by real estate developers decreased.

Service Types
Pre-delivery Services
Pre-delivery services include the following categories:

e  Construction sites management services. The Group provided primarily
security services and to a lesser extent management services, such as cleaning
and maintenance services, for the construction sites of property development
projects. During the early stages of projects, the Group deployed security staff
to the construction sites to guard and maintain order at the sites and assigned
cleaning staff to the construction sites to keep them clean and maintain the
environment of the construction sites. The Group charged a fixed fee which is
payable by the property developers in installments over the course of the service
contracts; and

e  Display units and property sales venues management services. The Group
deployed personnel onsite to assist property developers with their property
marketing and selling activities. When the property developers market their
property development projects, they typically set up display units to showcase
their properties to potential buyers. Given the high foot traffic at the display units
and the needs to secure, manage and maintain the display units, the property
developers usually engage property management service providers to provide
these specialised services. The Group also assisted property developers with
responding to general enquiries at front desk and maintaining order at property
sales venues. The Group assigned dedicated and experienced teams to these
work sites to address customers’ needs and is paid for a fixed service fee in
return.
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Consulting Services

As an experienced property management company, the Group provided general daily
property management consulting services to other property management companies.
Consulting services are a cooperation model in which the Group assists other property
management companies in achieving growth and building their reputations by
implementing the Group’s management philosophy and successful operation models
in their businesses. Through providing consulting services, the Group is able to expand
into new markets and demonstrate its services quality and capabilities to wider
audiences.

COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

As an extension of its property management services, the Group's community value-
added services aim to address the life style and daily needs of the property owners and
residents, provide various products and services, improve customer satisfaction, and
provide a more healthy and convenient life style for the property owners and residents.

The Group provides diversified products and services to the property owners and
residents through K Series Living to meet their ever-changing daily needs. As a
community value-added service brand under the Group, K Series Living has been
adhering to the service concept of “Fast, High-quality, Value-added and Colorful life”
since its launch, covering various business types such as residential and commercial
buildings, office buildings, stadiums, and public facilities. After continuous optimization
and development, K Series Living currently can be mainly divided into four major
segments: (1) K-Space™ (/J\KZ= ), (2) K-Retail* (/)\KZ %), (3) K-Lease & Sale* (/]\K
FH%5), and (4) K-Decoration* (/]\K3E/E). K-Retail has been further refined and divided
into various sub-unit product series: (a) K-Commercial and Office Buildings™ (/\K#E &),
(b) K-Charging* (/]N\KFEE), (c) K-Choice Goods* (/]\K#&32), (d) K-Group Buying* (/]*K
8#%), (e) K-Delivery* (/]\KEIZR) and (f) K-Cultural Tourism* (/]\K 3 }i). By leveraging
the advantages of integrated fundamental property services, diversified supply chains
and distributed mini warehouse, we continued to improve our community value-added
service capabilities, provide high-quality products and convenient services, and build a
standardized and full-lifecycle service and product system.

On 30 June 2023, Kaisa Prosperity opened its first “K Series Living Exhibition Hall"*
(/KA R 7R £B) in Guangzhou, and subsequently opened in Shenzhen and Huizhou.
On 25 December 2023, Kaisa Prosperity officially released the “Neighborhood Living
Circle” (#F B 45 [E). Kaisa Prosperity’s Neighborhood Living Circle combines
K Series Living (online) and K Series Living Exhibition Hall (offline) to build a
comprehensive, one-stop and high-quality community value-added service ecosystem.

In 2023, the Group's revenue generated from community value-added services
amounted to approximately RMB176.1 million, representing an increase of 13.2%.
Such increase was primarily due to the growth in the Group’s car parking and space
leasing services, resulting from the increase in the number of the properties under
management that in turn led to a larger customer base.
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SMART SOLUTION SERVICES

Based on customer needs, Kaisa Prosperity reformed with innovative technology to
build a new way of human-space interaction integrating data and intelligence. Jiake
Intelligent, a subsidiary of the Group, is positioned as a “Comprehensive Solution
Service Provider for Smart Cities”, aiming to build high-quality multi-scenario solutions
with “5G+AloT platform + ecological equipment applications and services”
include services for diversified fields such as communities, hotels, commercial, parks,
education and medical. It has established a smart city service system integrating
comprehensive solution design, self-developed products, engineering construction
and operation and maintenance, empowering urban development with technology and
assisting the construction of smart cities in China.

, which

Jiake Intelligent obtained qualifications such as “Grade | Professional Contractor of
Electronic and Intelligent Engineering” (£ F B2%8 88/t T2 E A B SR, Grade
B Project Design of Building Intelligent System (B2 5R45 4E{L R RETHIB LR
and Grade Il Design, Installation and Maintenance of Security Prevention Systems (%
2T RGRET ~ ML -« 48 =#%), and also obtained a series of system
certifications such as the “IS09001 Quality Management System”, “IS050430 Building
Quality Management System”, “IS014001 Environmental Management System”,
“ISO Occupational Health and Safety System” and “GB/T50430-2017 Engineering
Construction Enterprise Quality Management System”.

In May 2023, Jiake Intelligent was recognized as a national “Specialised and
Sophisticated Enterprise”. In November 2023, Jiake Intelligent once again successfully
passed the reexamination of “National High-tech Enterprise” after strict evaluation,
which demonstrated the recognition of Jiake Intelligent’s innovative ability in science
and technology, and was of great significance to enhancing the brand image of Jiake
Intelligent.

In 2023, the Group's revenue generated from smart solution services amounted to
approximately RMB124.3 million, representing a decrease of 11.4%. Such decrease
was primarily due to the impact of national macro policies, market conditions in the
real estate industry, which caused the slowdown in construction progress.



&«

28 EIKEEFEBBR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED =3 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BEEWE D
Management Discussion and Analysis

B 3§ 168 FINANCIAL REVIEW

&= Revenue

REBIREZTENRG : ((WESIERT ; (i) The Group derived revenue from: (i) property management services; (i) pre-delivery
BT R EERIARFS ¢ (i)t [RIL{EARTS ¢ K(iv)E e and consulting services; (iii) community value-added services; and (iv) smart solution
FROR T IRFE o WESH2022FE 49 A R#51,783.9F  services. Revenue increased by approximately 0.6% from approximately RMB1,783.9
BT INZE2023FE 4 A RN 7943 F &0 - 120 million in 2022 to approximately RMB1,794.3 million in 2023.

#70.6% °

TRIFVARFIREEREE OIS EEL - The revenue contribution by each business segment for the years indicated is set forth
in the table below:

HZNANALEE
Year ended 31 December
ABE 20F 25
2023 2022 Changes

ARETT ARETT NS

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MEEERS Property management services 1,338,099 746 1,248,191 700 89,908 72
LAt A RS Pre-delivery and consulting services 155,811 87 239,941 134 (84,130) 35.1)
HRIEERS Community value-added services 176,085 98 155,495 8.7 20570 132
RN RS Smart solution services 124292 6.9 140,256 79 (15,964 (114)
5t Total 1,194,267 100.0 1,183,883 100.0 10,384 06

o MEBTBRMFWZE  FEBRIEAMETELL e Revenue from property management services, which primarily include property

B EmEMERALREREOK T S management fees for providing security, cleaning and gardening and property
ECBRRBEBEURMEREREER repair and maintenance services to residential communities, commercial
BHMEERE - B B202F5 A properties and public facilities, and such revenue increased by approximately
R¥1,24828 &0 I E2023F ) AR 7.2% from approximately RMB1,248.2 million in 2022 to approximately
13381B&EIT - IEIRAT.2% o FZIBMEE RMB1,338.1 million in 2023. Such increase was primarily attributable to the
RN BANTIERRASEEYE =M increase in the total GFA under management resulting from the business
EREBEWBTERERMEL TR - expansion through organic growth and independent third-party market

development.
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Revenue from pre-delivery and consulting services, which primarily include
fees for construction sites management, display units and property sales
venues management and consulting services, and the revenue decreased
by approximately 35.1% from approximately RMB239.9 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB155.8 million in 2023. Such decrease was primarily due to the
impact of national macro economic policies, market conditions in the real estate
industry, where the demand for services by property developers decreased.

Revenue from community value-added services, which primarily include fees
generated from the car parking, space leasing and value-added services through
both offline and online channels, increased by approximately 13.2% from
approximately RMB155.5 million in 2022 to approximately RMB176.1 million in
2023. Such increase was primarily due to the growth in the Group's car parking
and space leasing services, resulting from the increase in the number of the
properties under management that in turn led to a larger customer base.

Revenue from smart solution services, which primarily include fees for
installation and maintenance services, decreased by approximately 11.4% from
approximately RMB140.3 million in 2022 to approximately RMB124.3 million in
2023. Such decrease was primarily due to the impact of national macro policies,
market conditions in the real estate industry, which caused the slowdown in
construction project progress.

Direct Operating Expenses

The direct operating expenses of the Group primarily comprises staff costs,

subcontracting costs, construction costs, carpark leasing expenses, utility expenses,
office expenses, community cultural expenses, other taxes and others. The direct
operating expenses increased by approximately RMBO.1 million from approximately
RMB1,312.8 million in 2022 to approximately RMB1,312.9 million in 2023.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 2.2% from
approximately RMB471.1 million in 2022 to approximately RMB481.3 million in 2023.
The overall gross profit margin of the Group increased by approximately 0.4 percentage
points from approximately 26.4% in 2022 to approximately 26.8% in 2023. The table
below sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin by business segment
for the periods indicated:

BENANALEE
Year ended 31 December
AB%F 2225 i)
2023 2022 Changes
Y EF= E| ERE &5
Gross Profit Gross Profit

Gross Profit Margin  Gross Profit Margin Amount

ARETT ARBTT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MEERIRE Property management services 306,437 29 283,306 21 23131 82
— &g ~ Lump-sum basis 251874 1956 228170 191 23,704 104
. il — Commission basis 54,563 100.0 55,136 1000 (573) (1.0)
TR R BRI ERTS Pre-delivery and consulting services 38,243 245 57,617 2.0 (19,374) (336)
RIS (E R Community value-added services 99,860 56.7 103,549 66.6 (3,689) (3.6)
BRBRARRE Smart solution services 36,807 296 26,635 190 10,172 382
&t Total 481,347 268 407 264 10,240 22

1) YEEERHK
REBRYMEETERSTEF XK H202F
#49227% EF #9021 & 5 B = 2023 F 49
229% > EANEEARAEBEESZE
FEAEME - BB EEAEBNAA -

2) XTEIREEERE
AN 52 [ 1 3 A B K BB T R 7 SE A =R 1 2022
FHKI24.0% ETH40.51E B 75 B Z=20235F )
#)245% o EA T EEHRNFEREENX
A B B WA TR

1)  Property management services
Gross profit margin of the Group's property management services rose by
approximately 0.2 percentage points from approximately 22.7% in 2022 to
approximately 22.9% in 2023. The increase was primarily due to the Group
implemented various cost saving initiatives to proactively manage the Group's
costs.

2)  Pre-delivery and consulting services
Gross profit margin of the Group's pre-delivery and consulting services increased
by approximately 0.5 percentage points from approximately 24.0% in 2022 to
approximately 24.5% in 2023. The increase was mainly due to the proportion of
revenue contributed by projects with lower gross profit margin decreased during
the year.
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3)  Community value-added services
Gross profit margin of the Group’s community value-added services dropped
by approximately 9.9 percentage points from approximately 66.6% in 2022 to
approximately 56.7% in 2023. The decrease was primarily due to an increase in
revenue contributed by certain value-added services which have a lower gross
profit margins.

4)  Smart solution services
Gross profit margin of the Group’s smart solution services increased by
approximately 10.6 percentage points from approximately 19.0% in 2022 to
approximately 29.6% in 2023. The increase was primarily due to the proportion
of revenue contributed by smart solution services projects with higher gross
profit margins increased.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses of the Group increased by approximately 21.2% from
approximately RMB10.4 million in 2022 to approximately RMB12.6 million in 2023, The
increase was mainly due to the Group's increased market expansion efforts.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased by approximately 17.2% from
approximately RMB229.4 million in 2022 to approximately RMB189.9 million in 2023.
The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in staff costs as a results of
optimizing organizational structure to improve operational efficiency.

Provision for Loss Allowance on Financial Assets and Contract Assets
Provision for loss allowance on financial assets and contract assets of the Group
increased by approximately 459.2% from approximately RMB125.0 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB699.0 million in 2023 of which a provision of impairment for trade
receivables from related parties was amounted to approximately RMB608.0 million.
The increase in provision was primarily attributable to the continued weakness and
uncertainty of the real estate industry in the Mainland.

Change in Fair Value on Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss

Change in fair value on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group
increased by approximately RMB142.2 million from approximately RMB1.2 million in
2022 to approximately RMB143.4 million in 2023.

Income Tax Credit/(Expenses)
The Group recorded an income tax credit of approximately RMB144.3 million in 2023 as
compared to the income tax expenses of approximately RMB32.3 million in 2022.
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(Loss)/Profit for the Year

The Group's loss for the year amounted to approximately RMB437.6 million as
compared to a profit of approximately RMB106.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. The loss was mainly attributable to the continued weakness and
uncertainty of the real estate industry in the Mainland resulting in (i) a decline in the
revenue of the Group’s pre-delivery and consulting services; and (i) an increase in
the provision of impairment for trade receivables from related parties based on the
principle of prudence, as compared to the year ended 31 December 2022.

Liquidity, Capital Structure and Financial Resources

As of 31 December 2023, the Group's cash and bank balances were approximately
RMB286.8 million, represented an increase of approximately RMB39.5 million from
approximately RMB247.3 million as of 31 December 2022.

As of 31 December 2023, the net current assets of the Group was approximately
RMB35.3 million (31 December 2022: approximately RMB528.8 million). As of 31
December 2023, the Group's current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was
approximately 1.04 (31 December 2022: approximately 1.65).

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any other
loans or borrowings.

Treasury Policy

The Directors of the Company will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the
Group's cash and cash equivalents and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position
to ensure that the Group is well-positioned to capture future growth opportunities.

Goodwill

As of 31 December 2023, the Group recorded goodwill of approximately RMB160.8
million (31 December 2022: approximately RMB160.8 million), as a result of the
completion of the acquisitions of Jiaxing Dashu Property Management Company
Limited* (5% SE A4 ¥ % & 12 A R 2 7)), Jiangsu Hengyuan Property Management
Company Limited* ((IER1EIR B IR HR /A F]) in 2019, Ningbo Langtong
Property Management Company Limited* (225 B i ¥) % iR 75 A PR A A1) in 2020
and Zhejiang Ruiyuan Property Management Company Limited* (7T 3w R4 %
EIEAMRAE]) in 2021. According to the impairment assessment made by the
management of the Company, there was no indication of any impairment of goodwill
and hence no impairment provision is required for the year.

Right-of-Use Assets

As of 31 December 2023, the Group recorded right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB184.0 million (31 December 2022: approximately RMB200.6 million) which are
mainly used by the Group to provide property management services and sublease the
non-residential properties for rental income.
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Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management fees, pre-delivery and
consulting service fees and smart solution service fees. Trade receivables of the Group
decreased by approximately RMB435.2 million from approximately RMB828.8 million
as of 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB393.6 million as of 31 December 2023,
primarily due to the increase in the provision of impairment for trade receivables from
related parties based on the principle of prudence, as a result of continued weakness
and uncertainty in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Other receivables mainly consist of deposits, prepayments, payments on behalf of
staff and payments on behalf of residents under lump-sum basis. Other receivables
of the Group slightly increased by approximately RMB1.9 million from approximately
RMB73.3 million as of 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB75.2 million as of 31
December 2023.

Payments on behalf of Residents

The Group made payments on behalf of residents of the managed residential
communities under commission basis. Payments on behalf of residents represent
working capital expenditures paid by the Group on behalf of the residential
communities. The Group's payments on behalf of residents increased by approximately
RMB15.9 million from approximately RMB79.2 million as of 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB95.1 million as of 31 December 2023, primarily due to the increase
in the total GFA the Group managed under commission basis.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables mainly represent the obligations to pay suppliers for procurements in
the ordinary course of business. The balances of trade payables of the Group increased
by approximately RMB3.0 million from approximately RMB191.0 million as of 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB194.0 million as of 31 December 2023.

Other payables mainly consist of accrued staff costs, deposits received, consideration
payables for acquisition of subsidiaries and receipt on behalf of residents. The accrued
staff costs relate to the employees’ salary and related expenditure. The deposits
received primarily relate to the deposits the Group received from property owners in
the managed properties charged on a lump-sum basis for any additional repairs and
maintenance expense the Group might incur due to their property decoration. Receipt
on behalf of residents relates to the remaining property management fees the Group
received in the managed properties charged on a commission basis and the Group
managed such fees collectively in its headquarters. The balances of other payables of
the Group increased by approximately RMB22.5 million from approximately RMB342.9
million as of 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB365.4 million as of 31 December
2023.

Capital Commitments
As of 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material capital commitment (31
December 2022: nil).

Pledge of Assets
As of 31 December 2023, none of the assets of the Group were pledged (31 December
2022: nil).



34

EEERwR DT

Management Discussion and Analysis

EARBREEHE
HE20BFNANBIEFEARER T ETME
A EEEERE -

WM I B R AR A

MR2020F12A278 - EXREYEBTECRINDE
RN BB I HREI60% A% 4E - R EAA
R ¥107,706,0007C - T HBEEZNEWEE
B BIETEYE  HEWEREMIES
EWE - BREWERN2021E1 AEKE - T
B AERRRINNE AR - 8220236127331
BIEFE @ A LmREER A A2020F128
B2 AEMHEMEBEERIREEEZE(AIARARAR
HA2020F 12827 B R EFT AT B AEE
] e

BEEAELE

BEAEL RN EBERT B ERERER
TS ABERTE o 72022 2023512 A31H » A&
EENEEAGBLLERAT -

RAREE
R2023F12A318 - AEBWREEMXAE
&(20224F12 8318 : &) -

SNEREE

AEBFEERRPELEER  EBUAR
WEEETT o 202312 A31H - B METE
BEMRE MIRTERAENARBIIEET © %
LA BAEZINERR

AEE B pLEETINERR  BEERHERE
SMNERR - EIEERHNAREX I ERNTER
EBETINER S

EERBABR

R2023F12A318 - AEBEB12713%EE
(2022F12 318 : 12159512 8) ~ BEZFEM Y
ERNEEMRE Bt Al €BETEB
BEEE - NEETHRFHIER R SR
I & 1 06 B T DA L ER 1T 2 H B K F A
o BEARF I EETTREGIZERRRE
BRIBTEARE S RE - AEBAHESRME
Bl - LS HEE EREARENBITHESED
B E - MR SCE S R A E R o hAD
R201956 A18H » AR AR —TEE T2
([EBRRRESTEl)) - BT BIFFIBEN AR R]
HE§&2019F4 A 298 AR K o

R EE
BRAREPTREEIN  EEAREEH - &
EREMERRRER -

EIKEZFEBBR/AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Assets
The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of assets during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Acquisition of the equity interest in Zhejiang Ruiyuan

On 27 December 2020, Kaisa Property Management (Shenzhen) Company Limited*
(EREWEEE CFRIYI) AR A B acquired 60% equity interest in Zhejiang
Ruiyuan at total consideration of RMB107,706,000. Zhejiang Ruiyuan is principally
engaged in the business of property management including residential properties,
commercial properties and other non-residential properties. After the completion
of such acquisition in January 2021, Zhejiang Ruiyuan becomes a subsidiary of
the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2023, Zhejiang Ruiyuan has met
the relevant performance targets (namely, the Fifth Performance as defined in
the announcement of the Company dated 27 December 2020) as contained in the
announcement dated 27 December 2020.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing borrowings by total
equity at the end of the respective period. The gearing ratio of the Group was nil as of
31 December 2022 and 2023.

Contingent Liabilities
As of 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities (31
December 2022: nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group primarily conducts its business in the PRC and in Renminbi. As of 31
December 2023, cash and bank balances denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
United States Dollar was approximately RMB4.0 million, which are subject to foreign
exchange exposure.

The Group currently does not hedge its foreign exchange risk, but continuously
monitors its foreign exchange exposure. The management will consider hedging the
foreign exchange exposure where there is a material impact on the Group.

Employees and Benefits Policies

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had 12,713 employees (31 December 2022:
12,159 employees). Employee’s remuneration is determined based on the employege’s
performance, skills, knowledge, experience and market trends. The Group regularly
reviews compensation policies and programs, and will make necessary adjustments in
order to be in line with remuneration levels in the industry norm. In addition to basic
salaries, employees may be granted with discretionary bonus and cash awards based
on individual performance. The Group offers training to its employees so as to enable
them to acquire basic skills to perform their duties and to upgrade or improve their
production techniques. Furthermore, on 18 June 2019, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme
are set out in the circular of the Company dated 29 April 2019.

Subsequent events
Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant subsequent events up
to the date of this report.
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Liao Chuangiang (BE/&58), aged 44, is an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company, and the key decision maker of the Group. He is
responsible for the management and business development of the Group,
formulation and implementation of long-term strategies, including acquisition
plans and corporate finance as well as the overall strategic planning, corporate
management and business development of the Group. Mr. Liao joined the Group
in October 2013 and has served in various positions in the Group, including
our chairman, president, standing vice president and assistant to the general
manager of the Group and the vice general manager of Kaisa Leju Property
Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Liao has over 21 years of management experience
in property management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liao served in various
positions in different leading real estate companies in China from 2002 to
2013, including the property management manager of Wuhan Guotou Property
Development Co., Ltd., the manager of the property department of Shenzhen
Lask JV Property Management Co., Ltd., the assistant to general manager of
the property management department of Mingliu Investment Group (a property
developer) and the vice general manager of Wanda Commercial Properties Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Liao graduated from Hubei University, where he obtained a bachelor's
degree of administrative management in June 2002.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Liao had share options granted by the
controlling shareholder of the Company, Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code:
1638) (“Kaisa Holdings”, together with its subsidiaries “Kaisa Group”), to
subscribe for 4,129,708 shares of Kaisa Holdings, representing approximately
0.06% of the issued share capital of Kaisa Holdings. For details, please refer to
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executive's Interests in Securities”
under the section headed “Report of Directors” of this report. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Liao was not interested in any shares (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO).
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Mou Zhaohui (£ §8#&), aged 49, serves as an executive Director and the
president of the Company since 16 September 2022 and is responsible for
chairing the work of the Company. Ms. Mou joined Kaisa Group in February 2011
and successively served as the Shenzhen group vice president, the Guangzhou
regional executive vice president and president, the vice president and executive
vice president of the capital investment group, the executive vice president
of the new business group, the vice president of the group holdings and the
president of the cost management department of the group holdings. Before
joining the Kaisa Group, Ms. Mou worked at Excellence Group (524542 ) and
Huizhou Fangzhi Group (38175 E 5 E). Ms. Mou graduated from Wuhan
University of Science and Technology (EUERHE K 2 with a bachelor's degree
in engineering management in July 2018.

Li Haiming (Z=/18), aged 49, is an executive Director of the Company. He
is the Co-president of Kaisa Group. He has been appointed as the executive
Director of Kaisa Group with effect from 6 April 2020. Mr. Li joined Kaisa Group
in July 2002 and has served in various positions, including the chairman of
Changsha Branch and Shenzhen Branch of Kaisa Real Estate Group, the general
manager of Kaisa Golden Bay International Resorts Company* (4 Y 5 B 4%
[&/~ 7], the vice president of Kaisa Real Estate Group (Shenzhen Region) and
Kaisa Holdings, executive president of Kaisa Holdings, chief operating officer of
Kaisa Group, etc. Before Mr. Li joined Kaisa Group, he had worked for Shenzhen
General Institute of Architectural Design and Research Co., LTD* (FYIITH L
& =T#9285%), and Tsinghua Architectural Design Co., LTD* (52482 55355
BBR 72 &]). Mr. Li graduated from the Party School of the Guangdong Provincial
Committee of CPC (B A Z £#) in July 2000, majored in Enterprise
Management. He also specialized in architecture and graduated from Chongging
Architecture and Engineering College (25 & 52 5& T A2 22F5) in July 1994.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Li had share options granted by the controlling
shareholder of the Company, Kaisa Holdings, to subscribe for 7,226,990 shares of
Kaisa Holdings, representing approximately 0.10% of the issued share capital of
Kaisa Holdings. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li was not interested in any shares
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ).
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Kwok Hiu Kwan (ZBBEE¥), aged 32, serves as an executive Director of the
Company since 12 July 2023. Mr. Kwok is an executive Director and co-president
of Kaisa Group. Mr. Kwok has successively served as vice president of Shanghai
Urban Renewal Group, the chairman and the president of Shanghai Region of
Kaisa Group since May 2018. Mr. Kwok graduated from Essex University in the
United Kingdom with a bachelor's degree in finance management in July 2013
and obtained a master in sociology from University College London in the United
Kingdom in July 2014.

Zhao Jianhua (H# %), aged 53, is an executive Director of the Company,
joined the Group in August 2022. He was formerly a Commissar of Police Security
Department of Public Security Bureau of Yongzhou, Hunan (8 & K N T A
L R E R REEBELZ). Mr. Zhao graduated from The School of Finance and
Accounting of Hengyang (7% 1 87 U 5T 224%) majoring in finance in 1991.
He obtained a bachelor’s degree in politics and law from Central Party School of
the Communist Party of China (FF 5 Z#%) in 2000 and completed his studies in
legal affairs at The Open University of China (BIZR B AR E2) in 2022. Mr. Zhao
has the title of accountant granted by the Ministry of personnel and the Ministry
of finance of the People’s Republic of China.

Xie Binhong (38 8), aged 41, serves as an executive Director of the
Company since 25 August 2023. Mr. Xie is a senior vice president and chief
human resources officer of Kaisa Group. Mr. Xie joined the Kaisa Group in 2011
and served as the assistant president of Kaisa Commercial Group and the vice
president of Kaisa Real Estate Group (Shenzhen Region), etc. Before joining the
Kaisa Group, Mr. Xie worked for Financial Street Huizhou Real Estate Co., Ltd.
and other companies. Mr. Xie graduated from Northeast Normal University with a
Bachelor's degree in Human Resources Management in July 2006 and graduated
from Peking University, with a master’s degree in Business Administration in
June 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Liu Hongbai (217448), aged 51, has been the independent non-executive
Director since 12 November 2018 and is responsible for providing independent
advice on the operations and management of the Group. Mr. Liu is currently the
partner at Shenzhen Huatang Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership).
Having nearly 30 years of experience in auditing and financial management, Mr.
Liu was the partner at Shenzhen Hengda Certified Public Accountants (General
Partnership) from 2005 to July 2014 and the branch manager at Agricultural
Bank of China, Hengyang branch between 1993 and 2002. Mr. Liu graduated
from Jiaying University in the PRC, where he obtained a diploma degree of
finance in July 1993. He received a bachelor’s degree of finance from The Open
University of China in January 2017 and received a master's degree of Business
Administration from Guangxi University in December 2021. Mr. Liu obtained
the certificate of certified public account granted by Ministry of Finance of
the PRC (the “MOF"), the title of senior accountant granted by the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security, the certificate of certified public valuer
granted by the MOF and the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC, the qualification
of registered tax agent granted by the MOF and the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC, the qualification of certified internal auditor by The Institute of Internal
Auditors and the certificate of qualified board secretary issued by the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.
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Ma Xiumin (5 5 #8%), aged 51, has been the independent non-executive
Director since 12 November 2018 and is responsible for providing advice on
the operations and management of the Group. Ms. Ma is currently the partner
of Shenzhen Hengda Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership). Ms.
Ma has nearly 21 years of experience in tax administration, accounting and
internal control. She was an independent director of the board at Shenzhen
Clou Electronics Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002121), from 2007 to 2013. She was the independent director at
AQTO Electronics Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002587), from 2016 to 2018. Ms. Ma graduated from Central China
University of Technology in the PRC, where she obtained a diploma degree of
technical economics in July 1992. She also received a bachelor's degree of
economic management from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (formerly
known as Zhongnan University of Economics) in June 1997. Ms. Ma obtained the
qualification of intermediate accountant granted by the MOF, the certificate of
certified public accountant granted by the MOF and the certificate of qualified
independent director issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Chen Bin (BR3E), aged 51, has been the independent non-executive Director
since 12 November 2018 and is responsible for providing independent advice
on the operations and management of the Group. Mr. Chen is now the partner
at Shenzhen Ligin Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership). Mr. Chen
graduated from Lanzhou University of Arts and Science (formerly known as
Gansu United University) in the PRC, where he obtained a diploma degree of
financial accounting in July 1994. He also obtained the certificate of certified
public accountant granted by the MOF, the certificate of certified asset valuer
granted by the MOF and the certificate of qualified independent director issued
by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen has nearly 29 years of experience
in financial auditing and economic consulting. He was the deputy director of
Shenzhen Zhongxiang Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership) from
2008 to 2012, the independent non-executive director at First Dragoncom Agro-
strategy Holdings Ltd from 2005 to 2006 and the financial controller at Shenzhen
Qiaozhi Industrial Co., Ltd. from 1998 to 2008.



40

&

EEREREEAE

Directors and Senior Management

SREEE

LW - 25 R-E-RET_AEZ
EAREEEGY  TEAEASEEER
TIREE REREETRE - #tE
R-FB——F - AMAEKREEE - &R
EEEAEEETPIRGEALIZEIE -
BlAREIE - ESBETF RS BLE -
IZEEEAXEENEPRE WX
BEEBNEMER - EIMAERERE
Al - SR A RRIEREAEERR] -
ARYNBHMERBERRA]  AARKEE
B HARER_TTNFLARRNER
TERABIATRER  BBBLS
YESRINTELERASZHERNET
REIEEXERES

BE 9m R-TE__FHARER
TramyE  T2REAKERERR
HEIBERE - BEER_TENFLA
MAKREE - FEREEREZERIEM
IR - BRI AR - BRPTARAEIE R
BEBE - BEER _TENFAAEE
RARYREEEREXBHEE ISR LE
fiz o

EIKEERIFEBAER/A T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED  “F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2023

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Xie Junpeng (& M5), aged 42, was appointed as the vice president of
the Group in December 2016 and is primarily responsible for quality control,
engineering management, safety and intelligent engineering of the Group. Mr.
Xie joined the Kaisa Group in February 2011 and served as the assistant to
general manager and deputy general manager of the Kaisa Group’s customer
services department, the general manager of the customer services department
of the real estate group, and was primarily responsible for overseeing the
customer services, property management business and other businesses of the
Kaisa Group. Prior to joining the Kaisa Group, Mr. Xie served in Shenxin Western
Real Estate Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Vanke Property Management Services Company
and LVGEM Management Group. Mr. Xie graduated from Guangdong University
of Technology, where he obtained a bachelor’s degree of civil engineering in
July 2004, and obtained the professional qualification as an assistant engineer
awarded by Shenzhen Bao'an District Personnel Bureau.

Xiao Yukang (F&#4BE), aged 39, was appointed as assistant president of the
Group in July 2022 and is primarily responsible for investment and development
and community value-added services of the Group. Mr. Xiao joined the Group in
July 2008 and served as manager, deputy general manager, general manager
of investment and development department and acting assistant president of
the Group. Mr. Xiao graduated from Shenzhen University, where he obtained a
bachelor's degree of Chinese language and literature in June 2008.




3R ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BB NG RZE__FLAREZR
TS FEEEAEELESET -
TREE « WM& - BEER =T —X
FZAMARERE  EREEDESEZR
S ERIMPIAKIERIE - BERTIRE
BIPEFIBLIRENIE  FEABYEEIE
BERAFESK AEERBEAHDE -
EMAREBR - BoEERBIEEAYE
ERYELR  BEAWELEDELRMT
BIMERIE - BEANR_ZENFHASE
REAEMSBARSLBEZELE  FUSSE L2
i+ WESHEKEMYEERMER -

BOREE - 4258 RZEZ—FHAMAR
SEVEZEASERYEDE 2858
NEERBMEEERETE @2 +H0 =
T—EFNAMAEKRESR @ LEBEE
FINERESREBTHERL S RED
IR EBEIRE e EE2I8
TEEPEIARAEIE - TEINASEIRELE A -
ZEBE%NREFE - Canasia Financial Inc.
LERSEEBE AR BXITRN TR
FHAEENNMERERSHIFRERR
B RBELEBLEN TR ZZZt
FNAEHRBEFT ZEAELRMMEGEFTHE
2 DSBEITSM - @L LT ACFARRE
SRDITEIFFE A o

BEE 925 R_ZE_—FtANMAR
SEVEZEASERYEDE  TE285
AEBLZEEREEIIE - EMAREE
Bl BAEAEBAERPEAARERE
B RYNTRALZRKBLR BEEELSE
HEEEFNBRRAR RN TREZ RIE
BRAGER - RAEER—NANLAF LA
BERRZEESBRAMEITESE - B

BEfy -

£k FEBMAMRAT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 41

EERSREEAE

Directors and Senior Management

Cai Lifa (£2372 %), aged 41, was appointed as assistant president in July 2022
and is primarily responsible for quality control, engineering management, and
landscaping of the Group. Mr. Cai joined the Group in March 2016 and served
as assistant to the general manager of the Group's safety department, assistant
to the general manager of the Group's quality and engineering management
department, chairman of Jiaxing Dashu Property Management Company Limited
and acting assistant president of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cai
served successively as deputy general manager in Evergrande Property Services
Group Limited Jinan Company and Shandong Company. Mr. Cai graduated
from China West Normal University, where he obtained a bachelor’s degree of
economics in July 2006, and obtained the professional qualification as a certified
property manager.

Zeng Shuzhuang (Z3#), aged 42, joined the Group and was appointed as
assistant president of the Group in April 2021 and is primarily responsible for the
financial and legal affairs management matters of the Group. Ms. Zeng joined
the Kaisa Group in June 2017 and served as a senior business manager and
deputy business director of the financial management department of Shenzhen
Kaisa Finance Group and deputy general manager of planning and finance
department of financial management group. Prior to joining the Kaisa Group,
Ms. Zeng worked in KPMG, Canasia Financial Inc. and at the headquarters
of Vanke Group. Ms. Zeng obtained a bachelor of commerce from McMaster
University, Canada in July 2005 and a master’s degree in finance and investment
from University of Nottingham, UK in April 2007. Ms. Zeng has a professional
qualification of Chartered Financial Analyst.

Kou Yuguang (78 E &), aged 52, joined the Group and was appointed as
assistant president of the Group in July 2021 and is primarily responsible for
safety supervision and management. Prior to joining the Kaisa Group, Mr. Kou
worked in Hunan People’s Police School, Guangming Branch of Public Security
Bureau of Shenzhen Municipality and Blue Beret Safety Education Development
Shenzhen Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Security Service Co., Ltd. Mr. Kou obtained a
bachelor's degree in wushu sanda from Wuhan Institute of Sport in July 1995.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Objectives of the Report

This environmental, social and governance report (“this report” or the “ESG
Report”) published by Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
("Kaisa Prosperity”, the “Group” or “We") aims to provide the performance of
the Group in respect of the environmental, social and governance aspects in a
transparent and open manner over the past year, so that the stakeholders can
understand the progress and direction of the sustainable development of the
Group.

Basis of Preparation

This report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” contained in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The disclosure in this
report complies with the disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain”
as set out in the Guide. The content of this report is prepared in accordance
with a set of systematic procedures, including identifying major stakeholders,
identifying and ranking material ESG issues, determining the scope of this report,
collecting relevant materials and data, reviewing those data, and preparing this
report based on such information.

Reporting Scope

This report covers the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the
“Reporting Period” or the “Year”), which is in conformity with the Group's
financial year.

This report focuses on the Group’s management approach, performance and
measures in respect of the environmental, social and governance aspects. The
general disclosures in this report cover the Group’s existing business lines and
focus mainly on the four business lines of property management services, pre-
delivery and consulting services, community value-added services and smart
solution services. In particular, the environmental KPls and social KPIs disclosed
in this report cover 49 selected core functional units™2 Unless otherwise stated,
RMB is used in the report as its legal currency.

0BFEERNEEZOEBEIMEERRY « AT RERRS « 28R TT 2R IRES LA KAt R 12 E IR ) HO M B A BB 49/ © 1B 49z O kg
NAEE MATERIR SBIRARERIET it S BREMBRAETIEENREBERN -

BEENZOBEATMAESROLR  R=AME - Eh - EEERY KR -

There are 49 functional units engaging in the Group's core businesses (i.e. property management services, pre-delivery and consulting services, smart solutions services

and community value-added services) in 2023. These 49 core functional units have been included in the reporting scope of environmental KPIs and social KPIs.

The selected core functional units located in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area, Yangtze River Delta, Central China, West China and Bohai Economic

Rim.
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Reporting Principles

This report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” contained in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The disclosure in this
report complies with the disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain” as
set out in the Guide.

This report was reviewed, confirmed and approved by the Board on 22 March
2024. During the process of preparation of this report, we summarized the
Group’s performance in corporate and social responsibilities based on the
principles of “Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency”. The statistical
methods and key performance indicators (KPIs) in this report are as consistent
as possible with those of last year. Any changes have been explained and
comparative data have been provided where appropriate. Please refer to the
table below for our understanding and response to such reporting principles.

EMHErE

Reporting Principles

Implications

Our Responses

AEBRRRE  HEREAMEHRESE &FF
NEREERTEN  RAERSTHRE T H5

ZRE  HEREARENBE  ARBER
AR - RAAEREEEEITEE NS
RAR R o B PIMKIR B2 2548 R U7 /OB B I
REZMREA - BAIL TESGHEBNEZRX -
BETUASHEL  YERSTHRE THENSR

fa e

B2 EEESETEURE HgRERSE
HeHREELEMFNEELEEY
B - BITAEELESR -

Materiality If the directors decided that the threshold at

which ESG issues become sufficiently important
to investors and other stakeholders, they should
be reported by the issuer.

The Group believes ESG report exerts significant
influence on the investors and stakeholders. We disclosed
the process of identifying important environmental,
social and governance factors in the report, including
the identification of stakeholders, and the use of the
importance matrix for the assessment of material issues.
Based on the communication mechanism with stakeholders
and the principle of materiality, we identified important
ESG-related factors, focused on them, and disclosed
corresponding measures in the report.
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B8

Implications

BMem e

Our Responses

21t BRENEEERATNUFENANE AWREAS(HFABRREREREE - WEER
B AHERMENENGEREAMAYN HFRENEREAMANERE - 7% - REHGT
Ak BEAFEIAMSE X EIANSEULKMERNERAZNIE I
ARPEAHERERNRRETHRE - RNEZBERLTELBERELL -

Quantitative The disclosure of KPIs needs to be measurable.  This report made quantitative disclosure about KPIs, and
The data of standards, methods and assumption  reported the standards, methods, assumption or data for
or calculation on emissions and energy calculation of emissions and energy consumption, as well
consumption, as well as standards for reporting  as the conversion factors used and, where appropriate,
emissions and energy consumption as well as  effective comparisons.
conversion factors used shall be disclosed.

1 RBE  HgRESHREERENMR I ABELABBEPINAIFEZE RS EMEHKEE
20 BRFEG TMREMTEREE MAEmERkE -

BRESHAE )RR - BRI EWE o

Balance The ESG report should provide an unbiased  This report discussed our achievements and challenges in
picture of the issuer's performance. The sustainability.
report should avoid selections, omissions, or
presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence a decision or judgment by the report
reader.

— BITARCERA-—BHNBRESRA L © AREFSEA-HOFE - WHBEER202245

Consistency

FERIR

RE HERERBBRERIERESR
BULLER o
The issuer should use consistent methodologies
to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data
over time.

PR ET BT AL IRV S E AR -

This report adopted, as much as practicable, consistent
methodologies and provided explanation on any differences
in the methods of computation adopted in 2022.

Source of Information

ARERREEREAKEEAXM - 5
BB AREE EFERHARERND
MEEN  ERUENTBERE -

The information disclosed in this report is derived from the Group's formal
documents, statistics or public information. The Board is responsible for the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its contents.

B AR

REFREDRIAP IR ESRR - A AR
B 48 U (www.jzywy.com) K 7 58 Bk 32 BT 49 b
(www.hkexnews.hk) & B Al & o & AR
B WXRABEMEE - AR XA

£ o

Way of Publication

This report is prepared in both Chinese and English and is available for viewing
and downloading from the Company’s website (www.jzywy.com) and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk). In the event of
discrepancies between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version
shall prevail.
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BOARD STATEMENT

On behalf of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (“Kaisa Prosperity”, the “Group”,
“we" or “us”), | am pleased to publish the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report for 2023 and announce the progress and achievements of the Group in
sustainable development. As a leading urban integrated service operator in
China,, we have always taken “Prosperity is underway” (3£4F1E7E 35 4 ) as its
guide and implemented the service concept of full dedication and devotion to
integrate the pursuit of quality into the entire process of property management,
and refined various aspects of property management in a more scientific and
effective manner by means of intelligent technology. To ensure the long-term
stability of our operations, we have established the quality approach of “sincerity,
rigour, pragmatism and efficiency as well as continuous improvement” (£ &2
W BRERRE  BE =K - FHEME) to continuously improve the quality
of our services, which has gained the trust and recognition of our customers, and
the value of our brand has also gradually gained recognition in the market.

Looking back in 2023, while the industry continued to face challenges, Kaisa
Prosperity adhered to the principle of achieving progress amidst stability and
giving priority to efficiency, deepened its serve, strengthened its business
presence and through the dual-wheel drive of “organic growth + independent
expansion, and maintained a good trend of steady and high-quality development.
The Group’s management scale reached a new level. The area under
management increased to 102.3 million sq.m and the number of projects under
management increased to 720, with a cumulative presence in 74 cities in 19
provinces.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to focus on the “Whole
portfolio and Whole cycle” (& %8 - 2 EEf) high-quality service scenarios,
and vertically conducted in-depth research on the scope of its services and
horizontally extended their boundaries. As we had been constantly enriching our
property portfolios, we released the new culture and tourism property service
portfolio and our property service portfolios covered 9 property types, namely
residential, commercial and office buildings, recreational stadium, schools, high-
end sales offices, hospitals, urban public buildings and culture and tourism.

In 2023, our new brand portfolio of community culture comprising FUN Life
(£4/EFUN), FUN Neighborhood (£4#5FUN), FUN Charity (4%42FUN) and FUN
Sharing (42 FUN) was released, which covered service contents for the whole
cycle, scenario and age of community culture and put forward the service slogan
of “Enjoy a Prosperity FUN Life” (2= 347 4=JEFUN). At the same time, an IP
image “Kaisa FUN"(/J\FUN) was launched, which brought a human touch to
community culture, established emotional connection of services, and created
brand characteristics.

On 30 June 2023, Kaisa Prosperity opened its first “K Series Living Exhibition
Hall” (/\KAEJE B 7~ 8) in Guangzhou. The establishment of K Series Living
Exhibition Hall was an important milestone for Kaisa Prosperity to actively
explore the neighborhood living services in community. As an offline experience
touchpoint of K Series Living services, it integrated all-in-one value-added
services such as community group buying, seasonal choices, housekeeping
and maintenance, tourism and rehabilitation, decoration for the entire house,
partial renovation, house rental and sales, house custody, etc., and realized
the comprehensive integration and upgrade of the product portfolios, covering
community life in all aspects. At the same time, K Series Living Exhibition Hall
has also selected the leading enterprises in the industry to build a one-stop
service platform, providing online selection and offline experience to bring better
scenario experience and make good services and products visible and accessible.

On 25 December 2023, Kaisa Prosperity officially released the “Neighborhood
Living Circle” (#5224 )% ). The Neighborhood Living Circle is a 15-minute
convenient urban living circle with mutual assistance, co-construction and
sharing among neighborhood, which is based on the digital service platform of K
Series Living and combined with community residents and surrounding tenants.
It provides rich and convenient local services for the daily life of residents in
Kaisa's community, and creates a convenient ecology with high-end quality
of life, fast and convenient consumption, meticulous and efficient service and
intelligent and innovative scenarios, so that residents can enjoy diversified
convenient services and a better living environment without leaving home.
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Shenzhen Jiake Intelligent Technology Co. Ltd.* (“Jiake Intelligent”) (&I
ERIEEERIF AR 2 1), a smart solution service provider under the Group,
continued to develop the intelligent third-party market. It has been included in
the qualified supplier database by 389 real estate developers. The unmanned
car park system and its related products helped to achieve cost reduction and
efficiency enhancement in property management. Its self-developed high-
altitude parabolic intelligent monitoring system has been widely installed in
various projects and successfully reduced highthrow incidents happened of
these projects, which greatly reduced the human and material resources input
for supervision. The intelligent door lock products were further developed
and upgraded from their original versions with more diversified functions and
significantly higher safety coefficient. By adopting advanced technologies such
as cloud computing, Internet of Things, big data and artificial intelligence as well
as unattended equipment, it built a private cloud server for cloud parking and
undertook parking lot renovation business, so as to build a smart cloud parking
brand of Jiake Intelligent.

In May 2023, Jiake Intelligent was recognized as a national “Specialised and
Sophisticated Enterprise”. In November 2023, Jiake Intelligent once again
successfully passed the reexamination of “National High-tech Enterprise” after
strict evaluation, which demonstrated the recognition of Jiake Intelligent’s
innovative ability in science and technology, and was of great significance to
enhancing the brand image of Jiake Intelligent.

Lastly, Kaisa Prosperity will continuously take quality services and quality
expansion as the anchor to promote the orderly, quality and steady expansion of
its management scale, continuously extend and broaden the value-added service
chain to create a second growth curve and continuously optimize its brand
influence. We will continue to consolidate our fundamentals and sharpen our
increments, seize the opportunities and face the difficulties, and spare no effort,
so as to achieve all-round and high-quality development with continuous efforts.

Liao Chuangiang (Chairman)
April 2023
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No. Awarding Party

1 H B5 B 7f
1 China Index Academy
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2 China Index Academy
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3 China Index Academy
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4 China Index Academy
5 H B B 7B
5 China Index Academy
6 R B 9T

6 China Index Academy
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ABOUT KAISA PROSPERITY

About us

As of 31 December 2023, the Group's property management services covered
74 cities in China, with a total of 720 managed properties and a total GFA under
management reaching 102.3 million sq.m.; our services covered 9 property
types, namely residential, commercial and office buildings, recreational
stadium, schools, high-end sales offices, hospitals, urban public buildings and
culture and tourism. It has approximately 12,000 employees and outsourced
employees serving approximately 490,000 property units across the nation. Qur
current businesses involve basic services, pre-delivery and consulting services,
community value-added services and smart solution services.

Awards and Honors

As an enterprise with national level one qualification, Kaisa Prosperity has
passed the IS09001 quality management system certification. In 2023, Kaisa
Prosperity gained recognitions from authoritative organisations in the industry
and the market with its high-quality services and core value, reflecting the
confidence of various sectors in Kaisa Prosperity’s brand. Awards and Honors
received by us in 2023 are listed as below:

15

Awards

2023 B R A E R YR TIm AL B

2023 Leading Enterprise in the Property Management Market in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
0B3TEFEMERBRLEE -ZTEEEE

2023 China Leading Property Management Companies in terms of
Characteristic Services — Diversified Smart Businesses
WRBFPERERYMEREIER —KEEKE « BRE
(fx=)

2023 China Five-star Property Service Project — Chengdu Kaisa e
Regent Hong Kong (Residential)
03FERERMEREER
a88)

2023 China Five-star Property Service Project — Guangzhou Sinopec
Building (Commercial Office Complex)

20237 Bl S ARTSESCR REH b

2023 China Excellent Property Management Companies in terms of
ESG Development

2023 B BRTS B s TR 3

2023 Top 100 Property Service Companies in China

—ENPAEXRE(BRLE
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FF% ERHE #2158

No. Awarding Party Awards

7 e - Pt 20237 B3 1 AR5 TOP20 7R 3%

7 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2023 Top 20 City Service Companies in China

8 emin¥eE - F Y 20237 B NV RS S TOP101R 3

8 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2023 Top 10 Property Service Companies for Public Facilities in China

9 miimE - TR 2023 B S T ARTS R ST 1R 3

9 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2023 Leading Companies of China in City Service

10 wifimE - 2023+ B AR (b KBS ARG #8 1 — EFFUNRFS B8 5

10 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2023 China Property Management Enterprise in terms of High-quality
Service System — Prosperity FUN

1 emin¥E - Y 2023 B ¥ 3 AR 75 (b 3¢ mm MR B {E110098

il CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2023 China Top 100 Property Service Enterprises in Brand Value

12 wifimE - T 03FEYXERLMETIER —RIPRES

12 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2023 Excellent Projects of China Property Management — Shenzhen
Central Plaza

13 mminYE - P 03EHRNERYERSE HBERBE

13 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2023 Top 100 Property Service Companies in the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area

14 wiimeE - TR 20237 R D 3 AR 7% 5 e R (R 363058

14 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2023 Top 30 Property Service Brands in South China

15 mMYE - P 2023+ B3 BR TS B 5k

15 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2023 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China

16 mminYE - Y 03T EMERBMEEELLE

16 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2023 Leading Company of China in Property Service Satisfaction

17 nMn?eE  LERMnEMRMERA  2023hEYEER FHAF20%

7
17 CRIC Property and Shanghai CRIC Information 2023 Top 20 Listed Property Management Companies in China

Technology Co., Ltd.
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IV. PRACTITIONER OF RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE

Development Goals of Sustainable Governance/Board
Statement

As it forges ahead with steady business growth, the Group regards social
and environmental responsibilities as one of the core values in its business
operations. We are committed to becoming a sustainable property management
enterprise, with an aim to create long-term value for all stakeholders and
maintain high-quality services and operational standards, which will bring
positive effect to the communities we are serving. We actively control the
impacts on the environment and the communities caused during the process of
operation, improve our information transparency and perform our environmental
and social responsibilities, for the purpose of creating a green and sustainable
future for our next generation.

The Board of Kaisa Prosperity attaches great importance to ESG issues and bears
the ultimate responsibility for ESG management. In order to effectively promote
ESG work, the Board has continued to improve the ESG management structure,
set up ESG visions and objectives, and clarified the scope and process of ESG
work, so as to further enhance the performance of sustainable development and
strive to achieve a win-win situation in coordination with the economy, society
and the environment.

Sustainable Governance Structure and Strategies

The Group has formed a top-down environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
structure in adhering to its sustainable development philosophy. A governance
structure for sustainable development is formed by the Board, ESG Working
Group, various functional departments and subsidiaries to facilitate the orderly
management and information disclosure of ESG for Kaisa Prosperity




»

3R ANNUALREPORT 2023 {EJK#EE#FEMBM /AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 53

RIE - HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

1 S B ARESGHR AL -

=
ﬂffgm TEEIRE

Formulates and reviews ESG strategies
and action plans

e TSGR -
ESGTfF/) i B BN E B T i
ESG Working Group Allocates works and oversees based on the ESG
: strategies, action plans and goals formulated by
the Board

i N ERmEaE R0 T A F R e
" SR Legal and Risk Procurement Audit and Financial
Customer and Administration .

- g Management and Cost Supervision Management
ENgiHEenKS SIITE Al Department Department Department Department
Department Resources

Department

ESGTE/ 4EFRABEAIESGIIE - MESFERESCE IR MESCHREN TIEER
ESG Working Group implements specified ESG tasks and report to the Board about ESG management
and the progress of tasks contained in the ESG Report
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15 BEEE

Composition Scope of Responsibilities

FEREAE Exg o BEHIEARANFESCERTE - KK - ESGHH
BEEEARBRE

s ERBBALNTNBKARET HEREFD
BENMEFETEHES  WREE

o HDIBMFIFEESGKRE - AEIR BRARF
ERNLEMBERR

o MRFBIAE N MEVESCE R E IR M N EL R
ERES  BRINFHEHARREEELTE
BYESG A 8 [ B S2 #4638 - 3 A% ESGE B i AR
NEMEREIRE RS

e EXETERTFREEEUZENNGHER &
B Mgt AR A RIESGRIR K B IR ERGERE R F
BT

o FHFTESCMEAR

o HESGHEARM MERFEL BT

Decision Making and The Board e Responsible for the formulation of the Company’s ESG
Approval management approach and strategies, ESG-related
priorities and objectives;

e Reviewing and approving the Company’s strategic
objectives and regularly monitoring the process and
progress of achieving them to ensure implementation;

e (Coordinating the review of annual ESG performance,
risk management, achievement of key objectives and
information disclosure;

e Ensuring that an appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control system is in place to
identify and assess ESG-related risks and opportunities
that have an impact on the Company’s operations
and to integrate ESG risks into the Company’s risk
management system;

e The Board considers the results of the annual
assessment of materiality issues, reviews and
examines the Company’s ESG performance and
progress in achieving targets and annual work;

e Approving the content of the annual ESG report;

e Taking full responsibility for ESG governance strategy
and reporting
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Composition Scope of Responsibilities

ELEAIHIE ESGTF/)\4l e BERVYMTZESCIIERIZRE
o HIEESGEIRITE - KEE - B FETIER
SRE

o # RIEBEEFIMITRIRESCHE - BE
EESMBLAIPIMESGIER TIF - BN ERE
LEPBRASERRIES

o BERMNLEREEMESCHELER - BIR
SENAHBERIETER

s MEZETERSCTHRERIAKENFE

ESGHR&
Supervision and ESG Working Group e Responsible for the establishment and improvement of
Formulation ESG working system;

e Formulation of ESG management approach, strategies,
planning, annual work and targets;

e (oordinating and promoting the implementation
of various ESG policies by various departments,
coordinating and supervising the ESG-related work
of various functional departments, and striving
to incorporate sustainability elements into daily
operations;

e Responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Group’s ESG policies and practices to ensure that the
Group complies with relevant laws and regulatory
requirements;

e Reporting to the Board on the progress of ESG work
and the Group’s annual ESG report
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Composition

BEEE

Scope of Responsibilities

Bl =
°

BeesPfIN TE AR - /A
EERTREM(TEFLELD)
TTEEANEREBT AN
SRRRERD
PRAE R kA B ([ £RFEED ) -
ERTERA
BB ([B1 7550 )

1Y

Implementation Va

rious functional departments and

subsidiaries, comprising

ERERNERTET IRIERZEE
VFZEeERLZE S =A5MEE

Customer and Engineering Department
(“Customer Department”);
Administration and Human Resources
Department ("Human Resources
Department”);

Legal and Risk Management
Department;

Procurement and Cost Department
(“Procurement Department”);

Audit and Supervision Department; and
Finance Department (“Finance
Department”)

B SF R IAFSGARRBEEE Mt
MESGTIENMEREEGERSCTIENEER
U ~ 308% R EIRESGIRRE BRI R 838
RRBAEBESCER FE - KK - HE - FF
TERBENDE - BMHT - B -
#E N NTT S EESGAERE T 1

Compliance with ESG-related policies and systems;
Reporting to the ESG Working Group and the Board on
ESG work and responsible for collecting, recording and
reporting ESG related information and data;
Organizing, promoting and implementing various
ESG-related tasks in accordance with deployment,
requirements and division of labor based on the
Group’s ESG management approach, strategies, plans,
annual work and objectives

The Board of Kaisa Prosperity has also established three committees, namely the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.

g FEMZEERFER  BEEEE
FERARREHNBESHE - HEEH
AERAML - BRMGIF - BF - KRRHE
EEeNRBEEINRR  AUMES
SETRE  EERREKEZ -

Each of these committees has its own duties and is responsible for overseeing
specific aspects of the affairs of the Board and the Company, specifying the
management responsibilities of each department, collaborating with each other,
supervising and promoting the standard operation and decision-making of the
Board, and assisting the Board in effectively discharging its responsibilities and
monitoring the operation of its various business activities.
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Board Engagement

The Board is committed to incorporating sustainability into its business
development. It recognizes its responsibility in supervising the Group's ESG
strategies, including:

e assessing and determining the risks associated, such as climate change
with and opportunities arising from the Group's ESG issues;

e ensuring that an appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control system is in place;

e formulating the Group's management approach, strategies, priority and
goals of ESG;

e regularly reviewing the Group’s ESG performance in relation to relevant
goals; and

e approving the information disclosed in the Group’s ESG Report.

The Board regularly evaluates, identifies and manages ESG risks, and explores
potential opportunities through compliance with regulatory requirements and
industry practices, bringing long-term value for the stakeholders. The Board also
reviews the implementation of all ESG goals on a regular basis and adjusts the
goals as appropriate and practicable, for the purpose of minimizing the impacts
on the environment and the society brought by its development.
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ESG Management Approach and Strategies

Each year, through of risk identification, stakeholder engagement, materiality
assessment and review of policy development, the Board approves a
management approach to ESG issues that are material to the Group and, based
on a regular review of ESG performance, aiming to achieve our strategic goals
and objectives, to continually improve ESG issues in our day-to-day operations
in line with the expectations of stakeholders, and to collectively promote the
sustainable development of the Group.

In order to assess the effectiveness and appropriateness of ESG strategies,
objectives and targets, if the progress is not in line with expectations, regular
appraisals of progress must be made to rectify the situation. In order to promote
long-term sustainable development and develop a practical blueprint, the Group
has determined its ESG strategies and expects to achieve its strategic objectives
within five years.

Review of progress on ESG-related targets and indicators
The Board reviews the progress of ESG-related targets and proposes a future
ESG direction for the Group based on the said progress.
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2023F c REENEERFHE EFEk
BTEE BERBERBRMHTENTE
HE EZNEE

BHERR BELRFE
Stakeholder Communication
Group Ways/Channels
BRR o BRABRRAE
REE o BHFR

o DFAEKE

Shareholders and e (eneral meetings
investors e Publication of annual report
e Public information disclosure

245} o MHER

o BRHTERER

The government o Filing of tax returns
e Reporting on policy implementation
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that understanding and responding to the concerns of
stakeholders will not only help assess the impact of our decisions on ESG
issues, but also shape and adjust our development and growth direction. The
Group actively communicates with key stakeholders (including shareholders
and investors, government, employees, customers, suppliers and communities)
through different communication channels, such as reports, workshops, opinion
surveys or other platforms, to understand their concerned matters in order to
achieve common progress and development.

In 2023, the main stakeholders of the Group, their interests and concerns,
communication channels and the action plans we have formulated are set out in

the table below.

[opeak 3]

Major Concerns

REFFHERTRE D

I AT AR R AR
RAGEERE
RERREAREEER
Maintenance of continuous profitability
Formulation of sustainable development
strategies

Enhancement of transparency
Protection of the interest of
shareholders and investars

BRELARIL

LR BT

ol B R UK

XE T ER

Operational compliance

Payment of taxes in full according
to the laws

Response to the government's
policies

Support to local development

BMNTBEE

Our Action Plans

EHARRRE

THERESS
BRREERES
REETETFRRE

To convene regular general meetings

To convene regular board meetings

To convene meetings with investors

To make statutory disclosure in a timely
manner

BTEZERER
EEMBATRE RIFAR

BlER RS

R HOR R BEMTIN

To comply with national laws and regulations
To maintain good relationship with local
governments

To provide job opportunities

To pay taxes on time and in full according
to the laws
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BMMTDE S

Our Action Plans

~ o o e w N e o s w

FHERR BEAXRE BEEE
Stakeholder Communication Major Concerns
Group Ways/Channels
BT o BRALHEB o BRER
o Ikt o EIKE
o HEER
o DBEXE
Employees e Opinion surveys and questionnaires® @ Career development
e Workshops* e Training opportunities

e Remuneration and benefits
e (Corporate culture

EF . [ERIEE o ZRENELRSE
o EPWEERAL o TRIEKE
o RFEREF o [FFP%E
o RBARE
o THRBNERBLE
Customers e Individual meeting® e A comfortable and safe living

e Customer satisfaction survey® environment
e Customer communication meeting’  ®  Timely services
e Safety of residents
e Protection of privacy
e Enhancement of property management
quality

REPHETTOREIERPAEMS - 2HE THHL2012A -
EMRER TTIRATIEY - 2HE THAHLBA -

HEER SRR P H21347IA -

UGB EFHENEPKI26,7T6A -

ZEBBGZHELLI02A -

Eight opinion surveys were conducted during the Reporting Period involving nearly 2,012 employees.
71 workshops were organized during the Reporting Period involving nearly 353 employees.
Approximately 213,471 customers attended individual meetings.

Approximately 26,776 customers participated in satisfaction surveys

Approximately 702 customers participated in communication meetings.

BREZRRE  BERERAUAK
ZRRENEIIRE
TRETBEAZRRFR  UWHEE
TR - BEaHE
LEERHRFNNIIERE
BTREREMNES

BIfER

ARINEPHE AR

To organize trainings for professional
development, occupational skills and
safety procedures

To understand employees’ development
needs and evaluate them in an impartial
and objective way

To create a competitive working
environment

To organize care and welfare activities for
staff

Staff mailboxes

Company's intranet

FRisREIL - (L
EHETHERRE
HEPRF R REMGE
NERERPREL

To systemize and standardize our services
To carry out regular satisfaction survey

To promptly respond to and handle
customer complaints

To effectively protect customer privacy
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FHERRE BEAXRE BIEl BT E
Stakeholder Communication Major Concerns Our Action Plans
Group Ways/Channels
R o HERRBEZNFIE o BERTEER o RBURHK  BRNBEHE - At
o BREER o EITEE EERETERFHE
o BHEIWR o RARIE o FHEEEREAREBIEEER
Suppliers e Review and evaluation of the e  Promation of daily communication e To establish an open and transparent
performance of suppliers ¢ Performance of contract tendering system to provide suppliers with
e Communication meeting e Openness and faimess equal opportunity for competition
e Phone discussion e To communicate and optimise project
management on an ongoing and direct
basis
HE o HREERS o RENHER o THEMBAREY
o B/ BENENHED o BRGEES o FRARIER
o ZEMEER o (BEEREREF

o BAHERIAR
o BInTEER

The community e Media coverage e Investment in charitable business e To regularly organize charitable activities
e Organization/participation in e  Green operations in the community
charitable activities e Participation in community establishment e Toconduct charity events

¢ Devotion to community charity events
e (are for vulnerable groups

To advocate energy saving and conservation

N EEMFME VI. MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT
AEETARENEEED - BRMEEFHD To determine the key points to be disclosed in this report, we have conducted
EHRE e REBRAETEEM materiality assessment on ESG issues with stakeholders. The procedures of the
e MTFAEZMTH 2 RE - materiality assessment are set out as below:
F—% EBBENRE HERERE Step One: Identification of potential ESG issues
2|
AEEREBCGRE - w2 REAREE) The Group identified 23 issues in accordance with the disclosure requirements
BV ER Bk - EIRER M ERS KA set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and
FEEBANLBEZRSE - ELEBERRR based on the business characteristics and daily operation of Kaisa Prosperity.
BRRMNEEHIRECEEEEBY These issues are considered to have impacts on the environment and the society

2o during our operation.
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B-L  BEMAME
AEEEREERERSDEBBBIETH
WENBERETRREZ  HBEERE
HEMERRENHBEEXNERNR
0E5D T (0BT 5 RIEHE
2)-

B=L  HIBRRF

BIRIEFDER - ([ HHOhENTE]
MIEEBOZE IMIEEE S HBETH

F o AFTISEERREATER AR -

HIER DR & R E IR

§ Selection of suppliers and supply chain risk management T HEERERS PY
@ %u B EAET REHAT Equal opportunities Community
> m Prevention of child labor and forced labor communication and
Z 1 - BTmYmgR Mo
= 3 SENREERERED S s ° Employee training and EER
SEREG Participation in charityand @ REZE4EIR Py mart property development Corporate governance
% % volunteering activities Waste BT RE
s management = e

=) E . . REE %E]}E% Y Employee recruitment L
= g Protection of intellectual property rights and promotion
S s BEREN @ N P o RASRRAEE
@ Greenhouse BERD P Anti-corruption and
7] gas emissions Green office N money laundering

BERBER IR °

Exhaust emissions

ERBRERRRERRAR
Management of risks
associated with environmental
and natural resources

BLIRE

Ak ®
Water consumption

M

Step Two: Materiality Assessment

The Group’s management conducted internal meetings based on the opinions
collected from the communications with stakeholders to score the degree of
relevance and materiality of every ESG issue from 0 to 5 marks (0 represents
irrelevant; 5 represents most important).

Step Three: Priority

Based on the evaluation result, we prioritized the issues in two dimensions,
namely, “importance to stakeholders” and “importance to our operation” and
prepared the materiality matrix as below:

BEUEENTT
Material issue analysis

BERRERS
Occupational health and sa

EFERLERZS

Customer gata privacy and security

Climate change

Energy management o

HEXBRNERE

ateriality to corporate development
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%R
Ordering

mEERZE 1

Highly material
issues 2

HEEERR 10
Moderately material
issues il

BREEEZE 2

Lowly material issues

22

23

il Bl

Scope

e
Social
e
Social
e
Social
Eh

(Governance

Eh
(Governance

e
Social
e
Social
van-
Social
gh
Governance

e
Social
e
Social
e
Social
B
Environmental

B
Environmental
7%
Environmental

w5
Environmental

RE
Environmental

B
Environmental

e
Social

e
Social

B
Environmental

®E
Environmental

e
Environmental
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FRER
Category

EPRILERRL S

Customer well-being, health and safety
RBEERRRHER

Service quality and complaint handling
HEERERA

Community communication and integration
PEER

Corparate goverance

REFRRLE

Anti-corruption and money laundering

REREEZE

Occupational health and safety
STHIIEER

Employee training and development
EREMLEREZ R

Customer data privacy and security
HERGERARERRER
Selection of suppliers and supply chain risk
management

STRREER

Employee recruitment and promotion
FEige

Equal opportunities

BIERBEI RS T
Prevention of child labor and forced labor
FRRIL

Climate change

Smart property
BeRn

Green office

ERER
Energy management

BENEE

\Waste management

7K

Water consumption

BHENREERSREE
Participation in charity and volunteering activities

RESZHER

Protection of intellectual property rights

ERREIARERRR

Management of risks associated with environmental
and natural resources

BERBHR

Greenhouse gas emissions

BRI

Exhaust emissions

RENE

Disclosing chapter

BNE FH@E - RIS

IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY AND REJUVENATION

BNE FH@E - WHR

IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY AND REJUVENATION

B+—E EFHL - OREHE

XI. GATHERING SHIMMER, GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY

BTE RBLR AT

X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

BTE RBLR S/TE

X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

BNE DUASR - RS

VIll. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION

BNE DUASR - RS

VIll. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION

ENE Rt - RHRS

IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY AND REJUVENATION

BTE RRBER /T

X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

BNE MUASR - R

VIll.PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION

SNE PASR - ERER

VIll.PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION

SNE DUASUR - ERUR

VIll. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION

FLE ARER  BIRR

VIL. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

FNE RHmE - RHRE

IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY AND REJUVENATION

StE ERER  BTRR

VIl LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

FtE ERER  BTRIR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

FtE (EHER  BTRIR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

BtE (EHER  BTRIR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

B+—F ERHL DRtE

XI. GATHERING SHIMMER, GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY

BHE RRLE SRTA

X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

SLE HRER  BOIRR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

FLE HRER  BOIRR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

SLE ERER  BOIRR

VIL. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
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According to the results of materiality assessment, well-being, health and safety
of customers, service quality and complaint handling, corporate governance,
anti-corruption and money laundering, occupational health and safety, employee
training and development, customer data privacy and security and selection of
suppliers and supply chain risk management are regarded as the most concerned
issues of stakeholders and the Group. While taking into account environmental
and social responsibilities, the Group will pay more attention to the above
areas, and strive to achieve continuous improvement and sustainable business
development.

LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Climate Change

Kaisa Prosperity has been aware of the worsening consequences of global
warming, which poses a huge and profound impact and challenge to both
mankind and the global environment. The phenomenon arising from climate
change such as extreme weather, rising temperatures and ocean warming are
also threatening the stability of the Group’s business and operations. In view of
this, we have responded how we addressed the climate change with reference
to the recommendations from the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD).
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=p=) Governance
BEANEED AN SERRIES The duties and responsibilities of all units are set out as below in accordance
KOS BEMHBEMET with the sustainable development framework of the Group:

AE BE
Personnel Duties
= o %IJETESGJ‘ﬁJr KEE - BAKER

Directors

ESGL{E/ME

ESG Working Group

EBeBEARTEBAR(ERPRT
BE - AT RANERE AR
ED -~ EREBRRARNER - BWATEIERER

K B 7 TR BB AR )

Various functional departments and
subsidiaries comprising the Customer and
Engineering Department, Administration
and Human Resources Department, Legal
and Risk Management Department,
Procurement and Cost Department, Audit
and Supervision Department and Finance
Department

B ATk M FESGRY AR R R B AN H S -
Ei&\ti IRE Bt AT B IAESG B RHBITIEN © K
B S B EE RN MERCREZCEEDN AT - DAEERIERZ L
118 -
formulates the ESG approach, strategies, priority and goals;
assesses and determines the risks associated with and opportunities arising from the
ESG issues;
reviews the implementation of all ESG goals on an annual basis at least; and
is now studying the feasibility of and drafting the “Climate Change Policy” ( (R 1& &
{EEREE ) ) to identify actions to respond to the climate change.

IRIRESGR IS Z HEAERE TIEER

EERRERRIE  ETHEEREEIE: &
RETFEMESGIRE TIE -

organises the works related to ESG strategies;

oversees the works on sustainable development, including works related to the climate
change; and

coordinates the annual ESG Report.

WITEF S HMESOR -

FIRESGIIE - BRI RERRE Mt SE MBI
MEAEEERESSEFSCLIFMNREREMNER &

HIET RIT RIS B S RARA B IR IR S B B84 6 o

executes the Board's resolution on ESG issues;

performs ESG works, including collection and management of KPIs related to the
environment and society;

reports to the senior management and the Board on ESG works and compilation of
report; and

formulates and executes management policies and specific measures on sustainable
development.
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B EE
BMEHR T —RIRIRB(CHERHZ
BN RER R TEE S

Risk Management
We have identified a series of risks associated with climate change caused to
our operations and the action plans in addressing these risks:

1 EEYE
Risks Potential impact

EREE

Substantial Risks
SMHEBRRCEERR - K

K MK ERFRFIERASE
%)

Acute substantial risks (weather-related
events such as storms, floods, fires, or
heat waves)

gt ERRR(RE REPRIEE
b - PlanREE(E - /KFE L
Tt KRRED - EMEERIRE
VAR + 3t ]2 + 3 A EE )
Chronic substantial risks (long-term
climate changes, such as temperature
changes, rising sea levels, reduced
water sources, loss of biodiversity and
changes in land and soil productivity)

Transition Risks

Bt

Technology risks

e

Market risks

BERMR

Reputation risks

ERRE

Legal risks

FE/K MK K AR BB SEMAEB IR - (2B MG RERARIEM « &
FeRIEINE NrE e AR - ARSI AERER - ABREBTEm
WA o

Precipitation and floods may cause damage to the structure of the building and increase
operation and maintenance costs; and

Typhoons may increase the risk of power shortages and the possibility of temporary office
closures, resulting in business interruptions and reduced revenue.

FUR EFAIBESI T ARE - EIMTHERBRESRA &
BFE EASIBUKR - HEMER R RIEERBIE - 18I ERRREDN
R -

Rising temperatures may cause heatstroke increasing the risk of industrial injuries and
costs of cooling; and

Rising sea levels may cause flooding, causing damage to infrastructure and facilities, and
increasing the cost of repairing damaged facilities.

BERM A BT R E AR IR AR ARERNZOER - MBFIREE
ERAIBARRSET AR - SR EEBER -

Energy-efficient technology is the key to mitigating climate change and the core element
of future development. If we fail to master renewable energy or energy conservation and
emissions reduction technologies, business development will be affected.

HPMEEFZTEMEAFEEREORALENDRE - BRMIREIEA
FEZREBRBAEBNESEHRIERECHME - Btk ERFE
B o

Tenants and property owners are increasingly turning to businesses that integrate
sustainable development philosophy into their operations. If we fail to integrate
sustainable development strategies into our business and effectively deal with climate
change issues, we may lose our competitive advantage.

HEERRHREERBENLTE  Brle#ARs|I REBEE BT -
EBRHRIRE -

If the operation process has a harmful effect on the climate, it may be difficult to attract
and retain property owners, employees, business partners and investments.

RARZCAERBERADERIZ K BB - MIRANERIEFLEBLER
VRITAFHVERREETE R ARG EELRINNSRKANTE
REBENBE -

Policies and regulations related to climate change are becoming stricter. If the existing
compliance procedures and business operations may not fully comply with the new legal
and regulatory requirements, there may incur additional compliance costs and affect the
reputation of the Group.
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In order to alleviate the substantial risks caused by climate change, Kaisa
Prosperity has installed flood gates for properties with higher flood risk, and
regularly inspects manholes, drains, doors and windows, etc. to ensure that
manholes and drainages remain unblocked to reduce the impact of floods or
rising sea levels. Extreme weather may also cause power shortages. In view of
this, we conduct regular inspections and test the backup power generators to
reduce the risk of business interruption. Regarding to climate-related transition
risks, Kaisa Prosperity understands that mastering renewable energy or energy
conservation and emissions reduction technologies will be essential the future
development of the business. Therefore, we actively transit into a low-carbon
development business model to meet the expectations of tenants and customers
and increase their loyalty. We also pay close attention to the update of climate
change regulatory laws and actively monitor our compliance procedures to avoid
violating relevant regulations or industry standards that may affect our reputation
and incur additional litigation costs.

Green office

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complies with the laws and
regulations such as the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ( {#F % A
RHMBEBIEIREE) ), Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste ({# %
AR ANE & E BEE W5 R IRIRENIVEE) ), Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC ({FFZE A R EMB KRS58
%)), “Thirteenth Five-Year” Work Plan for Greenhouse Gas Emission Control
((T+=RIZEFAE BN TIERZE) ) and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste (H #E A R HF1 B & 7E BEEY)5 R IREF Va)A) ), which
clearly state the requirements in relation to the emission of pollutants and
energy-saving management for enterprises. In view of this, we formulated and
strictly implemented the internal policies such as the Kaisa Prosperity Group
Office Supplies Management System ( {{EJKZ E LTS B A A B 12 H
J£) ) and the Notice on Cost Reduction and Strict Economy of the Whole Group
(AR EZSEESKRER - BITENKIRYBAN ), which regulate emissions
and discharge of exhaust gas, waste water, waste solids and greenhouse gas
generated in office areas. In addition, we provided clear guidelines on the
daily environmental protection for our staff, starting with the details such as
management of use of electricity, water, paper, office supplies, and business
vehicles and are devoted to promoting various emission reduction and energy
saving projects in the course of daily operation. Our concrete green office
measures include:

e Encouraging our staff to implement energy and water saving in the course
of daily operation;

e Encouraging the setting of air-conditioning temperature to 24-26 degree
Celsius;
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e Encouraging the adoption of natural light and reduction of the use of
unnecessary lighting systems;

e Requesting our staff to switch off the air-conditioners and computers when
they leave office, so as to reduce daily electricity consumptions in the
office;

e  Reiterating that the old-for-new principle should be pursued when
requisitioning the office supplies such as stationeries, computer
accessories and computers;

e Reducing paper consumption by using black-and-white and double-side
printing modes and using recycled paper;

e (Checking the usage of the supplies regularly and considering the feasibility
of maintenance and internal resources deployment before purchase or
replacement; and

e Providing waste sorting and recycling facilities within the office area to
engage our staff to sort wastes at source, thereby raising the collection
volume for recyclable materials and reducing the disposal volume of
wastes.

Energy management

Our direct energy consumptions are mainly from the natural gas, liquefied
petroleum gas, diesel and gasoline used in the fixed source equipment and
business vehicles; indirect energy consumptions are mainly from electricity,
vapour, town gas and natural gas purchased externally. In hopes of reducing the
impact of carbon footprints, we encourage our staff to use video conferencing
or teleconferencing systems to reduce the needs for business trips. Where
business trips are necessary, staff should take mass transit transportation such as
airport coaches or railways as much as possible so as to avoid the considerable
amount of carbon dioxide emitted during a flight on a plane or a journey on a
taxi. Apart from this, our property management and operation highly depends on
energy consumption and strictly complies with the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Energy Conservation ( (P 2E A R R AIEEIRE) ) and
the Assessment Method for Implementation of Energy Consumption of Kaisa
Prosperity Group (({EREF T EBRERNITBEREZIE) ) as its
internal code. During the Reporting Period, the total energy consumption of the
Group amounted to approximately 125,007,000 kWh.

To effective control the consumption of electricity and increase energy efficiency,
the Group has implemented the following energy-saving measures:

e  continued to introduce more environmentally friendly equipment and
components for new and existing projects with reference to the latest
industry guidelines;
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e explored the use of smart meter to enhance management of energy
performance;

e used alternatives with high energy efficiency to replace the existing
lighting and power equipment upon the end of their life cycle;

e adopted reasonable operating and control method and advanced energy-
saving equipment;

e  adopted a static var generator to enhance the power factor of power
supply and distribution system and electrical equipment;

e conducted an analysis on the monthly energy consumption report and
report on any abnormal energy consumption in a timely manner;

e imposed punishment on units which are found to have excessive energy
consumption and offered incentives to units which perform a good energy
consumption control on a quarterly basis; and

e promptly reported, prevented and rectified any energy wastage.

To further realise reduction of energy consumption, the Group has, for the first
time, set out in its last year's report the goals of reducing the total energy
consumption per unit area by 30% within 5 years. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, the Group's total energy consumption per unit area reduced by 11.76% in
2023 as compared with 2022.

Waste management

We proactively responded the local governments’ policies by implementing
waste recycle and classification at all projects under our management and
strictly complied with the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste” in handling
wastes during our operations. The Group also set up the Standardized Guidelines
for Classification of Garbage Chamber (% fE+7F E1Z (L 3]))
internally to teach its tenants how to sort and implement 3R Principles, i.e.
“Reduce”, “Reuse” and “Recycle” of wastes.

For hazardous wastes, we implement unified collection and designated storage,
and hand them over to a third-party service provider with relevant qualifications
for processing to control or eliminate hazards. We implemented the following
measures in the projects under management:

e All hazardous wastes are handled by a nationally recognized and qualified
waste treatment company;
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e All hazardous waste management strictly abides by the principle of
“classified recycling, centralized storage, and unified treatment”;

e Separate and recycle wastes according to the type of waste, and label the
type and name of the waste outside the container that contains the waste;
and

e Various kinds of hazardous waste are kept in designated places.

For non-hazardous wastes, we sort and recycle the recyclables to improve the
utilization rate of resources to reduce pollution. We will also set up recycling
bins in property communities to encourage property owners to actively
participate in garbage sorting and recycling. During the Reporting Period, the
Group generated 1.33 tons of hazardous waste, including ink cartridges, printer
cartridges, lamps, light bulbs and batteries; the total amount of non-hazardous
waste was approximately 1.35 tons, which were mainly office waste.

To effectively reduce the emissions of hazardous wastes and non-hazardous
wastes, the Group has, for the first time, set out in its ESG report for the year
of 2021 the goals of reducing the emissions of hazardous wastes and non-
hazardous wastes by 10% within 5 years and striving to achieve the goals of “zero
accidents” and “zero injuries”. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the total
emission intensity of hazardous wastes by the Group reduced by approximately
12.68% as compared with that in 2022, respectively and there are no incidents
or casualties related to waste handling.

Water Consumption

As a property management service enterprise, owing to rather huge water
consumption by the Group as a result of the services such as greening and public
swimming pool maintenance, the Group adopts water-saving irrigation such as
sprinkling irrigation and micro-irrigation to carry out green irrigation and reduce
water consumption in gardening. We also test if there is any leakage in water
pipes on a regular basis and carry out daily maintenance for water equipment,
to prevent waste of the water resource from evaporation, emission, dripping
or leakage. During the Reporting Period, the water consumption of the Group
amounted to approximately 967,890 m3. In terms of discharge of sewage, the
Group only conducts sewage treatment at the hospitals under its management.
It has formulated and strictly implemented the Operation Guidelines for Sewage
Treatment ( 57K B IR E455]) ) and complied with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ( {FF ZE A R 3
FBIK 52587 ) and standards for discharge of sewage at the place of
operations to ensure meeting sewage standard.
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Since most of the districts where our businesses are located are facing water
shortage issue, the Group has adopted the following water-saving measures to
further monitor the use of water:

e installing flow restrictors, gas filling devices or other water-saving
equipment at the tap to reduce water consumption;

e exploring the use of smart water meter to monitor the use of water;

e  optimizing the technologies of existing methods of greening maintenance
and using sprinkler irrigation to reduce water consumption;

e promoting water conservation to the property owners of our projects under
management;

e formulating monthly water consumption reports for conducting analysis
and reporting on any abnormal water consumption in a timely manner; and

e promptly reporting, preventing and rectifying any water wastage.

In 2021, we have set out a KPI of water efficiency which targets to reduce total
water consumption by 10% within 5 years. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
total water consumption by the Group reduced by 5.75%.

We do not encounter any problems in sourcing water for our daily operations, as
our domestic water is provided by local water supply companies.

Management of risks associated with environmental and
natural resources

Although the Group’s business does not exert a profound impact on the natural
environmental and natural resources, we understand that natural resources are
scarce. Hence, our concerns on emission and consumption reduction are not
limited to office premises only, but also be extended to cover the environmental
protection activities in the community in the course of business. We issued
the “Notice on Continue Implementation of Measures for Cost Reduction and
Efficiency Enhancement and Strict Saving” ( (RIS E S & (PR AL - &
TTERH) | $EHEHYBAN) ) and encourage property owners to take part in such
activities, including:

e Gradually replacing with energy-saving water pumps and lighting systems
to reduce waste of energy;
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e Transplanting the green plants discarded by the property owners in the
green belt of the community to reduce carbon emissions;

e Organizing waste-sorting activities in the community to exchange used
items (e.g. old batteries, discarded plastic bottles, and discarded clothes,
etc.) for green potted plants and environmentally-friendly products; and

e (Collecting used products for recycle and delivering them to relevant
local professional organizations to give away to those in need to support
environmental protection and for charitable purposes.

Greenhouse gas emissions

During the Reporting Period, the total greenhouse gas emission of the Group
amounted to 106,141.75 tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO,g), of which direct
greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 18) amounted to approximately 824.33 tons
of CO,e with the main sources from boilers at the central air-conditioning and
heating system, emergency electric generators and business vehicles; indirect
greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2°) amounted to approximately 104,431.74
tons of CO,e with the main sources from electricity purchased externally; other
greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 3'°) amounted to approximately 885.68 tons
of CO,e with the main sources from the use of electricity by the government
departments during the treatment process of drinking water and sewage. To
reduce the impact from greenhouse gas emissions over the environment, we
encourage our staff to reduce the use of small passenger vehicle and to adopt
video conference meeting instead. In addition, we planted a total of 3,180 native
trees and shrubs in the surrounding areas of its offices, successfully reducing
approximately 73.14 tons of carbon dioxide and carbon footprint generated
during the operation of business.

To further reduce the emission of greenhouse gas, the Group has for the first
time set an emission reduction target in the ESG report this year, which sets out
the target to reduce total carbon dioxide emissions per unit area by 30% within 5
years. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has reduced its total CO,
emissions per unit area by approximately 14.09% in 2023 compared to 2022.

BE—RERAREREERIENNERERELNREREYMN -

HE _RREREENIER(BEEROIEGEH)E N - 28 - LRRERASIBH MELR DR E RPN -
HE=ZIRREREE NN EMERRERBYN - 81 L R TR o

Scope 1 covers the greenhouse gas emissions directly generated from the businesses owned or controlled by the Group

Scope 2 covers the “indirect energy” greenhouse gas emissions generated from the electricity, heat energy, refrigeration and vapour consumed internally (purchased or

obtained) by the Group.

Scope 3 covers all other indirect greenhouse gas emissions generated outside the area of the Group, including emissions from the upstream and downstream.
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Exhaust emissions

The main sources of our air emissions are the boilers at the community
swimming pools and central air-conditioning and heating system, gas stoves in
staff canteen, emergency electric generators, weeding machines, chain saws
and leaf blowers used in garden greening, as well as fuel oil consumption
of business vehicles. During the Reporting Period, the emissions of nitrogen
oxides, sulphur oxides, inhalable particulates, fine particulates, carbon monoxide
and hydrocarbon generated by the Group amounted to approximately 960.60
kilograms, 372.00 kilograms, 68.02 kilograms, 70.27 kilograms, 1,694.50
kilograms and 221.96 kilograms. Our air emissions increased slightly as
compared to that of last year, among which the number of the projects under our
management covered increased from 673 last year to 720 this year.

PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION
Employment

The Group's core talent concept is “Having both ability and political integrity
and taking the integrity as the first”. We believe that employees are one of the
important assets for the enterprises’ sustainable development. Kaisa Prosperity
has strictly complied with the laws and regulations related to staff employment
such as Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {7 £ A R 2L FNE 45 B
%)), Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China ( /P & A R 2L 7N
E & 8) & [F)3%) ), Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (/R
# AR M 2R ) and Employment Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({2 AR HEFIBIFLE(R#E %) ), which safeguard
the lawful interests of our staff in terms of working hours system, leave and
holiday system, welfare and remuneration management, dismissal of staff,
signing of labour contracts, etc. To achieve effective linking up and monitoring
of such requirements, we formulated internal policies such as Kaisa Prosperity
Recruitment Management Policy ( (fEJKEIFEE B FHRISE R HIE) ), Kaisa
Prosperity Staff Remuneration Management Policy ( {({EJK¥EFEEE T
FHENEIEHIEZ) ), Kaisa Prosperity Welfare Management Policy ((fEJK 3=
W EEBIEFIEIEHIZ) ), Kaisa Prosperity Social Insurance Implementation
Rules (CEREETEETSRBEMAAI) ), Kaisa Prosperity
Employers’ Liability Service Agreement ({fFEJKE EITEE B E FE (TR
T&13%) ), Staff Wage Level Standard Table ({ & T T &R HIIZ L fE g
&%) ), Kaisa Prosperity Regulations on Managing Employees’ Overtime Work
Policy ((fEJKHEZTEBE B TMITEIEAE) ), and Kaisa Prosperity
Performance Assessment Management Policy ( (fEJK = 4T £ BB ME X
EIEHIE)), etc. Also, the administration and human resources department
conducts review and revision to the systems on an annual basis, striving for
offering a reasonable, fair and discrimination-free working atmosphere for our
staff, so that the staff can work energetically under an environment with sound
corporate culture to realize mutual growth and development between the staff
and the Group.
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Occupational health and safety

As a responsible employer, for sure the Group has strictly complied with the
laws and regulations in relation to labor safety and hygiene such as Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FREI A R EMB L 2 EEX)),
Fire Prevention Law of PRC ({FZE A R FEFIBEFA %) ), Industrial Injury
Insurance Regulations of the People’s Republic of China ( AP ZE A R FEFNE
T5RE &MY ) and Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases ( (P #E A R HEABIBEE R AE) ).
The Group attaches great importance to the safety of our employees. We are
committed to providing a comfortable and safe working environment for our staff
and protecting our staff against occupational hazards. The measures include but
are not limited to the following:

e Provided our staff with body checks at the cost of the Group;

e Reviewed records of incidents, injuries and illness regularly and handled
the work injuries of staff properly;

e Conducted safety checks regularly to ensure that the safety measures are
implemented;

e |nteracted with the community to carry out fire drills and trainings
regularly;

e (ared about the physical and mental health of our staff and launched staff-
caring visits regularly; and

e Advocated the importance of safety by arranging office safety inspections,
fire inspections and carried out fire drills regularly.

We provide guidelines to our employees in relation to occupational health, safety
training and epidemic prevention in Kaisa Prosperity Training Management
Policy ( (fEJK 2 E 1T EEIEFIEIBHIE) ). As for the newly recruited staff,
the Group will provide training courses on occupational safety and position-
related professionalism, the contents of which include the operation procedures
of positions and work instruction manuals. As for the job-transfer staff, we also
provide job-transfer trainings. Apart from passing on the new skills, the trainings
also include position-related knowledge and skills, operation procedures, safety
knowledge and procedures, etc. All of the above trainings are conducive to
raising the safety awareness of staff and minimizing the occurrence of accidents
as a result of human error.
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The Group has established Kaisa Prosperity Measures for the Management
of Emergencies ((fEKEETEBREEHEEDIE) ) to provide
guidelines for the information management in emergencies and the management
processes of reporting, handling, judging and assessing all kinds of emergencies.
In case of emergencies, we require our staff to regard their personal safety as
the overriding principle. Upon the occurrence of emergencies, the departments
of safety monitoring function, quality assurance and engineering management
function, administration and manpower function, etc. of each branch company
are required to formulate corresponding rectifying measures and report to the
Group's headquarters for filling. Meanwhile, we have purchased social insurance
and commercial insurance for our staff according to law to ensure that our staff
are under the protection of work-related injury insurance. In 2023, the number
and rate of staff involved in work-related fatalities was 0 and 0%, while the
number of working days lost due to work-related injury amounted to 2,032 days.

Employee Training and Development

Kaisa Prosperity is devoted to improving its staff training system and
standardizing its company staff training and coaching qualification management
in accordance with the Kaisa Prosperity Training Management Policy ( {({EJK 3
EFEBEEYIEIESIE) ). We unleash our staff potentials and assist our
staff in upgrading their skills and developing their career. We deeply understand
that outstanding talents and teams are one of the keys for our continuous
development. Hence, the administration and human resources department carries
out training demand investigations based on the Group’s development, drawing
up the Annual Training Plan ( (S E 15 3)IETE]) ) to put forward a series of on-
the-job training for our staff, including:

e New staff training is organized to make new staff fully understand the
Company’s history, ideas and code of conduct as well as to get accustomed
to their job role as soon as possible;

e Jobh-transfer training is to make transferred staff fulfil the requirements
of the new job position as soon as possible;

e Promotion training is the training conducted with an aim to making the
staff fulfil the job requirements of the position of a higher level;

e On-the-job training is classified into three parts based on the types of
training including regular training, outbound training and ad hoc training,
covering professional knowledge, professional skills, management,
computer, and literacy improvement, etc. to increase the capability of our
staff to outperform their job;
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New manager training is the training for the general middle-level
managerial staff with an aim to enhancing the managerial skills and level
of middle-level managerial teams; and

Senior manager training is the training for senior middle-level
managerial with an aim to enhancing the comprehensive capabilities of
middle-level managerial teams for the selection of elite.

Our major training is divided into several categories, including

Cultural: induction training for new employees and corporate culture
training, etc.;

General: basic knowledge training on property laws and regulations,
occupational safety and ethics training, system responsibility training and
integrity and self-discipline training, etc.;

Management: project management throughout the property life cycle,
efficient team building training and improvement of basic skills of
managers, etc.;

Professional: star-rated lecturer certification training, safety management
cadre training camp, quality pilot training camp, complaint handling case
analysis, basic knowledge of quality management knowledge, manual
training for various posts and professional training on internal control
lines, etc.;

Four-level talent training: executive training camp, leader training
camp, project manager certification training camp and NKP training camp,
etc.

Meanwhile, the Group also provides our staff with external trainings organized
and approved by governmental units such as qualification accreditation courses,
courses on special professional knowledge or skills necessary for the job,
all kinds of certification examinations necessary for the job, exchange visits
to industry peers, domestic and overseas business administration refresher
trainings, corporate managerial staff refresher training, etc. We also encourage
our staff to engage in continuous learning by reimbursing them the relevant fees
by presenting their graduation certificates and the valid receipts for training fees
upon completion of the training
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Furthermore, in order to build an excellent and highly efficient team of internal
lecturers possessing comprehensive knowledge, the “Management Measures for
Internal Lecturers for Kaisa Prosperity” ( ({EJK 2 X475 B A ZBERN S IRt
%) ) requires our internal lecturers to pass all assessments such as reviewing
syllabus and organizing trial lectures before becoming a recognized internal
lecturer of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, 100% of our staff received training and the average
training hours completed by each employee was 28 hours.

Employee recruitment and promotion

Recruitment and Promotion

Kaisa Prosperity strictly implements the internal requirements under the “Kaisa
Prosperity Recruitment Management Policy” ({({EJk ¥ EiF e B IRIEE
EHIZ) ) with regard to recruitment and selection of personnel so as to
ensure the overall human resources level. In the course of recruitment, we first
conduct observation and judgement as for whether the candidate possesses
integrity and credibility as well as self-disciplinary cooperative spirit, whereas
failing candidates will not be hired. The Group also adheres to the employment
principle of hiring by merit rather than nepotism, meaning that staff members
with relative relationships shall not work in the same company, or work in the
position under the same business system with superordinate-and-subordinate
working relations, or hold positions with business association. Meanwhile, we
also attempt to introduce a methodology for information technology evaluation
into recruitment so as to avoid subjectivity and randomness as much as possible
and at the same time to avoid taking the personalities and ethical standards of
the recruiting personnel as the judgement of the merits of candidates.

We uphold the principle of openness and fairness to provide promotion
opportunities for our staff. “Kaisa Prosperity Performance Assessment
Management Policy” ((fEJKEEFERBAREZEIRFIE) ) sets out
detailed regulations on staff promotion and awards, which include those to
decide whether the staff get promoted based on the performance assessment
for our staff on a regular basis. Through communication and giving feedback on
the working performance of our staff, we believe we can continuously raise the
performance level of our staff, thereby boosting the favorable development for
the organization and raising the operational results and management level to
benefit both the Group and its staff.
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Remuneration and Welfare

To give full play to the incentive effect of remuneration, we formulate the “Kaisa
Prosperity Staff Remuneration Management Policy” ({(fEJKEXTEEE
THEEIRHIE) ) to standardize the management of staff remuneration.
The standard wage for our staff is distributed based on the corresponding wage
standard for the respective position levels and ranks set out in the Staff Wage
Level Standard Table (& T T & A& RIIRAEL FERIR ) ). Besides, we
conduct performance assessment for our staff on a regular basis based on Kaisa
Prosperity Performance Assessment Management Policy ( (fEJKEEIFER
EWEZEIRHIE) ) and adjust the salary package for our staff based on the
assessment results. We also take this opportunity to listen to staff's opinion and
are committed to helping our staff to integrate into our corporate culture.

We formulated “Kaisa Prosperity Welfare Management Policy” ( {fEJK 3%
FEBEFEEFIE) ) to provide multi-aspect preferential treatment and
launched a variety of cultural construction activities to let our staff feel the care
from the Group and create a pleasant working atmosphere. We:

e organized a variety of cultural and sports activities to enhance staff
communication and strengthen their physical health. The form of activities
includes staff birthday parties, football, basketball, badminton, table
tennis, hiking, swimming, sports competitions, chess, variety shows and
social welfare, etc.;

e organized company anniversary, Spring Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival
celebration gatherings for our staff;

e offered festival bonus to each staff during Spring Festival, Dragon Boat
Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival each year;

e procured additional commercial insurance for our staff each year to protect
the interest of our employees;

e offered various kinds of allowances including meal allowance, on-duty
meal allowance, overtime working and transportation allowance etc;

e  provided rent-free dormitory for a portion of staff with exemption of
management fees and sharing the water and electricity costs;

e reimbursed a portion of transportation fees to the fresh graduates who
are recruited through campus recruitment when they report duty to the
Company; and

e provided employees with the cooling allowance during the summer as
required by national laws and regulation.
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Working Hours and Holidays

The Group pays overtime working wages based on the overtime working
approved under the national requirements and “Kaisa Prosperity Regulations on
Managing Employees’ Overtime Work Policy” ({fEJKZELFEE 8 T ik
BEIZFFE) ). In addition, Kaisa Prosperity Welfare Management Policy ( {fE
JKERIFEBEREIRHIE)) stipulated that employees are entitled to
all kinds of paid leaves such as statutory festivals and holidays, marriage leave,
funeral leave, maternity leave, nursing leave and annual leave. It will also adjust
the number of annual leaves based on the seniority of staff.

Equal Opportunities

Kaisa Prosperity offers equal opportunities and strives for implementing the
ideas of diversity and anti-discrimination. According to the “Kaisa Prosperity
Recruitment Management Policy” ((fEJREEFEEIBIEEEFIED ), in
the course of recruiting talents, we avoid taking the personal attributes such as
gender, age, marital status, physical fitness and so on as the necessary factors,
S0 as to ensure that our employees are treated equally in the recruitment and
promotion procedures, dismissal procedures, training, working performance
assessment, remuneration and welfare, working hours, leaves and other holidays
(including marriage leave, compassionate leave and maternity leave), etc.

As of 31 December 2023, we had a total of 9,524 staff'’, among which the
proportions of male staff and female staff were approximately 59% and 41%,
respectively. No cases of discrimination were recorded during the Reporting
Period.

RIMETEA -

This number includes only the number of employees of the 49 core function units selected in the scope of this report.
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Prevention of child labor and forced labor

In strict compliance with laws and regulations such as “Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China” ( {H2E A R AL FNBI 45 B)5%) ), “Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China” ({FFZE A R EFIE L HARE))
and “Prohibition of Child Labor Provisions” ({Z|F B ETRTE) ), the
Group safeguarded staff's legal rights and prohibited the recruitment of those
who aged under the age of 16. To this end, we established “Kaisa Prosperity
Recruitment Management Policy” ((fEJKEE T SEEBEEEHIE) ) o
respect legal rights of staff. We value privacy of staff such that we avoid raising
questions related to personal privacy but unrelated to his/her work performance.
The information of assessing knowledge of the candidate is only available for
reading for relevant staff in the recruitment of this position. In addition, we
would conduct background check, review information about age of candidates
and prohibit the unlawful use of child labor.

For those staff who have to work overtime and on duty, we would pay overtime
salary in accordance with national requirements and “Kaisa Prosperity
Regulations on Managing Employees’ Overtime Work Policy” { {fEJk 23
FEEE THPTE R T) ) and overtime transportation allowance as
the case may be. If any violation against laws and regulations in relation to
labor standards is found, we would punish those who shall be accountable for
the incident subject to the severity, also we would analyse the reasons of the
issue, review, update and adjust issues present in the systems or management
measures in place.

Our "Work Guidelines for Employee Relationship for Kaisa Prosperity” ( {{£
JkEE 47 B TRIIR TVEFE5]) ) requires both the setup of the post
of employee relations personnel in the headquarters of the Group and its
subsidiaries. The employee relations personnel are responsible for protecting
legal rights of, collecting opinions from and caring about the well-being of our
staff.
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IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY AND

REJUVENATION

Quality enhancement and rejuvenation works

In 2023, Kaisa Prosperity launched special campaigns of “Jiarun Campaign” (£
JE77%) and “Meet Prosperity for Best Customer Experience” (i &3E4F © i
Z ZI£E) to improve its customer services. At the same time, based on the theme
of “As Good As Ever, Start from the Heart” (32452047 » #¢ [10>] H13%), Kaisa
Prosperity launched annual quality enhancement campaigns targeting projects
under management, and delineated four stages of quality enhancement actions
under “Spring Breeze in Kaisa” (/& /K{E), "Construction with Sincerity” (#5
FER{E), “Best Customer Experience” (i & 21E) and “Home with Kaisa” (&
L% E), continuing to carry out rejuvenation actions in various aspects such
as park greenery, facilities, service standards and pedestrian and vehicular
circulation. These special campaigns maintained and beautified the landscaping
of the community, renovated, repaired and upgraded the equipment and facilities
of the community, strengthened the supervision and management of training and
assessment, and paid return visits for various services of the community, so as to
continuously improve the living environment and experience.

“Spring Breeze in Kaisa” refers to our environmental quality enhancement and
rejuvenation works centered around replanting of green plants, landscape design
and highlights creation. Our “Spring Breeze in Kaisa” action completed replanting
of a total of 5,116 green plants, covering an area of 137,348 sq.m; pruned green
plants covering an area of 3,652,897 sq.m.; carried out 2,497 rejuvenation works
amounting to an area of 117,500 sq.m.; and completed 1,544 renovation works
amounting to an area of 55,070 sq.m., highlighting 283 spots with innovative
measures.
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“Construction with Sincerity” refers to the rejuvenation works carried out in the
community to comprehensively enhance the operation quality of equipment and
facilities and to upgrade equipment and facilities for identification of potential
hazards during their operations. At the same time, we have selected certain
projects under management across the country to organize a management open
day campaign in order to allow tenants and property owners to visit property
facilities such as elevator equipment room, water pump room, power generator
room, fire pump room, electricity distribution room and control room, to learn
about the basic operation systems and services in the community, and to
enhance communication and exchange with tenants and property owners. A total
of 21 subsidiaries and 177 projects under management of the Group participated
in the “Construction with Sincerity” which rejuvenated housing building and
public venues amounting to a total of 67,655 sq.m. and repaired and upgraded
strong and weak current and water supply and drainage pipelines amounting to
63,337 meters covering a total of 205 highlighted spots. 81 campaigns such as
equipment room open day were organized and 2,703 standardized renovations of
equipment room were conducted, making property services more standardized
and transparent.
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“Best Customer Experience” refers to the rejuvenated works to continuously
enhance on-site service quality targeting frontline posts, FUN Neighborhood (44
#BFUN) activity, customer satisfaction and environmental quality in both autumn
and winter. It focused on the creation of a demonstration model, provision of
ten convenient services and the enhancement of environmental quality in both
autumn and winter to provide more caring and constant services in terms of
quality regardless of weather or climate change. In 2023, rejuvenated works
to enhance on-site service quality under “Best Customer Experience” involved
our 21 subsidiaries and 201 regular projects. Jiarun Campaign visited 52,151
customers; provided free and convenient services to 257,202 users, replanted
autumn and winter plants amounting to an area of 332,300 sq.m.; and pruned of
autumn and winter plants amounting to an area of 3,278,500 sq.m., highlighting
261 spots and creating 379 demonstration models.
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“Home with Kaisa” refers to the rejuvenated works to enhance property
management services and create a safe, comfortable, harmonious and warm
home for tenants and property owners. We enhanced the quality of our property
management services by focusing on the key objectives of providing standardized
services/making services visible, listening to customers/providing more accurate
services, rejuvenating with quality/making homes more comfortable to live in,
and safeguarding and protecting homes/ensuring homes security. We have set
standards for the three service portals our projects, namely front-desk customer
services, main entrances and parking spaces, ranging from dress code to service
standards, and continued to improve our service standards so that the quality
can be seen. We also conducted regular face-to-face meetings with property
owners to better understand their needs and expectations, so that we can
continuously optimize our service details and make them more precise. We also
conducted rejuvenation works regarding the pedestrian-vehicle traffic flow, and
continuously optimized key touch points, so as to maintain the appearance of
the community. In addition, through conducting military training, fire drills and
riot squad patrols, our order maintenance teams of various projects provided all-
round and meticulous security services to ensure a peaceful home. In 2023, the
“Home with Kaisa” campaign involved our 15 subsidiaries and renovated 73,681
sg.m. of key touch points. The campaign paid visits to 60,002 customers; cleaned
up an area of approximately 69,885 sq.m.; and decorated 574 locations with
nightscape lighting, highlighting 149 spots. We have also been recognized by a
wide variety of property owners.
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“K Series Living” Brings Value-added and Colorful life

The “K Series Living” (/)N\K4E)E) platform is a one-stop smart community service
platform created by Kaisa Prosperity, providing convenient and considerate
property management services online such as online bill payment, reporting
for incidents and repairs, notification, smart parking, smart access control,
etc. Revolving around community living scenes, it also creates products and
brands under K Series Living focusing on living services and asset services, and
integrates property management services with community valued-added services
S0 as to enhance the living experience of property owners.

Since June 2021, Kaisa Prosperity launched the community value-added
service brand named K Series Living under the Group. Adhering to the service
concept of “Fast, High-quality, Value-added and Colorful life”, we have been
expanding service scenarios and continued to create K Series Living product and
service systems, covering various business types such as residential buildings,
commercial buildings and office, stadiums, and public facilities. K Series Living
can be mainly divided into four major segments: (i) K-Space (/J\KZ=f&), (ii)
K-Retail (/NKZ %), (iii) K-Lease & Sale (/]NKFHE), and (iv) K-Decoration (/]
KZEJE). K-Retail has been further refined and divided into various sub-unit
product series: (a) K-Commercial and Office Buildings (/|\K#& &), (b) K-Charging
(/NKFEE), (c) K-Choice Goods (/]\K{E23E), (d) K-Group Buying (/)\KEI§Z), (e)
K-Delivery (/N\KEZR) and (f) K-Cultural Tourism (/]N\K3ZJ). By leveraging the
advantages of integrated fundamental property services, diversified supply
chains and distributed mini warehouse, we continued to improve our community
value-added service capabilities, provide high-quality products and convenient
services, and build a standardized and full-lifecycle service and product system.

In 2023, the K Series Living platform developed an offline experience touchpoint
of K Series Living services. In June, Kaisa Prosperity officially established its "K
Series Living Exhibition Hall”* (/N\KAEJ& & 7~ §B) in Guangzhou, which was an
important milestone for Kaisa Prosperity to actively explore the neighborhood
living services in community and construct a 15-minute convenient urban
living circle. K Series Living Exhibition Hall integrated all-in-one value-added
services such as community group buying, seasonal choices, housekeeping
and maintenance, tourism and rehabilitation, decoration for the entire house,
partial renovation, house rental and sales, asset custody, etc., and realized
the comprehensive integration and upgrade of the product portfolios, covering
community life in all aspects. At the same time, K Series Living Exhibition
Hall has also selected the leading enterprises in the industry to build a one-
stop platform, providing online selection and offline experience to bring better
scenario experience.
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During the year, K Series Living Exhibition Hall successively opened in cities
including Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Huizhou and Foshan, and by which we officially
commenced the establishment of Kaisa Prosperity’s Neighborhood Living Circle.
The Neighborhood Living Circle is a 15-minute convenient urban living circle
with mutual assistance, co-construction and sharing among neighborhood,
which is based on the digital service platform of K Series Living and combined
with community residents and surrounding tenants. It provides rich and
convenient local services for the daily life of residents in Kaisa's community, and
creates a convenient ecology with high-end quality of life, fast and convenient
consumption, meticulous and efficient service and intelligent and innovative
scenarios, so that residents can enjoy diversified convenient services and a
better living environment without leaving home.

Smart property and comprehensive upgrade

Last year, Shenzhen Jiake Intelligent Technology Co. Ltd. (“Jiake Intelligent”)
ORIITHERIE RERHE A R A 7)), a smart solution service provider under
Kaisa Prosperity, officially launched its Jiake Intelligent’s smart integrated
management platform and put it into operation. Leveraging upon technologies
such as SAAS service model, the Internet, cloud computing and mobile big
data, Jiake Intelligent ‘s smart integrated management platform integrates
“construction, management and decision-making”, realizes the whole process
management of projects from project initiation, design, construction to
acceptance, reduces time consumption during the process and capital costs,
improves the coordination, work efficiency and execution capability of various
departments, and provides scientific and decision-making support for project
planning and cost control. Jiake Intelligent also launched unmanned car park
system and its related products. Its self-developed high-altitude parabolic
intelligent monitoring system and related products and Jiake intelligent door lock
products were further developed and upgraded from their original versions.

During the year, Jiake Intelligent further upgraded and expanded its product
system. The unmanned car park system and its related products helped to
achieve cost reduction and efficiency enhancement in property management. Its
self-developed high-altitude parabolic intelligent monitoring system and related
products have been widely installed in various projects and successfully reduced
highthrow incidents happened of these projects during trial operation, which
greatly reduced the human and material resources input for supervision. The
intelligent door lock products were further developed and upgraded from their
original versions with more diversified functions and significantly higher safety
coefficient.
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During the year, Jiake Intelligent has been included in the qualified supplier
database by 389 real estate developers. Currently, Jiake Intelligent continued
to develop the intelligent third-party market. In January 2023, Jiake Intelligent
won the bid for the intelligent works of the “Guiyang Taiyanghu Talent Town”
of Helenbergh Group (SR R&E [EEKEGHAA/NE] BabT
£). In March, Jiake Intelligent won the bid for the intelligent works of “Hefei
Huaan Headquarters Building” (& BEZE 2 # & K JE). In June, Jiake Intelligent
cooperated with Greenland Group to jointly construct the “Chengdu Dafeng
Greenland Town” (FX &P AJBL4%Hb35K) and “Greenland Suining 1958 Cultural
and Creative Industrial Park” (4% b 22219583 Bl & 2 [&) projects, marking
the beginning of cooperation between both parties, and also provided strong
support for strategic cooperation in the future.

Jiake Intelligent has always adhered to the development concepts of “Customer
first, Quality first and Brave to Innovate”, and will strive to develop as an overall
solution service provider for smart cities with agglomerating efforts.

Service Quality and Complaint Handling
As a leading integrated property management service provider in the PRC, Kaisa
Prosperity has been upholding the principle of “satisfying our customer’s needs”
by striving to build a harmonious living environment for our communities. The
Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations under the Civil Code of
the People’s Republic of China ( (R ZE A RLFEI R )LL) ), the Property
Management Regulations ({72 B2 15H) ) and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests ( {1 2
AR FEFIBE & & #EZIREER) ) in relation to the rights pertaining to
property management activities, the formulation and revision of management
contracts and owners’ meeting, and the election of owners’ committee members
which may have a material impact to the properly management industry. We
have formulated a series of policies to improve customers’ satisfaction, including
Guidance on Handling Complaints from Customers of Kaisa Prosperity ( {(fEJK
HEEEBEFIEFEETIEIES])), Guidance on Caring our Customers
of Kaisa Prosperity ((fEJkZEETFEBEZFRII1ETE4E5]) ), Guidance
on Owners’ Satisfaction Assessment of Kaisa Prosperity ( {({EJK ST EE
EFMER BT TIE4E3I]) ), Guidance on Quality Control System Building
of Kaisa Prosperity ((FEREEFEEEEEREBRERTIEESD),
Guidance on Quality Grid Management of Kaisa Prosperity ( {({EJK 332175
B R B4R EIE T3] ) and Guidance on Call Centre Management
System of Kaisa Prosperity ( {(fFEJKZE T S ERF AR LEEHIE) ), 400
Customer Satisfaction Evaluation Methods of Kaisa Prosperity Group ( {fEJK
FEETEBEI0E FimEEHEEEZITE) ), Control and Management
Measures on Risk Relating to Operations of Kaisa Prosperity Group ( {fEJK%
EIF R EEBEREEEERHE) ) and Evaluation Methods for Serwce
Quality Control of Kaisa Prosperity Group ( (=K EXIFEEREREE
E 1) ), etc., which aimed at providing more convenient and thoughtful
services to owners so as to improve the sense of happiness and satisfaction of
our residents and property owners.
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RAEFREE Enhancing customer satisfaction

U NEVMBEERTFPNRIFBERE With the objective of establishing and maintaining good relationship with
B REFN(EKEZHEERF customers, the Group formulated “Guidance on Caring our Customers of Kaisa
f1Z TEFE S )R BBE M =2 RS Prosperity” ((EJREE T EEZFRBIZETEFES]) ) to govern the process
R HEREEPMEELREHE  Hif of assessment of customer satisfaction, expecting to increase satisfaction and
B — Ry @ETIERE loyalty of customers. We implemented a series of caring work including:

RIRE RIErX

Types of caring Method of caring

SHESBE EFIAFHER
Comprehensive customers’ care Door-to-door disinfection and sterilization
FAEE  EREUBRE
Repair of home appliances and home intercoms
BERRARRRREET
Warm reminders of bad and humid weather
BEREHANE EAFHEMN  BSFMHRABRASTHE  BRME  BEEE
Blessings at important festivals, material event notifications, sending emergency notifications
through phone calls, WeChat messages from butler and text

Bt b= R BHWRETH - FEMTEREES
Individual customers’ care Special festivals: themed community cultural events

ERBE  BRME - BREE KB 8E - ) \En%E

Birthday care: WeChat messages from butler, sending text messages, giving congratulations cards,
flowers and small gifts etc

HFEE: FFIBE K VEmE

Pregnancy care: home visits and offering small gifts

FEIERAE - FPINE  XER  BE BREDFE

Marriage care: visiting to congratulate, giving congratulation cards, flowers and settings decoration
etc.

NERE - PHEAEFEREEIMERES - BHE LPINE - SHE

Check-in care: sending text messages or WeChat to residents during the check-in registration,
congratulations and visit and discussions to new residents

KEEIE  AETRENRIEFRHEEIERE - AEM - 2E - MEXEHENTR
BERT B RIEEREMEE

Renovation supervision: offering supervision services during renovation of owners’ flat, notify owners
about the status of renovation via mail, text messages, WeChat or phone calls anytime
SEHBHEE LPIEE  REFERENAERNEDS

Minority care: home visits and explanations in response to their needs based on our ability
BEHREFHEE  FPISR(THRBILEERE)  BE(EZRANMEE)MEF(KE
&b EREE RS E

Key customers’ care: home visits (understanding of their needs and take actions in time), sending text
messages (about key notifications and information) and giving phone calls (big community cultural
events oriented invitations)

FEAR  EHRANBRAZEX - BXE4/ ) MEnEEREAES

School opening care: giving small gifts to students and creating school opening atmosphere on the
day of school opening in the community etc.
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BIEE BIEER

Types of caring Method of caring

EREMRE HEPHEYRERE 2% TEMR - BHER  MEMMENEHLERE

Channel of information Establishment of comprehensive information chain for customers via text messages, notices,
dissemination promotional columns, elevator advertising, WeChat and Weibo

RRRE R RBET)  EEMEMGETERRY - HE BTTRERS

Five major kinds of free services Free knife sharpening: regularly organised knife sharpening services, and self-purchasing services
WHEIBE - REFBAMHE - ERNEEHER  DER(SAMB N RELER
%)

Carpet cleaning: cleaned carpets for customers, but only limited to ordinary dust-proof blankets and
welcome blankets, except for luxury carpets

HEET - BEEI  REE RN REBEEARYEENEREA(ZEE
W AN BAMEE TR AR

Holes drilling for hanging pictures: provided 6mm-12mm drilling holes for hanging pictures and
corresponding plastic expansion screws, except for all kinds of tiles, stone, imitation stone walls
ZHRBABR  BEXEPEL)  MERBTOZEENRTPEATHBEE

Cleaning of air conditioning filter: staff at the property service center provided cleaning services of
air conditioning filters by appointment

IEERTY : BEEFPHR  ARFPRHEERAREEE - HWiEs - DEXBESZVP
PRS- MERBR OB REMHE - RUE - EEFRAIEENAYE - BtbBHEF W
BhR

Wedding services: collected customer needs and provided customers with VIP services such as
decoration in the park, vehicle guidance and welcoming and seeing off; the property service center
must purchase reusable carpets, rainbow bridges, and floral columns and other materials shall be
provided by customers
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BIEE BEER
Types of caring Method of caring
TERERSHE EHEAA

Ten kinds of convenient services Main entrance

ARISH LA A

Front desk of service center

BRIEM : e 8A/MH#gEEIA

Home Toolbox: contains commonly used small repair tools
HEZEEH  1.0REATE

Lightweight climbing ladder: 1.5m herringbone ladder

BORS  ARNEENRRRE

Umbrella lending: straight umbrellas are placed in the umbrella stand
FRFHEE  @BRE TRESENFHEY S

Carts lending: flatbed carts and carts are available for lending
ZINEEATRMA « BLEWE © JAE KIREE 2 TR s ik
Multi-function pumps: with multi-function nozzles such as American
valve and French valve and for balls

BEAEE  SEROKKRER=E

Universal power bank: with three sets of charging cables of various
calibers

FE=EERE - ZRIRTAL - FRE
TRy

Emergency medicine kit: contains bandages, alcohol, medical cotton
swabs, ageratum-liquid, quick-acting heart pills

EMERSRE - REBHE > HEEMEALA
Convenience bags for pets: provides plastic bags for the convenience
of pet owners

EEHGE  SFHERBMEERIRE

Portable needle and thread box: contains various colored threads and
different specifications of needles

EIEH - LB 1508 —+400/Z ETEE

Reading glasses: reading glasses of configurations ranging from +150
degree to +400 degree

ERRE EFELRR &
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Procedures for Handling Complaints from Customers

The Group highly recognizes the importance of our property owner’s satisfaction
and their advices on our products and services. “Guidance on Handling
Complaints from Customers of Kaisa Prosperity” ({EKEZIFEBMES
EFERIE TYE4551) ), "400 Customer Satisfaction Evaluation Methods
of Kaisa Prosperity Group” ((ENXEEFEEIRFHEREEIE
ZZPE%) ) and “Guidance on Call Centre Management System of Kaisa
Prosperity” ( (EJK 2 St S= BRI rh OE IR HIZ ) ) are effective in giving
guidance to the procedures for handling complaints and conducting scientific
and systematic analysis and statistics, giving alerts and directions of service
quality, which helps to reduce and prevent complaints and enhance customers’
satisfaction. The Group requires that after receiving the complaints from our
property owners, the department who receives complaints would pass the case
to the competent departments within 5 minutes. Upon receipt of cases, the
competent department is required to contact the customers within 30 minutes
for preliminary communication and respond to their complaints in 24 hours.
For all kinds of complaints including walk-ins, phone calls, letter, e-mail, APP,
internet, publications, the department who receives complaints require full
record. We would also organize and analyse customers’ complaints regularly,
the analysis covers the reasons, conclusion of experience and lessons, proposals
for rectification measures, pattern of identifying customers’ complaints and
trend analysis, so as to raise standard for handling customer’s complaints while
prevent material complaints and group complaints. During the Reporting Period,
the Group received 59 cases of complaints in relation to services.

Customer Well-Being and Health and Safety

We strictly complied with the laws and regulations such as the “Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China” ((FEIARKFME LR 24 E
%) ), “Fire Prevention Law of PRC" ( (/R 2E A REFNEDEBFIE) ), and the
“Guideline of China Occupational Safety and Health Management System” ( {{&
EL2AEEZELEARIRE) ). We focus on creating and providing a safe
living environment for our owners and customers, a safe, healthy and hygienic
living environment, and implementing our responsibility for production safety.
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Safety Hazard Inspection

In 2023, Kaisa Prosperity carried out the inspection work of hidden hazard under
three major campaigns, namely “100 Days of Safety without Accident”, “No
Accident in Summer Production” and “Keep Ringing the Alarm Bell” to fulfill the
enterprise’s safety responsibility, strengthen safety awareness and promote safe
development. Our operation carried out 12,793 emergency drills and exercises in
fire, burglary, flood control and elevator traps and 8,548 safety training sessions,
handled 87 fire emergencies, prevented and discovered 48 burglary cases, and
handled 80 emergency cases. Economic loss amounting to over RMB7.9 million
was avoided. In total, we received 282 commendation letters and pennants from
government departments, owners and merchants.

Intelligent Security Monitoring

We continue to upgrade our systems through research and development to
improve safety management with efficient intelligent and digital equipment
for real-time monitoring of safety hazards. We provide a safe and efficient
community living experience for landlords, tenants and businesses. In June 2022,
Jiake Intelligent provided an upgraded version of the intelligent security system,
enhancing the implementation of Internet of Things technology combined
with a intelligent building management platform to visually integrate various
subsystems. In the digital management platform to achieve real-time detection
and control of the systems, and set up 24-hour high-definition cameras, infrared
detector equipment in the server room, entrances and exits, parking lots, offices
and other public spaces to detect illegal intrusion of personnel, timely recording
and alarm feedback to help security personnel to understand the actual situation
of unexpected events in a timely manner, control measures in the relevant
areas, rapid handling of events, helping the building to create an intelligent,
safe and convenient office environment. In addition to the public area video
surveillance, perimeter intrusion alarm and other artificial intelligent monitoring,
the intelligent security system is equipped with the new Jiake Wise-Eye Anti-
Dropping Objects from Height Integrated Management System, which traces
the whole incident from the source, realizes 24-hour monitoring of the building,
and can push the real-time alarm information to the intelligent community
management platform through the super brain, helping the property personnel to
deal with the incident quickly and deliver education and persuasion at the first
time, so as to avoid causing serious accidents.
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Customer Data Privacy and Security

In order to keep the information on property owners and residents properly,
the Group has established “Guidance on Management of Property Owners’
Information” ((EEIEEEREIEES])) to standardize measures for
protection of customers’ information. Measures for protection of customers’
privacy include:

e System users who are in possession of information about property owners
and residents are required to change their passwords at least four times a
year,

e Written information about property owners and residents shall be kept by
our delegated employees;

e |Individuals are required to fill in relevant application forms and subject to
approval before accessing to information of property owners and residents;

e Access record shall be documented and traceable;

e |f change of property owners or removal of residents was incurred, the
original information would be destroyed in a timely manner;

e Requirement of our employees to sign a confidentiality agreement before
joining the Group. No information on property owners and residents shall

be disclosed to the external parties by our employees.

During the Reporting Period, there were no complaints on violation of customer’s
privacy or leakage of their information.
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INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Corporate Governance

Kaisa Prosperity strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations, continue to
improve its corporate governance mechanism, improve its corporate governance
structure, continue to enhance corporate value and protect shareholders’
interests with high standards of corporate governance.

Company Management

\We have established a Board of directors composed of property management and
other senior professionals, and have enriched the Board's diversity in terms of
gender, age, and cultural and educational background. As of 31 December 2023,
the Board consists of (9) directors, of which (2) are women and (3) independent
non-executive directors. The overall management of the Company's operation is
vested in the Board. The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Board and the Company’s affairs,
clarifying the management responsibilities of each department, collaborating,
supervising and jointly promoting the regular operation and decision-making of
the Board.

Compliance Operation

Kaisa Prosperity strictly follows the “Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China” ({F2E A RHEFIBIAF)E) ), the “Securities Law of the People’s
Republic of China” ({F#EARLMBEIFEHIE) ) and the regulatory
requirements of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, establishes a listing
compliance system, prepares articles of association, and carries out work related
to information disclosure, risk management and anti-corruption to ensure the
compliance operation of the Company.

\We continue to promote audit and risk prevention and control work, and continue
to strengthen the construction of the compliance system. We have compiled the
““High Pressure Line" of Kaisa Prosperity Group” ((fEJKEEELFEE [SE
#% 1)), which sets the top level requirements for compliance, and requires all
employees to comply with it, and has prepared and revised the relevant rules
and regulations to provide regulatory support. The Company has developed
and adopted a number of risk management procedures and guidelines and
has clarified operational authority and responsibilities through key business
processes and departmental functions. The Board is responsible for the
Company's risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
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Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations

We attach importance to communication with our shareholders to protect their
rights and interests. We will hold annual general meetings and extraordinary
general meetings in accordance with our articles of association and the Listing
Rules to enable shareholders to exercise their rights and express their views
through general meetings. In addition, the Capital Markets Business Module of
the Administration and Human Resources Department is responsible for investor
relations to ensure two-way communication, respond to shareholders’ and public
enquiries and protect the interests of small and medium-sized investors to meet
the relevant requirements for sustainable development.

Information Disclosure

We also adhere to a high standard of disclosure in accordance with relevant
regulatory requirements for information disclosure, and make true, accurate,
complete and compliant disclosures of special factual circumstances on a
regular basis or at any time as far as reasonably practicable, so that the public
has equal, timely and effective access to the information disclosed. In respect
of information disclosure for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
adhered to the established timely, efficient and high standards and ensured
that relevant information was disclosed in a timely manner through the Stock
Exchange, the Company's official website and other channels.

Selection of suppliers and supply chain risk management

The steady business development of the Group relies on support from various
suppliers and partners. Therefore, we place significant importance on supply
chain management, so as to maintain our service quality and trading integrity. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group has partnered with a total of 2,409 suppliers.
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RAHER Engagement of suppliers

HMBIE TCEREETSBEHBEERS We prepared “Kaisa Prosperity Procurement Management System” ({FEJk %3
EORSERBITANMGEEDENEG AR TFEE RS IR HE) ) to govern procurement behaviors and safeguard our
@ o BMAEREE TIERBAH - AFAE legal rights. Our procurement adheres to the tender and procurement principles
AR RIEERERA of openness, fairness and transparency:

REERA

Procurement principles

R AU A

Descriptions for principles

RRRA

Tender principle

B RA

Transparent and governing principles

RERA

Confidentiality principles

=SSR

Qualification pre-assessment principles

AFEBFEERORBEREIER - NMEASER R REITIER - BB BR®
RIBRIENERE TR - BEIRR RETERREEKRE -
For procurements which are qualified for tender, no reason or way shall be allowed to
avoid tendering. Division of procurement and change of method of procurement are strictly
prohibited. Monopolised projects shall be strictly reviewed and verified.

HARBEREREBESEANRFRER - HEEAIRE - FIE2HREIE
WA BRBIRETHIE - BRREEL - NN AR AR - BEIRABHNZF
BERR) - AX BB BRI TIE - WIRERERBRAEEFT - AT ET
B ERBLIENZTBEMAL -

All procurements must be conducted in an open and transparent manner within the terms of
reference and black-box practice is strictly prohibited. All personnel involved in procurements
must strictly comply with the regulations, uphold a high standard of integrity and not to use
their positions for their own benefit. Any persons having an interest with the tenderer must
abstain themselves from taking part in the procurement and report to the Group's procurement
department. No one shall interrupt or exert influence on the objectivity and fairness of the
procurement.

RIEXM - RIFAGE  FARMENRESAEE - FAEF - RIRE - 184
BEERIARSHIERTER  BERESCTE U TNMFEE - LBBEIN
BREE BTG - EREHTHA - MEREMNABE - BRSAHETER
M e

Information about tendering document, tenderer, private base price or estimated price,
evaluation criteria, bid price, relevant tender conference or resolution shall be kept strictly
confidential. Regardless of whether or not the bid is finalized, such information shall not be
disclosed. Confidential information other than his/her responsibilities shall not be collected.
No one shall disclose, imply or undertake its intention to the bid before the bid is approved
and finalized.

HABELBBRENERES - RA EWAKBREREBSNMBaZR - A&
REHERIET AT 2HERR

Suppliers shall pass a strict review for qualification. In principle, suppliers shall be jointly
inspected by the procurement and business department. They can take part in tendering
subject to the passing of the qualification review.
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RABR A RAIBEA

Procurement principles Descriptions for principles

FAOHF - ABEEPERRA EREAMEREAR  BEE/REL =K - ZROHFHNRE - EREHBEE
SKEETIRT - EESIEEESEAPIE -

Sufficient competition and reasonable and Regardless of ways of procurement, it shall be done by adhering to comparison between

lowest bid wins principle shops and sufficient competition. Under the prerequisite of meeting the requirements of
tender, we would choose a reasonably low price for successful bidding.

RIS E R IRA BRAREENZDARBBERE FEETRBALSZREABSETRE
BBAEHRE  RSREREMUE -

Prioritized sizable procurement principles  We would proactively launch strategic procurement of the Group and each of its subsidiaries,
yearly centralized procurement and joint and centralized procurement for various projects. On
the basis of price in exchange for volume, effectiveness and efficiency of procurement shall
be enhanced

oM —IR A RSB AP R B INEMIBIRE RN —E O - ERBERBARZSR—1E - —
Bt o HIRNBEXX - B HESSEEENUASR BN - BIRBIREEHR
A FEARREMAEE - BRRAEEXRGE —[ERIEA - SEMERE - WK
MREFIERA - MIRBIRAREHATFE - ARANMERRE - ARHEME
BB AT SRABPT -

External standardized principles As the sole window for releasing tender information to other external parties, the procurement
department shall ensure the standardization and consistency of the information released.
Tender documents, response to enquiries and additional information shall be released in
a standardized way. Information in respect of tender process shall be sent via Company
e-mails, and each time it shall be sent to one tenderer, or encrypted groups and carbon
copy to department heads. The correspondence arisen in the process of tendering shall be
documented. Flow of internal corporate information shall be directly sent from the department
which owns the information to the department which requires the information.

HEEERA REBREEREEAL @ YRR HFEETHER - RE - SUNEERRRLT
MBREENER -

Safeguarding creditworthiness principles ~ The tendering process shall be objective and fair, during which communication and feedback
between us and the supplier shall be maintained in a timely manner such that we would build
and safeguard a sound tendering creditworthiness and image of the Company.

AEMR A REB@IZRXXM - Rk - B £2FER(BREFUE) - HAERBER
& REPETTEIBNEE  WRVAEEUREFEMERREERTA
Z2ENRRE - TRAEERE - RENTH - AESRFRLEHABER
RERBBIZAPRR BRI ALEPML

Retrospective principle Information comprising documents, records, mails and minutes (including electronic files)
involved in the procurement process shall be organized and filed upon the completion of
the tendering and in a timely manner while paper filing and electronic filing management
platforms shall be put in place. In case of special cases such as emergency, for projects
which are not applicable to relevant procedures and requirements, descriptions shall be given
at the time of review to ensure transparency for decision-making and retrospectivity in the
procurement process.



98

&

RIE - HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RERTE

AEBERBEREEZFEERERER
EEESDEHBEMETIE  RMISR
BE R EREAM IS - TR AEE
BRSETRSEMER - BEMHAEEN
i BISERBRANEERES - LA
B EEAEEITETARE  BEKER
TFRA - RPITERHERRIREE R
MR BXEEEFE  LEEEMUE
3CARE - ERERE R EMEIRIE R RRA]
BEEXM - BREGEEBLELRE
SERER ©

BEFE

BB IRA O - MR R AR
RESNEEMMANBERREELER
Bt AEBEEBAERERBITHERE
B BHMgELEEANBEERES
RIELFER - INEBBHIRBEIRERRE
(1S014001) ~ & = & 2 88 K32 75 (1S09001) &
B ¥ L2 (2R EEE ZRE((1S045001)) »
REBRAREAEGNITEEENHER
18T MELRZE - MRAEHEERIREMN
ME - ERMRSHEEZRERR - BER
RLZEMAIFHELERHENK o

EIKEERIFEBAER/A T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED  “F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Selection of suppliers

The Group selects suppliers based on the Guidance on Supplier Inspection
of Kaisa Prosperity Group ({fEJKEF T LB ERERIEEES]) ).
During the selection process, we visit the supplier’s offices, processing plants
or production workshops to conduct on-site inspections on their equipment,
on-site management and production size etc., in order to make judgements
on their scale, management levels and positions in the industry. We will also
request them to provide copies of business licenses, certificates of professional
qualifications, permits of safety production, 3C authentication, authentication
of energy saving and other recognized certificates in relation to management
systems to ensure they comply with relevant laws and regulations in relation to
society and environment.

Green procurement

To further enhance green procurement, raise the awareness of environmental
protection of suppliers and incentivize suppliers to contribute to sustainable
development, the Group encourages our cooperative suppliers to perform social
and environmental responsibilities. We favor suppliers who demonstrate their
commitment to sustainability. Suppliers awarded 1S014001, 1S09001 and
1S045001 or national-level or industry-level qualification will be considered
with higher priority, to ensure that the materials, products and services
provided by cooperative suppliers meet the requirements of national standards
of environmental protection, occupational health and safety and sustainable
development.
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Ongoing monitoring of suppliers’ performance

The Group has a well-established supplier management mechanism. In the
process of close cooperation with suppliers, the Group collected information on
their regular performance in environmental, social and governance aspects and
the latest corporate information. Targeting at different cooperation scenarios,
three types of continuous monitoring and evaluation are in place for suppliers,
including real-time evaluation, post-performance evaluation, and annual
evaluation. Risk sources that may have a significant and negative impact on
cooperation between both parties are identified and effectively dealt with in a
timely manner:

e |mmediate assessment: assessment on material violation against laws
or behaviors against rules, safety of quality incidents, malicious claims,
malicious default and incidents which brought media negative impact;

e Assessment upon performance of obligations: conducted assessments
on suppliers upon performance of obligations in strategic cooperation or
centralized procurement agreements or contracts; and

e Yearly assessment: At the end of each year, we conduct assessment on
suppliers who perform obligations or complete performance obligations
during the year. We rate suppliers in accordance with execution of
supplier's schedule, the degree of cooperation, occupational safety, onsite
quality control, customers satisfaction, environmental protection and
material events involving safety and responsibility. If suppliers are rated
unqualified, the supplier shall not be selected within the Group

If a new supplier wishes to be listed in the trial supplier database of the Group,
it must fill in the Supplier Basic Information Questionnaire ( i & B A (5
B &R ) and provide corresponding qualification documents. The Group
will go through a strict systematic inspection and evaluation in ensuring that
the supplier has in place an appropriate system and service capabilities and
is capable to comply to abide by the integrity cooperation agreement with the
Group, which may lay a foundation for the subsequent cooperation.
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Anti-corruption and money laundering

Kaisa Prosperity strictly complies with laws and regulations in relation to
business ethics and prohibition of operators to reach monopoly agreement or to
abuse the predominant position in the market which will pose material impact
to our business under “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China” ({HFZEARHLMBE R TIEEFEFE) ), “Interim Provisions on
Prohibiting Commercial Bribery” ( {BEPAZE 1L B S BEERTT RAVEITTARTED )
and “Anti-Monopoly Law of the People’s Republic of China” (/% AR 270
B [z BB Y% ) ). To operate business without any negative impact, our “System
of Management of Gifts Due to Business Reasons for Employees of Kaisa Group
Holdings” ((fEJREEBIER E THRARIEEIRHIE) ) offers guidelines
in relation to the receipt of interests of employees and clearly governs how to
handle the receipt of gifts (either cash or non-cash):

e When our employees offer or receive any business gifts or entertainment
to or from any persons (including the existing or future suppliers, vendors
or contractors), they shall make appropriate judgments and take actions
prudently to avoid the possibility of affecting objective business decisions;

e  Employees shall not demand and receive interests or gifts from any
external business partners in any form unless such interest is nominal or
has no cash value such as promational goods or advertisement souvenirs
or festive gifts such as gift baskets and flowers which has optimal values
and is available for use;

e Gifts received or being offered to customers and its value is higher than a
nominal value shall be approved by the primary responsible person of the
department and senior management in details by reporting in the form of
“business offer/personal interest”; and

e Under no circumstances shall employees claim “red packets” from any
external business partners.

If any behaviors against the guidelines or other rules is found, the person who
violates the rules will receive disciplinary punishments. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not breach any laws and regulations in relation to anti-
corruption, nor dismiss or punish its staff disciplinarily due to anti-corruption
cases, or terminate or discontinue contracts with its business partners due to
non-compliance behaviors in relation to bribery.
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Besides, the Group also requires its staff to sign “Agreement on Integrity and
Cooperation” ({F&/2& 1E1#5%) ) advocating a corporate culture of integrity
and honesty, to prevent conflicts of interests and misconducts including bribery,
blackmail, mischief and money laundering, so as to ensure the compliance with
relevant regulations, principles and requirements in relation to occupational
ethics in the agreement. In addition to promoting WeChat Public Accounts
Whistleblowing Platform, the Group implements an awarding policy to whistle
blower to combat all misconducts of corruption and bribery.

During the Reporting Period, we provided 721 directors and employees of
subsidiaries with 24 times and a total of 42 hours of anti-bureaucratic and
anti-corruption special training to increase awareness of integrity among our
employees and educate them the ethical standard they should upheld in the
performance of their duties. We also provided 1,601 employees of the Group
and its subsidiaries with 52 hours of professional ethical thematic training to
enhance the staff’s understanding of integrity work and ethics, as well as the
latest development of anti-corruption and integrity through role-playing and other
means.

Protecting intellectual property rights

The Group strictly abides by relevant requirements of laws and regulations in
relation to protection of intellectual property rights under “Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China” ({HF#E A R EFNBIZERE %) ), “Trademark
Law of the People’s Republic of China" (AP 2E A R HEAE pH1Z5%) ) and
“Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( (P EE A R ELFMBEEFE) ),
in order to protect the interests of the Group and its customers. We require our
staff to endeavor to guarantee and develop intellectual property rights of the
Group while totally respect legal intellectual property rights of third parties. We
also offer intellectual property rights management education to management
personnel of each department to raise their awareness towards the protection of
intellectual property rights. In addition, the Group would also sign confidentiality
agreement and competition prohibition agreement with its staff and suppliers
to prevent the infringement of intellectual property rights. Employees who are
suspected of violating relevant rules of intellectual property rights of the Group
shall be under investigation and the Group would take appropriate actions to
this.
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Xl. GATHERING SHIMMER, GIVING BACK TO THE

SOCIETY

Management concepts

Kaisa Prosperity has been enthusiastic about public welfare. Qver the years, it
has been committed to participating in and donating to various social welfare
undertakings such as education, medical care and environmental protection,
actively fulfilling its social responsibilities, and seeking to promote community
communication and integration, responding to people’s aspirations and needs for
a better life with practical actions. Kaisa Prosperity strictly abides by the “Charity
Law of the People’s Republic of China” ({#F#E AR £ FEZEZ%X) ) and
the “Public Welfare Donations Law of the People's Republic of China” ( {1 &£
ARHEMBEIAZEEZEIBIEEL) ). At the same time, we have implemented
internal policies such as the “Work Procedures in Relation to Community
Culture and Community Organization of Kaisa Prosperity Group” ( {(fEJK %3
o £ B4t R X {b Ko at B AR A% TEHE 1) ) and the “Policy of Community
Cultural Activities of Kaisa Prosperity” ( {{EJK 232 tF 4t 1@ SXLSEED) ) to
regulate the work procedures in relation to community culture and community
organization, and develop and promote the community environmental civilization
of Kaisa Prosperity with an aim of enhancing the property owners’ awareness of
civilization, so as to develop a caring culture in the neighborhood.

In 2023, Kaisa Prosperity incorporated social charity, community communication
and integration and community culture into property management services and
launched “Prosperity FUN"(3£4FFUN) as Kaisa Prosperity’s brand of community
culture, covering a full range of scenarios, age groups, and portfolios under four
major segments, namely FUN Life (42/FFUN), FUN Neighborhood (Z4#BFUN),
FUN Charity (242 FUN) and FUN Sharing (£4=FUN), with both humanistic
sentiments and community characteristics, serving beautiful China with a series
of themed events and multiple scenarios. In August, the brand of Prosperity
FUN was newly upgraded and a new IP image “Kaisa FUN" (£/J\FUN) was
released. Through the interpretation of scenarios of four service systems and
revolving around different fields of community culture, vertical delicate services
were provided which brought a human touch to community culture, established
emotional connection of services, and deepened experience of the events,
creating a better life together.
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In 2023, Kaisa Prosperity donated a total of RMB41,310.16 for environment,
culture, vulnerable groups and public welfare in relation to convenience to
citizens, and the total hours of volunteer services provided by us amounted to
15,698 hours with 6,992 volunteers.

Community communication and integration

Community services

Kaisa Prosperity actively carried out community cultural activities, and advocated
the concept of providing fun for the children and security for the elderly and
awakening the passion of the youth (20 B F%E - EZEFEE - SFHH
). Kaisa Prosperity took practical actions to care for the elderly and care
about the growth of teenagers and build a community service system with Kaisa
Prosperity’s own distinctive features, thereby creating a beautiful community
with harmonious neighborhood, and enhancing the happiness of property owners.
Through a series of themed activities under “Prosperity Convention” (F4f /A
#9), “Kaisa's Neighbors” ({£#B1£%%) and “Starry Shining Community” (E9 5%
4T 24 4LE), we organized various kinds of community sports and cultural
activities and competitions to share love, create happiness, stimulate community
vitality, and create an atmosphere in the community in which neighborhoods are
like family.

Case

“Moving Forward under the Sunshine in Colorful Summer” (t ¥ E B %
3¢ A11T) Summer Camp Activity

From 10 to 15 July 2023, Kaisa Prosperity launched the “Moving Forward under
the Sunshine in Colorful Summer” summer camp activity for all children aged
7-12 in the regular residential projects under its management. The content of the
activity covered the concept of time, team spirit building, safety and civilization
education, emergency knowledge training, military skills training, and sharing of
campers’ diaries, etc. A centralized performance was held on 16 July, and nearly
600 young homeowners participated in the summer camp.
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Case

“Prosperity FUN — The 4th Beautiful Home Youth Cultural Arts Festival”
(E$FFUN— S U R I E [ T 2 F UL EATET ) Activity

We value the all-round development of young people and actively encourage
them to shape the community culture that characterizes Kaisa Prosperity. 2019
saw the opening of the first Kaisa Prosperity Youth Cultural Arts Festival, which
encouraged children to use their imaginations and unlimited creativity to express
their own ideas of what Beautiful Home should be like. The fourth Youth Cultural
Arts Festival of Kaisa Prosperity was held in 2023, covering 71 cities across
the country and lasting for 30 days. We received 1,471 works submissions,
and after voting by more than 100,000 people and selection by a professional
judging panel, a total of 159 artworks were selected for 1st, 2nd and 3rd prizes
and awards for outstanding works in the painting, calligraphy and photography
categories.
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BIERE Environmental protection

NEF—BETESZERIR  BHNERENX The Group has always promoted a civilized and healthy lifestyle characterized by
AERAEET - SEETL e iRk environmental friendliness and resource conservation to create a better social
R AR - and ecological environment in the community.

ES] Case

[EMe ER-—WFFEE > HIEIFE “Kaisa’'s Neighbors ¢ Planting a New Life Together Tree Planting Day”
EEEEEE (TERB o £F —BFFEE > H ] FHE5E ] B HE) Activity

43 Health

BE—FEF FEXEEFEHERHZFE Starting from the previous year, Kaisa Prosperity launched Kaisa's Neighbors
HE @AW FREL o EFHIEEED Free Health Clinic Activity under its annual social charity projects, organizing
EE) - FREREE  RISH2ED - K health talks and on-site consultations. During the year, we continued to organize
FE - BMEERE TRDERIHEERE health talks and free clinic activities in collaboration with different enterprises to
BEREDETE  HHEBETBIILEN help property owners develop correct health knowledge and good living habits,
FRERAN - BRITFWEEEE - EREE 50 as to bring health into the community.
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Case

“Sleep in Spring Program” (&5t &) Free Clinic Activity

In April 2023, the Commercial Property Service Centre of Guangzhou Kaisa Plaza,
in conjunction with the Guangzhou Building Economy Promotion Association (&
INIEF AR 2) and a number of enterprises in the building, organized a
free clinic activity with the theme of “Sleep in Spring Program”, which provided
free medical check-ups and consultation services to office tenants targeting their
sub-health and sleep health problems.

EY)
(432 - A FRERER I RDED

202387 « RYIF]EMERBHOEAEF
mMEARFERBGHLO  HEEHEARLR
BHAE -  EREF - ARBRAIEEE
EUEAR =ZHESHRE TN H£Z &
RiEFEEE ] ATENERBI T EES -
WHEBE BT EENRERENMS -

Case

“Jointly Building and Sharing a Healthy Longgang” (372 - 3 Ff2EEEE
i) Free Clinic Activity

In August 2023, Shenzhen Mocha Town's Property Service Center, in conjunction
with Longgang District Public Health Service Center, Buji Street Public Service
Office and Longgang District Second People’s Hospital Mocha Town Community
Health Center launched a health science popularization garden party with the
theme of “Jointly Building and Sharing a Healthy Longgang” in the Phase IlI
Square of Mocha Town community, to help the property owners acquire correct
health knowledge.
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Participation in charity and volunteering activities

Since 2012, Kaisa Prosperity proposed the “Serving Beautiful China — Firefly
Plan” (ARTS o SERBH B — & A &8 512).We have organized more than 1,000
micro charitable campaigns in various forms, such as supporting education,
supporting the elderly, precise poverty alleviation and environmental protection,
to spread love to every corner of the society. The Firefly Plan is a long-term
strategy of the Group’s charitable endeavors and a part of the Group’s corporate
responsibility. During year, the Firefly Plan has been included in the service scope
of our FUN Charity service system. Through micro-charitable practice under a
series of themed activities of the Firefly Plan, we have been working together
to care for both ecological and human well-being, to spread love to every corner
and to brighten up a beautiful life and serve beautiful China.

Case

“Prosperity FUN e Yijiaren” (X #FFUN e =1 A) Firefly Plan

In 2023, Kaisa Prosperity together with One Foundation launched a Firefly Plan
charitable activity with the theme of Prosperity FUN e Yijiaren in 18 cities across
China. It aimed to get closer to autism through small acts of kindness and help
families with members suffering from autism with understanding and support.
Up to now, the cumulative number of events organized reached 46, the number
of participants reached 2,474, and 1,443 charity thank-you letters were issued.
In September 2023, Firefly Plan joined 99 Giving Day, a charitable activity for all,
and the “Warm Winter Campaign” (9% %<7 7%) of One Foundation, which called
for donation of “love” supplies to send warmth and care to children in need.
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A3 Charity

ESL] Case

[BRAMABESRILZEIZENELH “Harmonious Living Environment and Overflow of Love in Beijiao” (@i
A B E 34t Z) Charity Color Run

20235 A21H - (EIKEEFB S EEE L On 21 May 2023, Kaisa Prosperity assisted in the first charity color run of Junlan

EEEBELEEETERIBMAEE R community in Beijiao Town in Shunde with the theme of Harmonious Living

B |BENFEW  EEFHNK - 8RER Environment and Overflow of Love in Beijiao. Participants joined the 8-kilometer

TWERE  BHEEL  BEE B1TH color run, showed their love, embraced health, and contributed to the cause of

BAWREBEMNENE B TEESESE charity with actions to help the city become more beautiful.

4 o
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T2 BARENERME

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)"

BIBEW Environmental Performance

ARENERERTE BARENER

No. of KPIs KPIs

ALAEERR Y AE/LPINO) Fr 960.60 505.84 689.02

A1.1 Emissions? Nitrogen oxides (NO,) Kilograms
wE (S0, Fr 372.00 165.69 219.72
Sulfur oxides (SO,) Kilograms
AR A FERLYI(PM10) T 68.02 65.84 136.36
Inhalable particulate matter Kilograms
(PM10)
AR (PM2.5) T 70.27 68.02 129.09
Fine particulate matter (PM2.5  Kilograms
—&{LHRICO) Fr 1,694.50 1,640.29 3,710.55
Carbon monoxide (CO) Kilograms
e L& YIHC) T 221.96 214.86 462.97
Hydrocarbon (HC) Kilograms

M2BEREE: HE BEEEENRE
REBHEN

A1.2 Greenhouse Scope 1: Direct emissions

gas emissions® of greenhouse gas
R ET KRV IRES —EHE ENE 162,61 166.65 124.62

R B SR

Boiler for maintaining constant
temperature for the swimming
pool

F R 7= 38 I B SR8

Heat generating boiler of the
central air conditioner

tons of CO,e

ZELhE =0 484.02 409.96 557.40
tons of COe

BT REMRRML LIRS ENE 10.44 5.50 6.69
Gas stoves in staff canteens tons of CO,e
EXRE —RUbIRE SNE 110.18 98.30 174.73
Emergency generators tons of COe
BEMARCERERANGRE —SREEN 7.44 5.54 8.48

e IR RIS EE M
Weeding machines, chainsaws
and leaf blowers used for
landscaping management

tons of CO,e
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BRERERFR

No. of KPIs

REENIER
KPIs

EIKEERIFEBAER/A T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED  “F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NEAE

Official vehicles

53

Greenhouse gas removals from
newly planted trees
HECSmESHNE
HHE

Direct carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions in
total
BEECSmESHNE
EREZE

Intensity of direct carbon
dioxide equivalent
emissions*

HE2 HEELENEE
REEHERK

Scope 2: Indirect emissions
of greenhouse gas
HNEETE 75

Electricity purchased®
HNEB R RE

Steam purchased®

SN BESR

Coal gas purchased
SNEBRIAR,

Natural gas purchased
BE-S(REEHRE
BRE

Indirect carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions in total
BE—E(mEEHRE
BHERE

Intensity of indirect
carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions’

—RULIRE WA
tons of COe
—RACHKE BWE

tons of COe
—SULIRE 20

tons of COe

“E(LiE RN,
BEFIA

tons of CO,e/million
square meters

&L E 2
tons of COe
—E IR E 2N
tons of CO,e
“EbiE =0
tons of COe
—E L E 2
tons of COe
—&a1tH Jf?.é =l

tons of COe

—EfcixEEN,
BEFIK

tons of CO,g/million
square meters

122.78

73.14

824.33

8.06

104,421.27

0.01

1.82

8.64

104,431.74

1,020.94

118.85

48.97

755.82

8.00

112,583.39

0.01

1,78

12.49

112,595.89

1,191.26

182.72

49.17

996.99

11.04

120,476.62

0.02

5.76

10.29

120,492.68

1,334.80
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EE3: HtEEEEN
BEREHEN

Scope 3: Other indirect
emissions of greenhouse
gas

ZEIMIERE AR
Waste paper discarded ina
landfill

BT ERPIRE IR R K 57K
Ry M HFEEYE /78
Electricity consumed by
governmental authorities for
handling drinking water and
sewage®

B B RARMLE SN T
Business air travel by
employees
Hittf—EtmEEH
b €%z 356

Other indirect carbon
dioxide equivalent
emissions in total
HitBE—SemEEH
BBHERERE
Intensity of other indirect
carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions®

BERBAHKE
Greenhouse gas emissions
in total
RERBATHE
Greenhouse gas emissions in
total
RERBESRERE

Intensity of greenhouse gas
emissions’®

—RACHE B
tons of COe

ZELhE =08

tons of COe

ALK E S
tons of COe

—AHE 2N
tons of CO,e
—RLE 8N
EERST

tons of CO,e/million
square meters

—&fbhxE EM
tons of COe

—RALE 8N
BEFTK

tons of CO,e/million
square meters

94.38

683.93

107.37

885.68

8.66

106,141.75

1,037.66

92.50 82.00
670.52 691.10
51.13 74.98
814.15 848.09
8.61 9.40
114,165.86 122,337.76
1,207.87 1,355.24
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BEEMERFE BEREEMER

No. of KPIs KPIs
MIFEEEY BEERYRE U 1.33 1.05 1.06
A1.3 Hazardous Total hazardous waste tons
waste
BEREEMRETR =R 0.01 0.01 0.01
Intensity of total hazardous tons/million square
waste meters
AMABEEEY BEEEVRE WA 1.35 1.32 1.25
A1.4 Non-hazardous  Total non-hazardous waste tons
waste
BEEEVRETE W, B &THK 0.01 0.01 0.01
Intensity of total non-hazardous  tons/million square
waste meters
A218E8R HiZmRERE
A2.1 Energy Direct energy consumption
RAR FEAF L 5.515.34 2,413.00 3,416.90
Natural gas ‘000 kWh
AL AR AR ERYN:S 26.46 24.38 29,63
Liquefied petroleum gas ‘000 kWh
e R ER 431.34 384.65 683.69
Diesel '000 kWh
p:i TFEF LA 737.35 549.05 678.27
Gasoline '000 kWh
BHEREREE FETF B 6,710.49 3,371.08 4,808.49
Direct energy consumption ‘000 kWh
EERREREY RERTES 65.60 35.67 53.27
BEFHK
Intensity of direct energy ‘000 kWh/million square

consumption™ meters
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A225E K&
A2.2 Water
consumption

R E
Indirect energy
consumption
SNEE )

Electricity purchased
HMNBER

Steam purchased

SN BESR,

Coal gas purchased
HNBRAR,

Natural gas purchased
AR EE
Indirect energy consumption in
total

R RERE

Intensity of indirect energy
consumption™

HERAER
Energy consumption in total
RERAFEE
Energy consumption in total

RERREERREY

Intensity of energy
consumption™

FEKE

Total water consumption

FEKIRE

Intensity of water consumption

FHETFEL
000 kWh
TETRE
000 kWh
FHETEF
000 kWh
FHETEL#
000 kWh
THETEL#
000 kWh

FETF R,
BEFHK

‘000 kWh/million square
meters

FHEF A

‘000 kWh
FEFTER,
BETFHA

‘000 kWh/million square
meters

MK

cubic meters

SRS BEFETK
cubic meters/million
square meters

118,203.02

1.12

28.94

63.73

118,296.81

1,156.48

125,007.30

1,222.09

967,890.00

9,462.22

127,442.61 146,485.75
0.83 0.75

29.59 37.49
62.46 51.49
127,535.49 146,575.49
1,349.32 1,623.75
130,906.57 151,383.98
1,384.99 1,677.01
948,912.00 978,036.70
10,039.48 10,834.57
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RIS PR E IR R AR RO PR
DRBBE A EMAOCINATEFRS - i
BRERME M RRARERER
EHIES) - REHRBABRI -

PREAH2RMRHEBEMECEREM
T RRFE I TR RS R BEROE B
R-RERBEHH(017FIR) - BREE
REARCRNEENHETE(BIETEN
18) ) (&1 2= S=30mg/m?) ~ BHA#ERHE
HREL ¢ http://w.astro.berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel_
energy.html ~ B &L #7551 /B < Emission factors used
in the estimations of emissions from combustion) *
EREneEMERNE)BAERRE
BIR 5 R (= /5 L RS F D
(AP-42 - EHIR) ~ FEARKMBIRFRE
Ea GBI B B KR )5 2 &
mERTIEE (B1T) ~ PEARAMBEIRE
RENHRESLERBRRERMS M
BOCER AU ) B 55 2 W B R BR (B S ORI 8 75 0% (R
BERNER))REBFIITREIRRRES
(RI=AMNERERRE) -

BEEESE  INEREAMNERARHN ZEt
e EHREELRBRREREMER
& B © hitp://w.astro.berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel_
energy.html FIE B @A WCOR EREZE 8
F o CERERRERE)DEMACGER
JHFESI R ERBBENGTETIA) -

BEE_SIREENNANETRE=8&
AR EEHNE - AFREEEH6IIA
B&mEE -

hEAEERFREFRE2ERRER
AP E B FEMNQNIFERIIEE hE
B EREEGIRET)

HOSPTEA M E RREEBRFNCE
EREHRE  BIRET018)5ESFE -

i — A i E EFREINER R =%
TREREEBHNE - AFEEENT0E
B#&mEE -
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Unless otherwise stated, the emission factors used in calculating the environmental key
performance indicators in this report are based on the “How to prepare an ESG Report? —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The calculation of the emission is based on the “Air pollutant emission inventory based on
local emission source surveys in Hangzhou, China — Acta Scientiae Circumstantiae ( ¢ E 7%
i 5 RRABEOMMTRRSRDERUEERR - REBBER) Q017F
hiz) )" (2017 Edition) published by research institutions, the “Production and supply industry of
electric power (Including industrial boilers) ((ZA £ EFIEETTE (BIETEHRE) )
(sulphur content S = 30mg/m?) published by the State Environmental Protection Administration,
the conversion factors provided by scientific research institutions: http://w.astro.berkeley.
edu/~wright/fuel_energy.html, the “Emission factors used in the estimations of emissions from
combustion” published by Statistics Norway, the Project CLEAN AR ( (B ¥ =R 4IZE) ), the
business guidance published by Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, the Manual for Air
Pollutant Emission Factors ( {Z= 5,5 ¥ BE R 2T i) ) (AP-42, the 5th Edition) published
by United States Environmental Protection Agency, the Technical Guidelines for the Compilation
of Air Pollutant Emission Lists for Road Vehicles (Trial) ( (& B #4 B) B8 K &5 LW HE G &
B iTHER (377) )) issued by the Ministry of Environmental Protection of the People’s
Republic of China, Limits and Measurement Methods for Emission From Light-duty Vehicles (China
VI) ( CRAVAE S 2 HERE SO & 770 (R BIZE7SBE B ) ) jointly published by
the Ministry of Environmental Protection and the General Administration of Quality Supervision,
Inspection and Quarantine of China and the Study of Air Quality in the Pearl River Delta Region
published by the Environmental Protection Department of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

The calculation of the carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from direct production, coal gas
purchased and natural gas purchased is based on the conversion factors provided by scientific
research institutions: http://w.astro.berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel_energy.html, and the References
for Calculating Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Energy Consumption ({BEJR)EFESIFERR
EREYERGTE T E) ) as set out in the internationally adopted Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
Enterprise Accounting and Reporting Standards ( (R =R AEZE 2 X « hEZE RERE
REE) ).

Intensity of direct carbon dioxide equivalent emissions = Direct carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions + aggregate area of the 673 projects under management during the year.

The data of emission factors for the power grids in Mainland China is based on the “China’s
Regional Power Grids Baseline Emission Factors for Emission Reduction Projects in 2019 €(2019
FERHEEPERISEMELEZEMETF) )" issued by the National Development
and Reform Commission.

The calculation of emissions from steam is based on the Greenhouse Gas Reporting: Conversion
Factors 2018 ( CEERELHR 4 : BIRE T2018) ) issued by the government of the United
Kingdom.

Intensity of indirect carbon dioxide equivalent emissions = Indirect carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions + aggregate area of the 720 projects under management during the year.
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EFENEERKESKSEMFEEED
23065028328 F FLES - MABKBEEEN
TER PR EGR AR08 T 52,/ T RES o

HibME — S ESBEAERERE =
HEE _StRESHRE - AFEES
H972018 B 48 T7E o

BRERBEHNERE - RERBEHNE

AEEEERI0AEE AEE -

REREEEBRETEARLM ER R
(fr & aefEat B im A (GB/T 2589-2008) B & A
FRIBHA IS IR A0SR EN - http://w.astro.
berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel_energy.html #7751 & 15
ﬁ °

HEGEFRRERE -—EEGEREE -AFER
ERIT201B B EETE -

IR ERFER E = HEEREE - A FEE
& HY72078 B A2 E o

HERBERERE —ERERE - AFEEE
H972018 B 48 T7E o
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Electricity consumed per unit for handling drinking water and sewage in the PRC was set as 0.6
and 0.28328 kilowatt hours, and the default emission factor for electricity purchased in the PRC
was set as 0.8 kilograms/kilowatt hour.

Intensity of other indirect carbon dioxide equivalent emissions = Other indirect carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions + aggregate area of the 720 projects under management during the year.

10 Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions = Greenhouse gas emissions in total + aggregate area
of the 720 projects under management during the year.

Intensity of energy consumption is calculated based on the conversion factors set out at the
General Rules for Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption ( (4R & BERERTEIREAI) )
(GB/T 2589-2008), the national standard of the People’s Republic of China, and the conversion
factors provided by scientific research institutions: http://w.astro.berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel_
energy.html.

Intensity of direct energy consumption = direct energy consumption + aggregate area of the 720
projects under management during the year.

Intensity of indirect energy consumption = indirect energy consumption + aggregate area of the
720 projects under management during the year.

Intensity of energy consumption = energy consumption in total + aggregate area of the 720
projects under management during the year.
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HEEN Social Performance

BREREEFR BRENER 20234

No. of KPIs KPIs 2023

BLIEEA&H RERELED

B1.1 Total number of By types of employment

employees
g A 9,524 9216 6,499
Full-time person
M A RE RE RE
Part-time person Nil Nil Nil
RiLEE D
By geographical region
BERANER A 2,095 2,027 3,361

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao person
Greater Bay Area

R=Aivlm A 6,205 5,997 920
Yangtze River Delta region person

Frh A 454 429 392
Central China person

o] A 532 540 1,220
Western China person

R A 238 223 606
Bohai Economic Rim person

Rt Bl &l o

By gender

£l 2 A 5619 5,396 4,323
Male person

i A 3,905 3,820 2,176
Female person

RFRE D

By age

30FRAT A 1,714 1,645 3,100
30 or below person

31-405% A 2,027 1,856 2,202
31-40 person

41-505%, A 1,593 1,588 897
41-50 person

515%3A A 4,190 4127 300

51 or above person
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BREEMEEFR BREENER 20234F 2022

No. of KPIs KPIs 2023 2022

B1.2{E B8Rk b & REEELES

B1.2 Employee turnover rate” By types of employment
a3 % 38 38 46
Full-time %
O % RE RE RE
Part-time % Nil Nil Nil
R EE S
By geographical region
BERA LR % 45 44 47
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao %
Greater Bay Area
R=AE % 36 37 49
Yangtze River Delta region %
Frh % 37 42 57
Central China %
By % 34 55 40
Western China %
RSB % 33 35 36
Bohai Economic Rim %
RERIE D
By gender
S % 39 39 46
Male %
7 % 37 37 45
Female %
RERED
By age
30ARBLLA TS % 51 50 47
30 or below %
31-405%, % 33 34 46
31-40 %
41-505% % 32 31 43
41-50 %
51pR3k LA £ % 36 37 38

51 or above %
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BRERIEZEFR BRRENIERZR 20224F
No. of KPIs KPIs y1773
B21E I THMAEK EITHaIAS A gl 2 RE
[ gz Number of work-related fatalities ~ person Nil Nil
B2.1 Number and rate of ET TR ABLL R % RAE 0.02 BAE
work-related fatalities Rate of work-related fatalities % Nil Nil
B22RTHEATEHE RIBEEXTIERH = 2,032 2,556 13
B2.2 Number of working days  Number of working days lost due  day
lost due to work injury to work injury
BIZIEEE AL ZiIMEEB L % 100 98 71
B3.1 Percentage of trained Percentage of trained employees %
employees™
gzl
By gender
ES % 100 94 60
Male %
z % 100 104 95
Female %
RERE D
By positions
ERE % 100 135 74
Management %
HEET % 100 161 80
Middle-level employee %
AEBET % 100 96 71

Entry-level employee %
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BREENEEFR BREENER 20234F 2022
No. of KPIs KPIs 2023 2022
Bl2BHEETHEZIIN BREBTAEIN /JNEF 28 29 15
TR IR ER
B3.2 Average training hours Average training hours hour
completed per employee completed per employee
Rt Bl &l o
By gender
S /NEF 30 30 12
Male hour
=g N 26 26 20
Female hour
RERE D
By positions
EEfE N 70 74 18
Management hour
HEET INEF 133 13 24
Middle-level employee hour
ZEEET AN 25 26 14
Entry-level employee hour
B5.1{EFER &R HEBBERESS
B5.1 Number of suppliers Number of suppliers by
geographical region
BERNER ] 999 932 864

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao supplier
Greater Bay Area

=AM i 500 382 373
Yangtze River Delta region supplier
Frp i 239 266 247
Central China supplier
e} i 292 265 306
Western China supplier
REEBE i 184 144 186
Bohai Economic Rim supplier
&b i 195 347 163
Northeast China supplier
#=if & gl pgs] 46

North China supplier Nil Nil
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BRERERFR

No. of KPIs

B6.2BA R & m K AR #5 Y
RFEE

B6.2 Number of complaints
about products and services

BILIESRARH

B7.1 Legal cases in relation
to corruption

B8.1%:B82it BiRE

B8.1 & B8.2 Community
investment

EIKEERIFEBAER/A T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED  “F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BREMER
KPIs

BB E m KRB H
RFHE

Number of complaints about
products and services received

REWEEENEITHD
ELS:0E g

Number of legal cases in relation
to corruption filed and concluded
MEERETRENRE
bet=r

Anti-corruption training provided
to directors and staff'”

BRESZRE I ERERE
2D

Total amount of donation
(by core contribution area)
BE

Education

REEH

Environmental concerns
BIEK

Labour demand

E953

Health

X1t

Culture

S9EVEEER

Vulnerable groups
HEREMERRE
Donation of community anti-
epidemic materials

A

Others

BRI

Total amount of donation

St

case

S

case

I NEE

hour

TAR®
RMB
TAR®
RMB
AR
RMB
TTARE
RMB
TTAR®
RMB
TTAR®
RMB
TTARY
RMB

TAR®
RMB
AR
RMB

Nil

42

2,200

15,061

11,249

5,100

41,310

Nil

46

56,607

51

Nil

21

56,226
7478
g

Nil

28,800

10,140

11,500

66,679
2H

Nil
180,823
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BRENIBERFR BRENIEE 2023 20225
No. of KPIs KPls 2023 2022
ETRBARE(ZREIE
BiEiES5)

Total number of hours for
providing voluntary services
(by core contribution area)

BE N 1,368 BH RE
Education hour Nil Nil
BEEHE /)NBF 1,730 1,737 357
Environmental concerns hour
2R NS 5,774 416 340
Health hour
Xt /)NBF 1,998 291 588
Culture hour

g5 N 276 RE RE
Sports hour Nil Nil
S5 EERS /INEF 2,909 383 60
Vulnerable groups hour
2 EZIF T Ee N gl BA 54,000
Participation in anti-epidemic hour Nil Nil
work'®

BIFEK NS 584 96 RE
Labour demand hour Nil
Hth /NBF 1,239 RE RE
Others hour Nil Nil
B LRBARH /)NBF 15,878 2922 55,345
Total number of hours for hour

providing voluntary services
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RRENIEEFE RARENIEE 20224 20215
No. of KPIs KPls 2022 2021
ETHRKEAABIREEE
eSS )

Total number of people
received the voluntary
services (by core contribution

area)

%A A 476 RE RE
Education person Nil Nil
RIREE A 607 1,078 357
Environmental concerns person

2R A 3327 44 340
Health person

x4k A 666 228 588
Culture person

85 A 92 RE RE
Sports person Nil Nil
9P ERE A 1,672 268 60
Vulnerable groups person

2 EEET {Eo A RE RE 6,000
Participation in anti-epidemic person Nil Nil

work?

BIEK TN 193 30 RE
Labour demand hour Nil
Hh /N 495 gl peEs]
Others hour Nil Nil
ETRBEAE A 7528 1,648 7,345
Total number of people person

received the voluntary
services
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HEORESE - BIEET TR RMLIE
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The calculation of employee turnover rate is: employee turnover rate=number of
employees turnover for the year/(number of employees as at the end of the year + number
of employees turnover for the year).

Percentage of employees trained = Number of employees in the relevant category who
attended training throughout the year/number of employees in the relevant category.
The percentage of employees trained may be greater than 100% because the number
of employees who attended training throughout the year includes some transferred or
terminated employees.

In 2023 and 2022, the anti-corruption training was provided by the Group to directors and
employees, including employees at assistant to manager level or above and directors
of the subsidiaries. The anti-corruption training hours in 2021 included employees at
manager level or above and directors of the subsidiaries, while the anti-corruption training
hours in 2020 only counted for employees at manager level or above and directors of the
headquarter.

In 2023 and 2022, no relevant data was collected. In 2021, the anti-epidemic work
included nucleic acid test activities, mainly managing flow of people, order maintenance
and QR code scanning.
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1z B RRIRIE - HEREQIHREE Xl HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
SI¥ER GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE INDEX
FTEHE - EH  —REERBEEENEE WEER Ef fRE

Disclosure Section/
Explanation

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status

ARIR
A. Environmental
FEEAT : BERY
Aspect Al: Emissions
—RHE ERE
BRERIORZREEHEN - MKRLHEHEES - BEREZTEEDH
EEE
(a) BE &
(b) BTHETABERZENERERNROINER -
General disclosure Disclosed
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to exhaust and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and soil, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes, etc.

+ - EHESE - BITIRER

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

BSRERUEIRALY  BERRESE AR B BBUR - EHE + - EEGEE - BITRR
T ARERIEEHE

KPIA1.1 Types of emissions and respective emission data. Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

+ - REGEE - BITRER

MBERIERAL?  BEER(EE)REEREE(BED)RERBYN BRE

E(UNEETE) R(ER)BE(MAGESE
i - FIERIETHE) o

KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse Disclosed
gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, if appropriate,

intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

T= - BREMEEHE

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)
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TEHEE - BFH - —REERBRENER WERER B RE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status Explanation

BREMIEERANZ  FESASEEDEAE (CAETE)R(ER) BRE + - ERESE - BITRR -
BE(MAGESSEM - §IEREASE) T ERERUEEHE
KPI'A1.3 Hazardous wastes generated in total (in tonnes) and, if ~ Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, AND ENVIRONMENTAL
per facility). PROTECTION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
BRERIEIRAIL  PIELEREEEDEE (UNEGE)R(ER) BXRE + - EEGEE  BITRR -
BE(WMABESEN - BEZXMAH) T BARBERIEENE
KPIA1.4 Non-hazardous wastes generated in total (in tonnes) Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
and, if appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production AND ENVIRONMENTAL
volume, per facility). PROTECTION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
FRERIEIEAS HIFTEIVOREE R AEIELEFEHR BRE + - BEGESE - BITRIR
REEY B -
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps takento  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
achieve them. AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
BRERUEIRALE HIEBAEREEEEMNTE - KA BERE + - BEGES - BITRIR
RN BUREE B AR R ARERE L B IR 25
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set AND ENVIRONMENTAL

and steps taken to achieve them. PROTECTION
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IERHER - BEH —REBERBREANESR BERER -

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status Explanation

[EHEA2 : EREA

Aspect A2: Use of

Resources

— MR HEER [ + - BEGES - BITRIR
BRUERER(BIERER « KEREMEMED) R

Bt & - BRAANEE - #1788 EF  BFRES-

General disclosure Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw AND ENVIRONMENTAL
materials. PROTECTION

Note: Resources may be used for production, storage, transportation, buildings, electronic
equipment, etc.

BRERUEIEA2) BB EER SHEEER(NE - A EEE + - EEGESE - BITRR
M RFEE(ATFETERRE) REE (G T BRERUEEHE
ESBA - §EREHE)

KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity AND ENVIRONMENTAL
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). PROTECTION

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
FRENIEIEA22  BFEKERFE(WMNGES S - BHERET DHER - EHGES - BITIRIR
#) - T BRERUERHE
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
production volume, per facility). AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
BRERIEIRA2ZS  RUPFETVREERER MR B R REIEL DR + - EHGES - BITRIR
BIRFTEREN A P8R
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
steps taken to achieve them. AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
BRERIEIRAZL  HICREVEROR R A ERME - URATE]  BERE - ERGESE - BITIRIR
SERK G BIR R AE RIS L B 1R P EREREY
KPI'A2.4 Description of issue in sourcing water, water efficiency ~ Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
target(s) and steps taken to achieve them. AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
FRAENIEIZA2S BN GFTAeRMENEE (UM E) R(nE TEA BMEERRSRBEME
R)BEEEMEE - BIE A - PTLALLRRSR B RUE
STEANRBFIRER -
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Not applicable Our operations do not involve
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit the use of packaging materials.
produced. Therefore, this KPI is not

applicable to our business.
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status Explanation

[EHA3 : RERRREIR

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

— MR HEER [ RBGEE - BITIRIR
BIREITABIRBERAABEREKNERZEHNBUR -
General disclosure Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and AND ENVIRONMENTAL
natural resources. PROTECTION
FRERIEIRASl  HAEBEBHRBERARAABERNEATZER CBERE + - BEGES - BITRIR
EREREEEETENTH -
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
environment and natural resources and the actions taken AND ENVIRONMENTAL
to manage them. PROTECTION

[ETEAS : RIREL
Aspect A4: Climate Change

— MR [t + - EEGESE - BITIRIR

BRI REHEARAIEGHETAEEYENERRREBETNK

% o

General disclosure Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which AND ENVIRONMENTAL

have impact, and those which may impact, the issuer. PROTECTION

FRENIEIEA  HEABERAIREGHBTAEAZENEARR CRE + - EEGESE - BITIRIR
RMEREEE - REHITE -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the AND ENVIRONMENTAL

issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. PROTECTION
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status Explanation

BALE

B. Social

EEREIER

Employment and Labor Practices

FEMEB1 : fE(%

Aspect B1: Employment

—RR IR ERE N RAABA - B
ERAFM LR - BERET - TERE - BY - FERe 2

£~ RIBAR AR B A0 8 R AEF R -

(a) B R

(b) BTHETAGERZENRBERRROINER -

General disclosure Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
Information on: WIN SITUATION

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BASEREIRBIY RIER - EBREAR (2 BEEER)  Fikdhl BERE N RABRE - EERHF -
Kl &5 1) B BR8N - T BERERUEEHNE

KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.g., full Disclosed VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
time or part-time), age group and geographical region. WIN SITUATION

XI.OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
BSENIEIRBI2  RMR - FRARIMREISHWEERKALE - BIRE T BRERUEEHNE
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Disclosed XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
geographical region. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status Explanation

[EmB2 : #FERZE
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

— R [ N AR - R
FARELZ2TIERERREREEMEBENREN

(a) BE s &

(b) BTHETARERZENHBEZRRBONER -

General disclosure Disclosed VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
Information on: WIN SITUATION

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BRENIEIRBL]  BEZF(BEERFE)SFEAITHNHAR CEE s AR - EE R
Kb . T BARERUEEHNE

KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work related fatalities occurred in Disclosed VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
each of the past three years including the reporting year. WIN SITUATION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
FENIEIEB22 AL GIEATIEAS - EEE N RARE - ERHE -
T BARERUEEHNE
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
FARANIEIEB23 FHMLPTERANM R 2R - ARERE  BEE s AR - B R
MITREERTTE »
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-

adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. WIN SITUATION
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Disclosure

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status

B e
Section/
Explanation

fEMEB3 : #RERIEI

Aspect B3: Development and Training

— R BRE
BEARE S BT TIEBE A AH SRR - WiliEINES -
General disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
waork. Description of training activities.

Disclosed

AR RURINEESEN(ERERRE  FREEE BRE
F)EPNFIEEBSLL ©

KPI'B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Disclosed
employee category (e.g., senior management, middle
management).

FRENIEIEB2 RURIREEENES BEREETKZIE BERE
SRR -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Disclosed
gender and employee category.

[ETEBS : 35 TR

Aspect B4: Labor standards

—ARBEE B

A IEET s TH)

(a) BE &

(b) BFHEITAGEAZ BB ERIROINER -

General disclosure Disclosed

Information on:

(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing use of child labour or forced
labour.
FRENIEIEBL MR BEELNEEAREET REHY BRE
T o
KPI'B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices  Disclosed

to avoid child and forced labour.

RMERIRERIENRERE BB TR B8

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

FASEAA M FE17B4.2

Disclosed

N RARAE - EBHE

VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

N AARA - ERHER
= BIRARRBURIRHE
VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

N AARA - ERER -
= BIRARRBURIRRE
VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

N RARAE - ERAR

VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

N AARAE - EBHE

VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION
N AARA RS

VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status Explanation

EEED

Operating Practices
fETEBS : HAEHEEE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

—MRBEE [ T BREKE  AaRE

ERHEEHNRIE I RERBGER

General disclosure Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,

Policies on managing the environmental and social risks of the supply chain. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

FRERUEIEBS MR E DA HEMEE - B T BRREE - ARTE
T BRERURIEHNE

KPI'B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)

RASRAE IR0 MBI AHEEMEN  mARTARIE CSRE T BREKE  AaRTE
Pl S e - LARBRENHNITRER
iz

KPI'B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
number of suppliers where the practices are being COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored. REGULATIONS

RASRAEEIRB0.3 HHABRMEAIHEREEERGNRERMERE SERE T RREE - SRPE
BREVEH] - LARAERANTIT MBS ITE o

KPI'B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
implemented and monitored. REGULATIONS

BRERIEIRB.A HEREHERREEZARRERNMRE BEERE T BREREE - ARSPA
BB - ANAERAEIT MBI E »

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmental  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
preferable products and services when selecting COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND

suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. REGULATIONS
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Disclosure
Status

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of
Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

)
Section/
Explanation

[EmB6 : EmEE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

—RRIREE

ERAMREERMRENERELZS BE  BERLBEEURE

ROTER

(a) B K

(b) BTHETABERTENERERNROINER -

General disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and
privacy matters in relation to products and services provided and methods
of redress.

BASE 4B M E15B6.1

Disclosed

EEXCEXEMEHT AL REZRIEMIMm
AR E DL

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

BEREANERLRGOEGRRE AREEINE - ERE

NiE A
KPI BB.1 Not applicable

BRSE 4R W5 157B6.2

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Disclosed
received and how they are dealt with.
BASRAEIEIRB6.3 HE B A SRS A BAE A BB - EE

KPI'B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Not applicable
protecting intellectual property rights.

FARAENIEIRB64  HEIE 2REIRE RERBYIRT TE A

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Not applicable
procedures.

BARAERIEIEBES  HUEBEBBRRERLBECK - URERER BRE
TRERTE -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Disclosed

policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

N RmHRE - RHIRT

[X. DEEP CULTIVATION OF
QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

IR B BUE R AR RN
IR -

This KPI is not applicable to our
business.

N XM mE - BERE
T BERERUEEHNE
IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF
QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

N AmE - RIIRS
IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF
QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

IR B RUE R T AN
PIEERTS -

This KPI is not applicable to our
business.

T BRERE  BRTE

X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status Explanation

fEmEBT : RES
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

— MR HEER EHE T BREREE - ARSPA
BREAN LR - BR - MG BEN ¢
(a) B R
(b) BTHETAGEATENBBERLIROINER -
General disclosure Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
Information on: COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
(a) the policies; and REGULATIONS
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BRENIEIRE) REBRMHAHBITASHESRETVCDELN COEE T REEE  AHTE
BISRARMRBE REFAARR - T BARERUEEHNE
KPI'B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
practices brought against the issuer or its employees COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of the REGULATIONS
cases. XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)
BRENIEIRBT.2 MBS R RBER WA RE ERE T BREREKE - AR
RITE -
KPI'B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
BENIEIREI3  HlmMERRE ITRHNRESE - ERE T BREKE AR
KPI'B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
directors and staff. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status Explanation

[EMEBS : HERE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

— MR HEER EHE +— BB BEME
BRANMR2ERTREEMEHRFIENBRREER IS EEL

%@ | = B ER

General disclosure Disclosed XI. GATHERING SHIMMER,
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities GIVING BACK TO THE SQCIETY
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the

communities” interests.

FRENIEIEESY EFEREAE(NHME c BREE - HIFK . BEER +— - ERHCE - BfghE
f2pE - Xt - B8F

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g., education, Disclosed XI. GATHERING SHIMMER,
environmental concerns, labor needs, health, culture and GIVING BACK TO THE SQCIETY
sports).

BREDUEIRR2 HEEIHBAMBAER(INS ERERE) [ +— - ERML - BfEE

+= - BRRAERBUEIEE

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or time) to the focus ~ Disclosed XI. GATHERING SHIMMER,

area. GIVING BACK TO THE SQOCIETY

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)
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TEEAER

EREETEBBER AR ([EHRZEREF I A
AR EREMBARGHE AEE]) 22
S([EEE ) BNMGBRKINEEERR

# o

EZERA - SKFNEEERREHR AN
SERMHERMREARRARR(TRER])#
@ IR EBE - BIE B R MBERIA KR
RITERERHEMMNEEBEE -

ARARPRFACEEAKFINEERER
- BPNRSEEERNBEN - EFEH
ERNEBTEEERENNRARGFNEEE
AER  TEAMEE  AABBERREER
RABSETH  URHEEENREERE -

EER
ARA—HEBTEKFNEERER -EFER
AR EREARR  EERSHENERE
REZ - UREHREAMORERMABPEE -
EECEEARAEXERARRNATRE
It - WEMEITRHE - ARBREEBIER
BARFERBEAEREREEEERZKKEAE
HREAER - KRR EREAEANEEREE
REXBORE - AELEET  URKRRE
YRENS  c EFERBERNBHARR D
XERRERARREARM -

ARBCDHRAEEHARIAERRAES L
MARR(T EWRA DS AENEEERT
AI([EEERFA ) AEEEEATRIHRA
Ko sPRIGRC »

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (“Kaisa
Prosperity” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is
committed to maintaining high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential in providing
a framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving high corporate
governance standards to enhance corporate performance and accountability. The Board
will strive to uphold the principles of corporate governance and adopt sound corporate
governance practices to meet the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas
such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. An internal corporate governance policy was adopted by the
Board aiming at providing greater transparency, quality of disclosure as well
as more effective risk and internal control. The execution and enforcement
of the Company’s corporate governance system is monitored by the Board
with regular assessments. The Company believes that its commitment to
high-standard practices will translate into long-term value and ultimately maximise
returns to shareholders. The Company’s management pledges to build long-
term interests for shareholders via, for example, conducting business in a socially
responsible and professional manner. The Board continues to monitor and review the
Company's corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).
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(A) EEE (A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEAK Board Composition
HITES: Executive Directors:
BEg A (FE) Mr. LIAO Chuangiang (Chairman)
BN I (7T ABE) Ms. MOU Zhaohui (Chief executive officer)
s P Mr. LI Haiming
HEERE Mr. ZHAQ Jianhua

SRR B S (R20234E7 12 HEZE ()
S B S (202348 25 HHEZE ()
TR SEHE (R20234E7 H 12 H BHTE)

BYFHITES
Elzish e
FEGrL
BROE S5 4

SRR RS A (RN 2023ET R N2AEE T A
WITEE)DES LR R EE3.09D KT
BARBIEALTRHTAEENEEE
R WHAAMK2023F7 138 ER TR E
B SR T E B E R A EE MR
R UHERFEHAAEALEMETAZEEN
BT -

FOERE A (RN 20238 A B EZ T A
WMITEE) D KIS TR B EE3.09DIEFT I
BARBIEALTEHTAEENEEE
B WA A M 20234F8 A28 8 15 ]
BRI SR T W BB E R I EE MR
R UWERFERAEALMETAZTEEN
EIE o

ARREERSREEENEEFBERE
RAFRIEZRSREEAR ] - &
AEPTRBEESN - BARBFORA - AR
AEFELEREEE A EEAEwBRE
FR(BREPE - 25 REIEMEAH
&)

HZE202BF12A3NBILFE - ARBHA
AMEEERES T ORIV NFEERE
53 - AT FTE AN K e o

R2023F 128318 - EFemNELERA
B BENTESEEREE(ER) &
g (TTHRE) - ZEBEE - R
EhA  BEMEERIEBLE - AR
B IEMITERREMEE  BESL L
MEOREE - EESHEREERANA
RYEIE o

Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan (appointed on 12 July 2023)
Mr. XIE Binhong (appointed on 25 August 2023)
Mr. NIE Qiang (resigned on 12 July 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LIU Hongbai

Ms. MA Xiumin

Mr. CHEN Bin

Mr. Kwok Hiu Kwan, who was appointed as an Executive Director on 12 July
2023, obtained the legal advice applicable to him as a director of a listed issuer
as referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules and understood the possible
consequences of making any false statement or giving any false information
on 13 July 2023, and confirmed he understood his obligations as a director of a
listed issuer.

Mr. Xie Binhong, who was appointed as an Executive Director on 25 August
2023, obtained the legal advice applicable to him as a director of a listed issuer
as referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules and understood the possible
consequences of making any false statement or giving any false information on
28 August 2023, and confirmed he understood his obligations as a director of a
listed issuer.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company
are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the such section, to the best knowledge of
the Company, there are no other relationships (including financial, business,
family or other material relationships) among the directors and senior
management of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the company secretary of the Company
confirmed that he had received not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his knowledge and skills.

As of 31 December 2023, the Board consisted of nine Directors including Mr.
LIAO Chuangiang (Chairman), Ms. MOU Zhaohui (Chief executive officer), Mr.
LI Haiming, Mr. ZHAO Jianhua, Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan, and Mr. XIE Binhong as
the executive Directors, and Mr. LIU Hongbai, Ms. MA Xiumin and Mr. CHEN
Bin as the independent non-executive Directors. The overall management of the
Company's operation is vested in the Board.
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Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board takes on the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall
strategies, risk management and internal control systems, and monitor the
performance of the senior executives. The Directors have to make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information about
the Company so that they can discharge their duties and responsibilities as
Directors. In particular, through regular Board meetings and receipt of regular
financial and business updates, all Directors are kept abreast of the conduct,
business activities and development, as well as regulatory updates applicable to
the Company.

Liahility insurance for Directors and members of the senior management of the
Company was maintained by the Company with coverage for any legal liabilities
which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of the executive Directors of the Company along
with other senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and
conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and
senior executives meet regularly to review the performance of the businesses
of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operational decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where management should report back,
and will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that
they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Compliance With the Model Code for Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 of the
Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms
than the Model Code for securities transactions by the relevant employees of the
Group, who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to paragraph C.2.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix C3 of the
Listing Rules, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, in order to reinforce their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility, Mr. LIAO Chuangiang acted as Chairman of the
Company and Ms. MOU Zhaohui acted as Chief Executive Officer.

The chairman plays a leadership role and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with the good corporate governance
practice adopted by the Company. He is also responsible for instilling corporate
culture and developing strategic plans for the Company.

Under code provisions C.2.2 and C.2.3 of the CG Code, the chairman would
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and would be responsible for ensuring that Directors receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner.

On the other hand, the chief executive officer primarily focuses on developing
and implementing objectives and policies approved and delegated by the
Board. The chief executive officer is also responsible for the Group’s day-to-day
management and operations and the formulation of the organisation structure,
control systems and internal procedures and processes of the Company for the
Board's approval.

Under the leadership of Mr. Liao, the Board works efficiently and performs its
responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues discussed in a timely manner.
In addition, as all major decisions are made in consultation with members of
the Board and relevant Board committee, and there are three independent non-
executive Directors on the Board offering independent perspective, the Board
is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure
sufficient balance of powers within the Board. The Board shall nevertheless
review the structure and composition of the Board from time to time in light of
prevailing circumstances, to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
practices of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board by
virtue of their independent judgement and their views carry significant weight in
the Board's decision. They bring an impartial view on the Company’s strategies,
performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and have
provided their professional advice to the Board.

The Board also considers that the independent non-executive Directors can
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategies, results
and management so as to safeguard the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of a listed
issuer must include at least three independent non-executive Directors. Pursuant
to Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,at least one of the independent non-executive
directors have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors of a listed issuer must represent at least
one-third of the Board of such listed issuer, during the period from the Listing
Date to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with Rules
3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

Mechanism to Ensure Board Independence

The Company has in place mechanisms to ensure independent views and input
are available to the Board. The Board shall at all times comprise at least three
independent non-executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the
Board, such that there is always a strong element of independence on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement. Each independent non-
executive Director is required to provide an annual confirmation of his/her
independence to the Company and the Nomination Committee of the Company
is responsible to assess the independence and time commitment of each
independent non-executive Director at least annually.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, are given
equal opportunity and channels to communicate and express their views to the
Board and have separate and independent access to the management of the
Group in order to make informed decisions. To facilitate proper discharge of their
duties, all the Directors are entitled to seek advice from the company secretary
of the Company or, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional
advice at the Company's expense. The chairman of the Board will hold meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors without the involvement of other
Directors at least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than by written resolutions. Such Director will be required to declare his/her
interests before the meeting and abstain from voting and not counted towards
the quorum on the relevant resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors
who, and whose associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the
Board meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the mechanisms are effective in
ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the Board during the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of communications. Meeting agenda
for regular meetings are set after consultation with the Chairman. All Directors
are given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda.

At least 14 days’ notice will be given for a regular Board meeting to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice will be given.

All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to the matters in issue
in advance before the meetings and have the opportunity to include matters in
the agenda for Board meetings. They can separately get access to the senior
executives and the company secretary at all time and may seek independent
professional advice at the Company's expense. Minutes of board meetings and
meetings of Board committees are kept by the company secretary and such
minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.5 of the CG Code, minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board committees record in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes
of Board meetings were sent to all the Directors for their comment and record
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the Board meeting was
held.

Other than regular meetings, the Chairman also meets with non-executive
Directors (including Independent non-executive Directors) without the presence
of executive Directors, to facilitate an open discussion among the non-executive
Directors on issues relating to the Group.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.7 of the Code, if a substantial shareholder or
a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board
which the Board has determined to be material, the matter would be dealt with
by way of a physical meeting, rather than a written resolution. Independent non-
executive Directors who have no material interest in the transaction would be
present at such Board meeting.

The Board procedures are in compliance with the articles of associations of the
Company (the “Articles”), as well as relevant rules and regulations.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company for
a specific term of three years. Such term is subject to his/her re-election by the
Company at an annual general meeting (“AGM") upon retirement. The Articles
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the
Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the members of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Besides,
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles, at every AGM of the Company, one third of the
Directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and being eligible offer themselves for re-election.

The members of the Company may, at any general meetings convened and
held in accordance with the Articles, remove a Director at any time before
the expiration of his period of office notwithstanding anything contrary in the
Articles or in any agreement between the Company and such Director.

Training and Support for Directors

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each newly
appointed Director or alternative Director would receive an induction package
covering the Group's businesses and the statutory regulatory obligations of a
director of a listed company. The Group also provided briefings and other training
to develop and refresh Directors” knowledge and skills. The Group continuously
updates Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance
notes are issued to Directors and senior management, where appropriate, to
ensure awareness of best corporate governance practices.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment and subsequently,
necessary briefing and professional development to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.
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According to paragraph C.1.4 of the CG code as set out in Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules, Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills that enable the
Directors to discharge their duties properly. All Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

Prior to the Listing Date, all Directors have been given the relevant guideline
materials regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors and duty of disclosure
of interests. In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
updates will be provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, all the Directors had participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways of attending
the director training webcast series organized by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and/or attending trainings organized by professional firm and/or reading
materials relevant to the Company's businesses or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy by setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

There were two female Directors and one female senior management during
the year ended 31 December 2023. The Board aims to maintain at least the
current level of female representation and will strive to achieve a balanced
gender diversity based on stakeholders' expectations and best practices with
the ultimate goal of increasing the proportion of female members over time
as and when suitable candidates are identified. The Board believes that the
current composition of the Board satisfies the Company’s specific needs for
gender diversity. The Company will also ensure that there is gender diversity
when recruiting staff at mid to senior level of the Group so that it will have a
pipeline of female senior management and potential successors to the Board in
the future. The Board will regularly review its policies and procedures for board
diversity, taking into account relevant data and feedback from stakeholders, and
will take appropriate action as needed to ensure that it is achieving its gender
diversity goals.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had 12,713 employees in total comprising of
approximately 8,985 males and 3,728 females (that is, a male-to-female ratio of
7.1:2.9).
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During the year, after the annual review of the implementation and effectiveness
of the Board Diversity Policy, the Board is satisfied that the Board Diversity Policy
has been properly implemented and is effective.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Board and the Company'’s affairs. All Board
committees are established with defined written terms of reference which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
eXpense.

Nomination Committee and policy

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for, among other things,
considering and recommending to the Board suitably qualified persons to become
the member of the Board and is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board on a regular basis and as required.

Its written terms of reference cover recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors, evaluation of Board composition and the management
of Board succession with reference to certain guidelines as endorsed by the
Committee. These guidelines include appropriate professional knowledge
and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, and
time commitments of members. The Nomination Committee will select and
recommend candidates for directorship after consideration of referrals and
engagement of external recruitment professionals, when necessary.

The composition of the Nomination Committee during the financial year under
review was as follows:

Chairman:
Mr. LIAO Chuangiang, executive Director

Members:

Mr. LIU Hongbai, independent non-executive Director
Ms. MA Xiumin, independent non-executive Director
Mr. CHEN Bin, independent non-executive Director
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The Nomination Committee was primarily responsible for the following duties:

e toreview the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of our Board;

e toidentify, select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship, and ensure the diversity of the
Board members;

e  toassess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;

e to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Directors and succession
planning for the Directors;

e toreview the nomination policy, Board diversity policy and any measurable
objectives for implementing such policies as may be adopted by the Board
from time to time and to review the progress on achieving the objectives.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for, among other things, the review
and supervision of the Group's financial reporting process, internal controls and
review of the Company’s financial statements. Their written terms of reference
are in line with the provisions under the CG Code and explains the role and the
authority delegated to the Audit Committee by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Audit Committee during the
financial year under review was as follows:

Chairman:
Mr. CHEN Bin, independent non-executive Director

Members:
Mr. LIU Hongbai, independent non-executive Director
Ms. MA Xiumin, independent non-executive Director
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The Audit Committee was primarily responsible for the following duties:

to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any issues related to its
resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; and to discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to supply
non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity
that is under common control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally;

to report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

to review and monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

to oversee the Company'’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems;

to review the Company's financial controls, and unless expressly addressed
by a separate risk committee of the Board, or by the Board itself, to review
the Company’s risk management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have effective systems. The discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions;
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e to consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to such findings;

e to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Company and its subsidiaries;

e to review the external auditor's management letter, any material queries
raised by the auditor to the management in respect of the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
response, and to ensure that the Board provides a timely response to the
issues raised;

e toreview the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems and the internal audit function;

e todevelop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

e  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

e toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors of the Company;

e to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report of the Company; and

e toreview the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year.

The Audit Committee had been reviewed the audited annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023, and discussed matters such as
auditing, risk management, internal control and financial statements with the
management of the Company and the external auditors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for, among other
things, making recommendations to the Directors’ remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by
the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level of their remuneration and
compensation are reasonable. Their written terms of reference are in line with
the provisions of the Code. Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the
remuneration committee would make available its terms of reference, explaining
its role and the authority delegated to it by the Board. The composition of the
Remuneration Committee during the financial year under review was as follows:

Chairman:
Mr. LIU Hongbai, independent non-executive Director

Members:

Mr. LIAO Chuangiang, executive Director

Ms. MA Xiumin, independent non-executive Director
Mr. CHEN Bin, independent non-executive Director

The Remuneration Committee was primarily responsible for the following duties:

e to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and
structure for all directors” and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

e toreview and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

e to determine, with delegated responsibility, the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management members of
the Company;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors;

e toconsider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the group;
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e toreview and approve the compensation payable to executive directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

e toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

e to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Group and details of the remuneration of the
Directors are set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” and note
12 to the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration packages
of the executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and senior
management members of the Company, and reviewed the collective performance
and individual performance as well as the performance-based bonus payment of
them.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out below:

AE

FrEfEiE (A R¥T) Remuneration bands (RMB) Number of persons
021,000,000 0 to 1,000,000 4
1,000,00122,000,000 1,000,001 to 2,000,000 2
2,000,00123,000,000 2,000,001 to 3,000,000 0
3,000,001224,000,000 3,000,001 to 4,000,000 1
7

HESBRRE Meeting Attendance

BEWBFNANBILEFE EFHFEE
E2ERREZELEEERURREKX
CHRBRBITZESHNELOT ¢

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings and meetings of the Board
committees and general meetings during the year ended 31 December 2023, as
well as the number of such meetings held, is set out as follows:
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HEBITHNESE Meetings attended/held

E= REEEE® ERZEE FMZEES e N -

Nomination Audit Remuneration General
Directors Committee Committee Committee Meetings

BITES
Executive Directors
BEREE 4/4 11 TiE 1/1 2/2
Mr. LIAO Chuangiang N/A
B EE 4/4 TNERA TERA TNEA 2/2
Mr. LI Haiming N/A N/A N/A
SRR A (MRED) 2/2 AN iE A TiEHA TEA A
Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan (Note 1) N/A N/A N/A
ARG 5 A (M EE2) 2/2 TEA TiE A TE A ”n
Mr. XIE Binhong (Note 2) N/A N/A N/A
HERE LA 4/4 NiE NiE A NiE 2/2
Mr. ZHAO Jianhua N/A N/A N/A
REEL LT 4/4 ANiE TEA TiEA 2/2
Ms. MQU Zhaohui N/A N/A N/A
FRoR S A (PEE3) ”n TE A TE A TE A 171
Mr. NIE Qiang (Note 3) N/A N/A N/A
BUIFHITES
Independent Non-Executive Directors
2R A 4/4 1/1 4/4 A 2/2
Mr. LIU Hongbai
BEHLLt 4/4 "7 4/4 1”7 2/2
Ms. MA Xiumin
PR 5 4 4/4 ”n 4/4 ” 2/2
Mr. CHEN Bin

MisE Notes:

1. SREB A N2023F T A 12B EES T AMITE 1. Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan was appointed as an executive director on 12 July 2023.

=
2. BPEREAER023F8ABEEZTANTE 2. Mr. XIE Binhong was appointed as an executive director on 25 August 2023.
=

3. WREER0BFIANEETRNTES - 3. Mr.NIE Qiang resigned as an executive director on 12 July 2023.
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Corporate Governance Function
The Board has delegated the functions set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code to the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
its Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The company
secretary may from time to time and as the circumstances require provide
updated written training materials relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group. In the preparation of financial statements, the Hong Kong financial
reporting standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to present
a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual
and interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure and
announcements in a timely manner. Pursuant to code provision D.1.1 of the CG
Code, management would provide sufficient explanation and information to the
Board to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of Elite Partners CPA Limited,
the Company’s external auditor, are set out on pages 183 to 188 of the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the fee paid/payable to Elite Partners CPA Limited
in respect of its audit services provided to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

e ENER

Service Category Fees Paid/Payable
AR¥T T

RMB’000

Audit Service 1,600
Non-audit Services 300
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems and for reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. The systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for publications and the
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company's
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted risk management procedures and
guidelines with defined authority for implementation by key business processes
and office functions. The Board, together with the Audit Committee, collect the
information from the risk management system, include discussions of risk and
oversight of the management of those risks into the agenda of Board meetings.

An internal audit department has been established to perform regular financial
and operational reviews and conduct audit of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The senior management reviews and evaluates the control process and monitors
any risk factors on a regular basis and reports to the Board and the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances and identified
risks. The work carried out by the internal audit department will ensure the
internal controls are in place and functioning properly as intended. In addition,
the Company, through the Audit Committee, has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and finance
department and internal audit department, and their training programmes and
budget.

During the course of audit performed by the external auditors, they reported on
the weaknesses of the Group's risk management, internal control and accounting
procedures which came to their attention during the year.
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The Directors, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
control, at least annually, for the year ended 31 December 2023. After such
review, the Board considered that the Company’s enhanced internal control
system was adequate and effective.

Handling of Inside Information

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information in
compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), procedures including notification of regular blackout period and
securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and employees, identification
of project by code name and dissemination of information to stated purpose and
on a need-to-know basis have been implemented by the Group to guard against
possible mishandling and/or unauthorised use of inside information within the
Group.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established and maintained various channels of communication
with the Company’s shareholders and the public to ensure that they are kept
abreast of the Company's latest news and business development. Information
relating to the Company’s financial results, corporate details, property projects
and major events are disseminated through publications of interim and annual
reports, announcements, circulars, press release and newsletters. The Board
believes that effective investor relations can contribute towards lower cost
of capital, higher market liquidity for the Company’s stock and a more stable
shareholder base. Therefore, the Company is committed to maintaining a high
level of corporate transparency and following a policy of disclosing relevant
information to Shareholders, investors, analysts and bankers in a timely manner.
Keeping them aware of the Group's corporate strategies and business operations
is one of the key missions of the Company's investor relations team.

The general meetings are valuable forums for direct communications between
the Board and shareholders. The Directors and members of various Board
committees will attend the general meetings of the Company. Shareholders
can raise questions directly to the Board in respect of the performance and
future development of the Group. At other times, Shareholders and investors
can put enquires by writing to the Company for the attention of an Executive
Director, or the Company Secretary, whose contact channels are set out below.
The shareholder communication policy encourages all forms of communication
and welcomes feedback, questions, or concerns from shareholders and aims to
ensures that shareholders are provided with timely access to the Company's
information. The policy has been and will be reviewed and updated periodically
to remain relevant and effective.
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Shareholders may put forward their written enquiries to the Board. In this regard,
the Shareholders may send those enquiries or requests as mentioned to the
following:

Address: Room 507, Block A, Kaisa Center, No. 66, Nanyuan Road, Futian
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC

Fax: (86) 0755-25887635
Telephone:  (86) 0755-22658123

Pursuant to the code provisions of the CG Code, in respect of each substantially
separate issue at a general meeting, a separate resolution should be proposed by
the chairman of that meeting. The chairman of the Board should attend the AGM
and invite for the chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committees any other committee (as appropriate) or in the
absence of the chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer questions at
the AGM. The chairman of the independent Board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’
approval. The Company would arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent
in the case of AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to
be sent at least 10 clear business days in the case of all other general meetings.
The chairman of a meeting should at the commencement of the meeting ensure
that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by way of a poll.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting.
The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company.

There are no provisions in the Articles for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings of the Company. However, Shareholders who wish to put
forward proposals may follow the Articles for requisitioning an extraordinary
general meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements
and procedures are set out in the above paragraph.

The constitutional documents of the Company are available on the websites of
the Company (http://www.jzywy.com) and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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(D) DIVIDEND POLICY

Purpose

This Dividend Policy (the “Poliey”) sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company will apply when considering the declaration and payment of dividends
to the shareholders of the Company.

Principles and Guidelines

The Company may, subject to the Cayman Companies Law, from time to time in
general meeting declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the Shareholders
but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board.

The Board may from time to time determine to pay to the Shareholders such
interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the profits of the
Company and in particular (but without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing) if at any time the share capital of the Company is divided into different
classes, the Board may determine to pay such interim dividends in respect of
those shares in the capital of the Company which confer on the holders thereof
deferred or non-preferential rights as well as in respect of those shares which
confer on the holders thereof preferential rights with regard to dividend and
provided that the Board acts bona fide the Board shall not incur any responsibility
to the holders of shares conferring any preference for any damage that they may
suffer by reason of the payment of an interim dividend on any shares having
deferred or non-preferential rights and may also pay any fixed dividend which
is payable on any shares of the Company half-yearly or on any other dates,
whenever such profits, in the opinion of the Board, justifies such payment.
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The Board has the discretion to declare dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, subject to the Articles of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations, taking into account the factors set out below:

e financial results;

e cash flow situation;

e husiness conditions and strategies;

e future operations and earnings;

e capital requirements and expenditure plans;
e interests of Shareholders;

e taxation considerations;

e any contractual, statutory and regulatory restrictions on payment of
dividends; and

e any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Review of the Policy
The Board will review this Policy as appropriate from time to time.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

By a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 14 June 2023, the Company adopted the Amended and Restated
Memorandum and Second Amended and Restated Articles of Association of
the Company (the “New M&A") to, among other things, comply with the Core
Shareholder Protection Standards set out in Appendix A1 (previously known
as Appendix 3) to the Listing Rules, reflect certain updates in relation to the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Listing Rules and make other
housekeeping amendments. For details, please refer to the announcement
and circular of the Company dated 10 May 2023, and the New M&A. Save as
disclosed above, there was no change in the constitutional document during
the Year. A latest version of the Company’s constitutional documents are also
available on the respective websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) presents the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the provision of property management services, which includes
management of properties, maintenance and repair of buildings and ancillary facilities,
community security management, car-park management, equipment installation, and
property consulting services.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s turnover
and operating profit for the year by principal activities is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business objectives of the Group are to develop its business and achieve
sustainable growth of its business. A review of the businesses of the Group during the
year using the key performance indicators, a discussion on the Group's future business
development and description of key risk factors and uncertainties that the Group is
facing are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 186
in this annual report.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2023 (2022: nil).

None of the Shareholders has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 190 and note 32
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report, respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB672.9 million (31 December 2022: RMB678.5 million).

BORROWINGS

The Group had no borrowing during the year ended 31 December 2023. (For the year
ended 31 December 2022: nil)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares, or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares, were entered into
by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, every Director or other officers of the Company acting in relation
to any of the affairs of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur or
sustain in or about the execution of his/her duties in his/her office.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition

None of the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) is interested in any business which is, whether directly or indirectly,
in competition with our business. To ensure that competition will not exist in the
future, each of the Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally and irrevocably
undertaken to us in the Deed of Non-Competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
on 12 November 2018 that it will not, and will procure its close associates (other than
members of the Group) not to directly or indirectly (including through nominees) be
involved in, interested in or undertake any business that directly or indirectly competes,
or may compete, with the Group’s business, which includes providing property
management services, pre-delivery and consulting services, smart solution services
and community value-added services (collectively referred to as the “Restricted
Activities”), or hold shares or interest in any companies or business that compete or
may compete directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time
to time except where the Controlling Shareholders and their close associates hold less
than 5% of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) which is engaged in any
business that is or may be in competition with any business engaged by any member
of the Group and they do not control 10% or more of the composition of the board of
directors of such company.

The Deed of Non-Competition will lapse automatically if the Controlling Shareholders
and their close associates cease to hold, whether directly or indirectly, 50% or above
of the shares of the Company with voting rights or the shares of the Company cease to
be listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided written confirmation to
the Company pursuant to which the Controlling Shareholders confirmed
that from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, (1) each
of them has fully complied with all terms and requirements of the Deed of
Non-Competition, (2) each of them not to directly or indirectly be involved in or
undertake any business (other than our business) that directly or indirectly competes, or
may compete, with the Restricted Activities, and (3) each of them does not hold more
than 5% of the shares or interest in any companies or business that compete directly
or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to time and controls
10% or more of the composition of the board of directors of such company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed all the necessary information
provided by the Controlling Shareholders for compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition and confirmed that as of the date of this annual report, the Controlling
Shareholders have fully complied with and did not breach all terms and requirements
of the Deed of Non-Competition.

DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
Directors were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIAO Chuangiang (Chairman)

Ms. MOU Zhaohui (Chief executive officer)

Mr. LI Haiming

Mr. ZHAO Jianhua

Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan (appointed on 12 July 2023)
Mr. XIE Binhong (appointed on 25 August 2023)
Mr. NIE Qiang (resigned in 12 July 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Hongbai

Ms. MA Xiumin

Mr. CHEN Bin

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years.
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In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the members
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Pursuant to 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive Director Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the independent non-executive directors of a listed issuer must represent
at least one-third of the board. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biography of all the Directors and members of the senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 35 to 41.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into service contract with the Company
for a term of three years, and which will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party thereto giving to the other party not less than three months’ prior notice
in writing. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into letter
of appointment with the Company and is appointed for a period of three years
commencing on the date of listing/appointment (as the case may be), which will
continue subject to re-election at the Company's general meeting, and such letter of
appointment could be terminated by giving not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing. None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.




3R ANNUAL REPORT 2023

EEAgfEsT 2l
AAFDEBEN2019F6 8188 ([ERHBH )@

B AR B RREEARE

ZRIRM — IR RT

I ([FBRAERT &) - AT EIM X 2155
ST

(1

(2)

(3)

BRESTEINEM
BRETEEAERARRRAER2RE
RILBERE - X ER - MEZATE

2

) HESERSEE
BICERBYE

REERFZT

Vo]
&

i) WEIRBEARERDEEREEER
SEERSHENEBBE  MzE
BERZEENER - HEIKHA
SENREERAN -

BRETAN2REE
BREFSN2EERBRESZEERAR
HERELHARBEIEL BERNAKEET
MR RBES  THAS  SABE
SEF(BREIFNTESRBEIIFRTE
=) EERBEE]) -
RIBERET BT HBITHROER
BRIFEARRIBERALE - BRIBLAIRERERE
et 8l TUAR B R R AR FH
st EE TNBRENRZENEAB S
RN B R BT A 8m10% ([FH8 £
BR1) - HIRSFTEIRE - EEABERTH

PMEERRITERBE BRI MARF
Bt 3E REEEFTEROZEREARTT
ERERER Al TRIT 2D BB BB T
E#ITR 230% °

IRIERE AR ST &I 7] T AL 3 BT AR (0 48
3% 414,000,0000% - (5B B 1T
13 48.25140,000,000 % 9 10% X 1 3R 25 H HA
B 31T I 48 20154,110,000A% £479.09% ° &
EBFNANEIEFE @ BHERKER
REFT BRI A i o

EIEEFEBAR LT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 161

EEERE

Report of the Directors

THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) by the
written resolutions of the shareholders of the company passed on 18 June 2019 (the
“Adoption Date”). A summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is
set out as follows:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to Eligible Participants as defined below with the view to achieving the
following objectives.

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance efficiency
for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship
with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the long-term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Participants of the Share Option Scheme include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives, officers or directors (including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) of the Group who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”).

Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and options under the other schemes of the
Company is 10% (“Scheme Limit") of the total number of shares in issue on
the Adoption Date, unless approval has been obtained from the shareholders of
the Company. Any increase in the Scheme Limit shall in no event result in the
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and options
under other schemes of the Company exceeding 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.

The total number of shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Share Option Scheme would be 14,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the total
number of 140,000,000 shares in issue on the Adoption Date and approximately
9.09% of the total number of 154,110,000 shares in issue as at the date of this
Report. During the year ended 31 December 2023, no options were granted under
the Share Option Scheme.
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Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the maximum number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme to any Eligible Participant shall not, when aggregated with: (a) any
shares issued upon exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme or options under the other schemes which have been granted to that
Eligible Participant, (b) any shares which would be issued upon the exercise of
outstanding options granted under the Share Option Scheme or options under the
other schemes granted to that Eligible Participant, and (c) any cancelled shares
which were the subject of options granted under the Share Option Scheme or
options under the other schemes which had been granted to and accepted by
that Eligible Participant, in any 12-month period up to the Offer Date (as defined
below) exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under an
option

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by the
Company at the time of grant, provided that such period of time shall not exceed
a period of ten years commencing on the date on which the share option is
deemed to be granted and accepted.

Vesting of the Share Options on a particular vesting date is conditional upon
achievement of certain performance targets by the Grantee(s) unless otherwise
waived by any one of the Directors.

Payment on acceptance of option offer
HK$1.00 is payable by the Eligible Participant of the Share Option Scheme to the
Company upon acceptance of the option offered as consideration for the grant.
None of the considerations for the grant from Eligible Participants was received
by the Company as at the date of this annual report.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share under the Share Option Scheme is determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event must be at least the higher
of: (i) the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of on which such option is offered in
writing (the “Offer Date"); (ii) the average of the official closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share, provided that for the purpose of determining the exercise price where
the shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than five business
days preceding the Offer Date, the issue price of the shares in connection with
such listing shall be deemed to be the closing price of the shares for each
business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares on the
Stock Exchange.
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(8) HERIEFTEIFIREH (8) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
FERSAERT BB A E 20296 A 188 - It The Share Option Scheme will remain valid until 18 June 2029 after which no
B EER R E B - A - IR further options shall be offered. However, the provisions of the Share Option
RGN EMABHEM T EDAREE TRK Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and effect to the extent
HRAVER - UELERITE 2 BT E T necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or
o] B A A sl AR 15 BE IR RE =T 21 AI IS AT B otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of this Share
SKITEREAMEFR - M zaEEHEER Option Scheme and the options granted prior thereto but not yet exercised
77155 ) B RS AR 4 48 7 I R FR PR BB R shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
FEITTE o LT EH B IEEALERE Scheme. The summary below sets out the details of options granted as at 31
R2023F 12 AN HER R BERES ¢ December 2023 pursuant to the Share Option Scheme:

Hzung
REEZE HzupnE  HEABE  128%A
FhE RUBE  1ANA NANE  LEERM RuE
R AHA 1A1H LLEE LLEE i/ 1A%A
RHUAH BEpmE i3 R AfTE  Rb/ XM i3z
Closing price of Cancelled/
the securities forfeited/
immediately Granted Exercised lapsed
before the date Balance  duringthe  duringthe during the Balance
on which the asof  yearended  yearended yearended as of
options were Exercise {January 31 December  31December 31 December 31 December
Grantee Date of grant granted  Exercise Period Price 23 023 023 03 023
(BhR#ER) (1)
(HKD per share) (HKD)
e
Directors of Kaisa Prosperity
BER WIETA19R ) 1636 200067 R19B 9577188 1570 400000 - - - 400000
LIAO Chuangiang ~19.July 2019 o) 19.July 202010 18 July 2029
5% WETANEENIET A18H 1570 400,000 - - - 400,000
19.July 2021 to 18 July 2029
1536 02EIANBENETA18H 1570 400,000 - - - 400,000
19.July 2022 to 18 July 2029
536 ABEIANEEIETA18H 1570 800,000 - - - 800,000
19.July 2023 to 18 July 2029
558 WYFTA19A 3% N0FTAIEZENNEIAA 1570 10,000 - - - 10000
MA Xiumin 19 July 2019 19July 2020 to 18 July 2029
153 WNEIABEANEIABE 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19July 2021 to 18 July 2029
3% NNFIREENNEIAIA 1570 10,000 - - - 10000
19.uly 2022 to 18 July 2029
153 NBETABENNEIAE 1570 20,000 - - - 20,000

19.July 2023 to 18 July 2029
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HEUBE
RBERE HzunE  HEABE  128%A
JElE RUBE  1ANA RANR  LEER  RUBE
Rt A 181R LEE LLEE i/ 1AYA
25U i i3 A R BB/ &R i3
Closing price of Cancelled/
the securities forfeited/
immediately Granted Exercised lapsed
hefore the date Balance  duringthe duringthe during the Balance
on which the asof  yearended  yearended yearended as of
options were Exercise {January 31 December  31December 31 December 31 December
Grantee Date of grant granted  Exercise Period Price 023 A3 023 A3 023
(8RR (#7x)
(HKD per share) (HKD)
8t WI9ETAISA 183 N0FTRISEEYFTIA18E 1570 10000 - - - 10,00
LIU Hongbai 19July 2019 19July 202010 18 July 2029
5% WNETANEENIETA18H 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19.July 2021 10 18 July 2029
1836 ARFIANBENNFIANE 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19.July 2022 to 18 July 2029
5% NBFIANEENNEIAE 1570 20,000 - - - 20000
19.July 2023 10 18 July 2029
i M9F7A198 1536 0NETANEEIETA18H 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
CHEN Bin 19.July 2019 19.July 2020 to 18 July 2029
1536 WETANEEIET A18H 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19.July 2021 to 18 July 2029
53 ANEIANBENNEIABE 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19.July 2022 to 18 July 2029
153 ABEIABEANEIABE 1570 20000 - - - 20000
19.July 2023 t0 18 July 2029
HfbfEa WYFTA19H 183 ANFIANRENNEIARA B0 1580000 - - - 158000
Other Employees ~ 19.July 2019 19.July 2020 o 18 July 2029
183 WNETABEANEIABE 1570 1,580,000 - - - 1,580,000
19July 2021 t0 18 July 2029
1836 ANEIABEANEIABE 1570 1,580,000 - - - 1,580,000
19 July 20220 18 July 2029
1536 ABETAEEANE A8 1570 2,580,000 - - 400,000 2,180,000
19.July 2023 to 18 July 2029
&5 Total 9,470,000 - - 400,000 9,070,000

72023512 A31 8 -+ 9,070,00017 & A% 4 AT ¥

1Tl »

As at 31 December 2023, 9,070,000 options were exercisable.
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Notes:

(a) The above Share Options shall be vested in four tranches in accordance with the following
dates: (i) up to 20% of the Share Options granted to each grantee at any time after the
expiration of 12 months from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2020; (ii) up to 40% of the
Share Options granted to each grantee at any time after the expiration of 24 months from
the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2021; {iii) up to 60% of the Share Options granted to each
grantee at any time after the expiration of 36 months from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July
2022; and (iv) all the remaining Share Options granted to each grantee at any time after
the expiration of 48 months from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2023. The Shares Options
are exercisable within a period of ten years from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2029,
subject to the vesting schedule. Vesting of the Share Options on a particular vesting date
is conditional upon achievement of certain performance targets by the Grantee(s) unless
otherwise waived by any one of the Directors.

(b)  The grant become effective upon approvals by the Shareholders of the Company and
Kaisa Holding on 16 June 2020 and 15 June 2020 respectively.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2023, no options were exercised and a total of
400,000 options were forfeited/lapsed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Participant in any
12-month period exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from the
date of grant shall be subject to the shareholders” approval. No such grant was made
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Name of Director

Nature of interest
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities

As of 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) which (a) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange were as follows:

i.  Long position in shares of the Company (“shares”)

EERE
BRESE
FRZER

RGEBE

Number of

ERTRG
BRBE DR

underlying
shares in which
the Directors hold
under the Share
Option Scheme!'"

Approximate
percentage of
issued share®

B {E58 BEx 2,000,000 1.30%
LIAQ Chuangiang Beneficial
HEH Ba 50,000 0.03%
MA Xiumin Beneficial
23t B 50,000 0.03%
LIU Hongbai Beneficial
Re i, & 50,000 0.03%
CHEN Bin Beneficial
BT Notes:

() EFREBERESBRE ZAMBNBEF
(EEOSE-ZEc: 2 -

20 BEOHTIREZE2023F12A31H LD T
1541100000 B (D st E M if - REEFTE BR
AT EITE TR 2 R AT -

(1) The number of underlying shares in which the Directors hold under the Share Option
Scheme are detailed in “The Share Option Scheme” section.

(2)  The percentages were calculated based on 154,110,000 shares in issue as at 31
December 2023, assuming all the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
have been exercised.




¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2023

ii.  REBEE R

EsnR

Name of Director

B 27

Name of associated corporation
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ii.  Interest in associated corporation

FrEE s
HERGEE
Number of
shares
interested

R
BYBEI
Approximate
percentage
of interest

B {E5% EREEEIEBRABR AR 4,129,708 0.06%
LIAQ Chuangiang Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd.
=58 EREEEIEBRAR AR 7,226,990 0.10%
LI Haiming Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd.

B EXHEFEEIN - A2023F12 8318 - &=, Save for those disclosed above, as of 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or

FETRA BN AR AR AREAE
(e B % RS EOISXVE) B « 188
1) T (5 5o A L 2 T 5 e 28352
BRARBAENERMANER AR - &
1R B BB AV B R BB AT
B FAA -

BERGIEZFNZH
BrEN AR A M TS ERR MY A3 O B AR AT I SN
ARE -~ BRERARSEEANRERRRFEAR

BB EMZE REEFAREBARAR
kAT E ) EE AR (D BB 75 T s

EEZXS REREREHER

BRER A B IS MR M 3T EE SN - EFERHE

MEEREMENAAR - BRI AE S ERN B
NEFI M BRF RSB E2023F 124318 LEF
ERIAEMDAERZRS - BHRERE
- BEEEEREEENERER

chief executive had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFQ, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Schemes as set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangements or contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or their subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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EENGRERNES
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LB DE L A S
BHE 2 RGMARE EIIRAIESI0ERE
MRS -

ERIRREXRGOEZ

RSB ER N AT B AR EAEEREE
2028FN2ANBILEFEMBEIILEREL o 47
B YRR FECFT IR BRI ©

FERRER

R2023F 128318 - EEFA - THAL(BR
AAREERFEEBITHRABIN BB AR
RIS R E RGP E336IER EFEHELM
AR BN SABRE IR (DA s SR B

EBRRER

Name of substantial shareholder

EREEREEER AR ([ERFER])

Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (“Kaisa Holdings")
Paramount Access Investments Limited
(“Paramount Access”)

RERBERRAR(EE)

Ye Chang Investment Company Limited
(“Ye Chang”)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
The Directors are of the view that during the year ended 31 December 2023, none
of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly with the Company’s business which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance between the Controlling Shareholder and any of its
subsidiaries and the Group was made during the year ended 31 December 2023 save as
disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors were aware, persons other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or a short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFQ are set out as follows:

HAEQTE BT
BRABA T 2L
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital of
Capacity shares the Company
(FE1) (%)
(Note 1) (%)
SR EE R 103,530,000 (L) 67.18
(M¥5E2)
Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2)
Ry EE R 103,530,000 (L) 67.18
(B¥7E2)
Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2)
EnEEA 103,530,000 (L) 67.18
(H¥&x2)
Beneficial owner (Note 2)
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AccessEEIREZERZEESR - RIBFHF REERK
Bl AEJK ZE 422 A% B Paramount Access & 5 AR A EE
EfEERERMEREE RN TR ER

72023412 A 31 B » 103,530,000 A% A% 15 2 & 18 F
FEILESREAFR A AAEENE A 7 Safe
Castle Limited © REIIR SR ERER AT AL
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Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.
2. Ye Chang is beneficially wholly-owned by Paramount Access, which is in turn wholly-owned by

Kaisa Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, each of Kaisa Holdings and Paramount Access is deemed to
be interested in the same number of Shares which Ye Chang is interested in.

As at 31 December 2023, 103,530,000 Shares have been pledged to Safe Castle Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Shandong Hi-Speed Capital Limited. China Shandong Hi-Speed
Capital Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited
(formerly known as China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 412).

3. The percentages were calculated based on 154,110,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023.

Save for those disclosed above, as of 31 December 2023, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, no other persons had any interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 306 to 308 of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and services from
its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 50% of its goods and services to its 5 largest
customers with its largest customer (namely Kaisa Group) contributed approximately
15% of the Group's revenue. Details of the largest customer are set out in note 6.1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Except for the above mentioned note 6.1 to the consolidated financial statements, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Director, their close
associate or a shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. In
relation to the related party transactions which also constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions, the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had conducted certain continuing
connected transaction with connected persons of the Group as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements and below:

1. The Deed of HK Trademark Licensing

On 20 November 2018, a deed of trademark licensing was entered into between
the Company and Kaisa Holdings (the “Deed of HK Trademark Licensing”),
pursuant to which Kaisa Holdings agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally
grant to the Company and other members of the Group the right to (i) use or
(i) sub-license to a third party due to necessary needs arising from its usual
and ordinary course of business and other activities (the “Licensed Scope”)
certain trademarks (the "Kaisa HK Trademarks") registered in Hong Kong
for a perpetual term commencing from the date of the Deed of HK Trademark
Licensing on a royalty-free basis.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Deed of HK Trademark Licensing will constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon
Listing.

As the right to use the Kaisa HK Trademark is granted to the Group on a royalty-
free basis, the transactions under the Deed of HK Trademark Licensing will
be within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules upon Listing, and will be exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Deed of HK Trademark Licensing have been set out in the
section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS™ in the Company's prospectus dated 26
November 2018 (the “Prospectus”).
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The PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement

On 20 November 2018, a trademark licensing agreement was entered into
between the Company and Kaisa Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (fEJK S £ B (OF
) B B A 7)) (formerly known as Kaisa Real Estate (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (fEJk 2102 OFII) B BR A 7)), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Kaisa Holdings, (the “PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement"”), pursuant to
which Kaisa Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally
grant to the Company and other members of the Group the right to (i) use or (ii)
sub-license to a third party due to necessary needs arising from the Licensed
Scope certain trademarks (the “Kaisa PRC Trademarks”) registered in the PRC
for a perpetual term commencing from the date of the PRC Trademark Licensing
Agreement on a royalty-free basis.

Kaisa Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of Kaisa Holdings, which is
one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the PRC
Trademark Licensing Agreement will constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon Listing.

As the right to use the Kaisa PRC Trademark is granted to the Group on a royalty-
free basis, the transactions under the PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement will
be within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules upon Listing, and will be exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement have been set out in the
section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Prospectus.

Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement

On 20 November 2018, the Company entered into a sales assistance services
framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2018 Sales Assistance
Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to
provide sales assistance services to Kaisa Group and/or its associates, for a term
commencing from the Listing Date until 31 December 2020.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon Listing.
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On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into a sales assistance services
framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2020 Sales Assistance
Services Framework Agreement”), agreeing to provide to Kaisa Group and/
or its associates the Sales Assistance Services, for a term commencing from 1
January 2021 until 31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total amount of commission
fee payable by Kaisa Group for the Sales Assistance Services amounted to
RMB2,540,000, which is within the annual cap of RMB10,400,000.

On 9 November 2023, the Company entered into a property sales assistance
services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2023 Property Sales
Assistance Services Framework Agreement”), agreeing to provide to
Kaisa Group and/or its associates the Sales Assistance Services, for a term
commencing from 1 January 2024 until 31 December 2026.

The Property Sales Assistance Services under the 2023 Property Sales Assistance
Services Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2026 will not exceed RMB10,000,000, RMB10,000,000 and RMB12,500,000,
respectively, which was duly passed during the extraordinary general meeting
held on 8 January 2024.

Details of the 2018 Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement, the 2020
Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement and the 2023 Property Sales
Assistance Services Framework Agreement have been set out in the section
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS" in the Prospectus, and the announcement dated
4 November 2020 and the announcement dated 9 November 2023, respectively.

Property Management Services Framework Agreement

On 20 November 2018, the Company entered into a property management
services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2018 Property
Management Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Group agreed to provide to Kaisa Group and/or its associates property
management services, for a term commencing from the Listing Date until
December 31, 2020. On 29 November 2019, the Company entered into the
supplemental agreement (the “2019 Property Management Services
Supplemental Agreement”) with Kaisa Group to revise the annual caps of the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020 under
the Property Management Services Framework Agreement.
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On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into the supplemental agreement (the
“2020 Property Management Services Supplemental Agreement”) with
Kaisa Group to the 2018 Property Management Services Framework Agreement
to revise the annual cap of the continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2020 under the 2018 Property Management Services
Framework Agreement and 2019 Property Management Services Supplemental
Agreement.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Property Management Services Framework Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon Listing.

On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into a property management services
framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2020 Property Management
Services Framework Agreement”), agreeing to provide to Kaisa Group and/
or its associates the Property Management Services, for a term commencing
from 1 January 2021 until 31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total amount of fees payable by Kaisa
Group for the Property Management Services amounted to RMB70,815,657,
which is within the annual cap of RMB1,750,000,000.

On 9 November 2023, the Company entered into a property management services
framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2023 Property Management
Services Framework Agreement”), agreeing to provide to Kaisa Group and/or
its associates the Property Management Services, for a term commencing from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2026.

The Property Management Services under the 2023 Property Management
Services Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2026 will not exceed RMB400,000,000, RMB500,000,000 and RMB600,000,000,
respectively, which was duly passed during the extraordinary general meeting
held on 8 January 2024.

Details of the 2018 Property Management Services Framework Agreement, the
2020 Property Management Services Framework Agreement, the 2023 Property
Management Services Framework Agreement have been set out in the section
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS" in the Prospectus, the announcement dated 4
November 2020 and the announcement dated 9 November 2023, respectively.
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Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement

On 20 November 2018, the Company entered into an equipment installation
services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2018 Equipment
Installation Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide equipment installation services, for a term commencing from
the Listing Date until 31 December 2020.

On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into the supplemental agreement (the
2020 Equipment Installation Services Supplemental Agreement”) with
Kaisa Group to the 2018 Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement
to revise the annual cap of the continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2020 under the 2018 Equipment Installation Services
Framework Agreement.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon Listing.

On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into an equipment installation
services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2020 Equipment
Installation Services Framework Agreement”), agreeing to provide to Kaisa
Group and/or its associates the Equipment Installation Services, for a term
commencing from 1 January 2021 until 31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total amount of fees payable by Kaisa
Group for the Equipment Installation Services amounted to RMB58,649,218,
which is within the annual cap of RMB230,000,000.

On 9 November 2023, the Company entered into an equipment installation
and maintenance services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the
“2023 Equipment Installation and Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement”), agreeing to provide to Kaisa Group and/or its associates the
Equipment Installation and Maintenance Services, for a term commencing from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2026.
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The Equipment Installation and maintenance Services under the 2023 Equipment
Installation and Maintenance Services Framework Agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2026 will not exceed RMB90,000,000,
RMB100,000,000 and RMB110,000,000, respectively, which was duly passed
during the extraordinary general meeting held on 8 January 2024.

Details of the 2018 Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement,
the 2020 Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement, the 2023
Equipment Installation and Maintenance Services Framework Agreement have
been set out in the section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS" in the Prospectus,
the announcement dated 4 November 2020 and the announcement dated 9
November 2023, respectively.

Property Lease Framework Agreement

On 20 November 2018, the Company entered into a property lease framework
agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2018 Property Lease Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group will lease from the Kaisa Group and/
or its associates (i) certain properties for office use; and (ii) car parking lots for
sub-leasing, for a term commencing from the Listing Date until 31 December
2020.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the 2020 Property Lease Framework Agreement will constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
upon Listing.

On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into a property lease framework
agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2020 Property Lease Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group will lease from the Kaisa Group
and/or its associates (i) certain properties for office use; and (ii) certain car
parking lots for sub-leasing, for a term commencing from 1 January 2021 until 31
December 2023.
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The total amount of rental payable by the Group to the Kaisa Group for properties
the Group leased for office use amounted to approximately RMB3,467,312 for the
year ended 31 December 2023, which is within the annual cap of RMB6,000,000.

The total amount of rent payable by the Group to the Kaisa Group for the car
parking lots we leased amounted to approximately RMB8,406,165 for the year
ended 31 December 2023, which is within the annual cap of RMB55,000,000.

On 9 November 2023, the Company entered into a property lease framework
agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2023 Property Lease Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group will lease from the Kaisa Group
and/or its associates (i) certain properties for office use; and (ii) certain car
parking lots for sub-leasing. The 2023 Property Lease Framework Agreement
has a term commencing from 1 January 2024 until 31 December 2026, unless
it is terminated earlier by either party pursuant to the 2023 Property Lease
Framework Agreement. Relevant subsidiaries or associated companies of both
parties will enter into separate lease agreements setting out the specific terms
and conditions based on the principles provided in the 2023 Property Lease
Framework Agreement.

The maximum annual fee payable by us under the 2023 Property Lease
Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2026 as follow,
which was duly passed during the extraordinary general meeting held on 8
January 2024:

Leased properties for office use BN ERSENEEE 5,000,000 5,500,000 6,000,000
Car parking lots {ZEfL 30,000,000 32,500,000 35,000,000
Total st 35,000,000 38,000,000 41,000,000
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Details of the 2018 Property Lease Framework Agreement, the 2020 Property
Lease Framework Agreement and the 2023 Property Lease Framework Agreement
have been set out in the section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS™ in the
Prospectus, the announcement dated 4 November 2020 and the announcement
dated 9 November 2023, respectively.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company have discussed with the senior management of the
Company on the agreements of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions and reviewed these continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions abovementioned have
been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing each of the Continuing
Connected Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Elite Partners Limited, the

auditor of the Company, has provided a letter to the Board, confirming that

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing

connected transactions abovementioned:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group;

(i) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the annual caps.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration policy (which includes the payment of the emoluments to the
employees) of the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration Committee
on the basis of the employees’ performance, qualifications and experiences. Details of
the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
of the Directors and senior management and comparable market statistics.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As a property service provider in China, the Group is required to comply with various
national and local laws and regulations on environmental protection, including laws
and regulations of air pollution, sound pollution, waste and sewage. The Group has
complied with the laws and regulations which are significant to the operation of the
Group. Further, any changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to
the attention of relevant employees and event operation units from time to time.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
STAKEHOLDERS

Workplace Quality

The Group believes that the directors, senior management and employees of the Group
are instrumental to the success of the Group and that their industry knowledge and
understanding of the market will enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in
the market.

The Group provides on-the-job training and development opportunities to enhance
its employees’ career progression. Through different trainings, staff’s professional
knowledge in corporate operations, occupational and management skills are enhanced.
The Group also organised staff-friendly activities for employees, such as annual dinner,
to promote staff relationship.

The Group provides on providing a safe, effective and congenial working environment.
Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are implemented to ensure the
working environment is healthy and safe. The Group provided health and safety
communications for employees to present the relevant information and raise
awareness of occupational health and safety issues. The Group values the health
and well-being of its staff. In order to provide employees with health coverage, its
employees are entitled to medical insurance benefits.

Relationships with the Group’s other stakeholders

The Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the services to its
customers in order to stay competitive. Save as disclosed in this report, the Directors
are not aware of any material and significant dispute between the Group and its
customers during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of at
least 25% of the Company’s issued shares as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

On 29 April 2022, Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant Thornton”) resigned
and ceased to act as the auditor of the Company (the “Independent Auditor”) and
Elite Partners Limited (“Elite Partners”) was appointed as the Independent Auditor
to fill the casual vacancy after the resignation of Grant Thornton (the “Resignation”)
and to hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM. Save as disclosed above,
the Independent Auditor remained unchanged over the past three years. The Board
confirmed that there is no disagreement between the Company and Grant Thornton
and it is not aware of any matters or circumstances in respect of the Resignation that
need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement of change of auditor
published on 29 April 2022. The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been audited by Elite Partners. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Elite Partners as the
Independent Auditor until the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the Board
to fix their remuneration.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to
the shares of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the shareholders
of the Company by reason of their respective holding of the Company’s securities.

On behalf of the Board

LIAO Chuangiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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To the Members of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
186 to 305, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Refer to note 4.1(ii), note 5.4 and note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies note 2.11.
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Recoverability of trade receivables
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We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements, combined with the significant degree of
estimations by the management of the Group, in evaluating the expected
credit loss (“ECL") of trade receivables which may affect the carrying
value of the Group's trade receivables at the end of the reporting period.
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As disclosed in note 4.1(ii) to the consolidated financial statements,
the management used provision matrix to calculate the ECL of trade
receivables and the provision rates are based on internal credit ratings
as groupings of various debtors by their ageing, which are considered
of similar loss patterns, and taken into consideration the historical
recovery rates, probability of default by its customers and the forward-
looking information. As disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
approximately RMB393,552,000 as at 31 December 2023, after netting-
off the allowance of credit losses of approximately RMB893,391,000.
Allowance for credit losses of approximately RMB621,414,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was recognised in profit or loss.

EREHEEFERERN - 7RERE WM RUARR
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Obtaining an understanding on how the management assess the
ECL of trade receivables by applying the ECL model;

RIZBREEZLNPRES R - AmERA = - A
AEBERANGIEEBERNER - SEREOT
Testing the integrity of information used by the management to
develop the provision matrix, including the ageing analysis, on a
sample basis, to the source documents, including invoices and
demand notes;

FRSEFEELOWE - TRELOA M KA T ERET
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Evaluating the appropriateness of the expected average loss rates
applied by reference to the historical recovery rates, probability of
default by its customers and forward-looking information; and

BB A VSRR ENE HRFURENHEIKE -
Evaluating the disclosure regarding the impairment assessment of
trade receivables to the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGE WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charge with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.



184

o

v R (I
Independent Auditor’s Report

RBET AR B S S ISR RARE
MIEE )

HESRAKELESTERNEE
&R - WIRIBFIERNEZRE © #E
EAFEESHEIIBEAABENEATEE
M wmATREEEY BRENFELE
ENELEERRE - WRMARSFEEK
THEEN - RIB M EEZBEHREH RS
EREIRHZA MR T OERIRE -
SEBBENEESR - RIERTRMNE
R B#MEwRDERNE SRR E B
LTS BAORRE - AT - RREBIEK
BERAEESR BERETEHEFELER

7 o

AHER A MR BEIR SR - &5
KRR (BRERESR)ARGEMBEREK
EBRARRBEAR S KEIE -

. BEREANERBIRHEBDNMBER
ERRTREENEZERE  NEHESH

BREABERER - RMAE BEXEEZ
MR - BB RMTT - RAIRERE R

EEREEE -

BMEEZE B QBBELNEIHE NERE
ARBREZERE P EERMAESEZT
B AR B EREA TR 25 °

EIEFEEFEBARA T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED £ 3R ANNUAL REPORT 2023

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent audit's report is Yip
Kai Yin with Practising Certificate number P07854.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Level 23

YF Life Tower

33 Lockhart Road

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

22 March 2024
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Hfe 2= HE W= R

Consolidated_ Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

HE2023F 128318 ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

20234F 20224F
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB000
g Revenue 6 1,794,267 1,783,883
BHEKLLESRY Direct operating expenses (1,312,920) (1,312,776)
EF Gross profit 481,347 471,107
HERMGHERY Selling and marketing expenses (12,590) (10,395)
TR Administrative expenses (189,859) (229,366)
TREENBHNEEER Provision for loss allowance on financial assets
HE(ERAE and contract assets (698,562) (125,372)
HAib(ER), W F5E Other (losses)/gains, net 7 (370) 24,391
e (ER),B5A Operating (loss)/profit (420,034) 130,365
AT ELEZARKN Change in fair value on financial assets at fair
TREEQNFEES value through profit or loss 20 (143,425) (1,215)
REEE N R 2 RE R EEE Impairment loss on investment in associate 16 (24,070) =
JE(RBE S N R EE Share of results of associates 16 6,306 10,530
BhE Ak A Finance cost 9 (673) (770)
F%Fﬁ SHAT(E5R) ER (Loss)/Profit before income tax 10 (581,896) 138,910
BFiEe,(F) Income tax credit/(expenses) 1 144,312 (32,315)
FER(EE)ER (Loss)/Profit for the year (437,584) 106,595
T ATHEG(EE) 2% ©  (Loss)/Profit attributable to:
ViN/NETEZ 2 =N Owners of the Company (449,984) 93,385
IEIERR R Non-controlling interests 12,400 13,210
(437,584) 106,595
AAFEEAEEER (Losses)/Earnings per share attributable to
(B58), BF (SR owners of the Company (expressed
AR¥TIHIR) in RMB per share)
HA Basic 13(a) (2.92) 0.61
s Diluted 13(b) (2.92) 0.61
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e RHEMEEIER
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2023F 20224F

2023 2022

AR¥T T AREBTTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

FE(BEB)ER (Loss)/profit for the year (437,584) 106,595
Hib2mBAx - B Other comprehensive expenses, including

BN D ERE reclassification adjustments
HBEEHFTEETHE Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to

Bz f9E 5 profit or loss
BRATFEEEMEERE AR

S REER A TF{EEE - Fairvalue loss on financial assets at fair value through

MR FEIE other comprehensive income, net of tax (11,250) =
FEHMW2EAX - Other comprehensive expenses for the year,

BEENSEAER including reclassification adjustments (11,250) =
FE2E(EX) WHME  Total comprehensive (expenses)/income for the year (448,834) 106,595
UTATEEFEFERZE Total comprehensive (expenses)/income for the year

(FX) WasasE . attributable to:

ViN/NETEZ 2 =N Owners of the Company (461,234) 93,385

eI R Non-controlling interests 12,400 13,210

(448,834) 106,595

FI1REFESE MM AILLE

BHHS -

statements.

LA TRERA  The notes on pages 193 to 305 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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e MR R R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2023512 8318
As at 31 December 2023

20234F 20224F
2023 2022
BsE AR¥T T AREFIT
Notes RMB'000 RMB000
BERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - WE MRS Property, plant and equipment 15 19,250 23,559
B EE Intangible assets 17 25,969 31,456
[EES Goodwill 17 160,828 160,828
FREEE Right-of-use assets 19 184,01 200,566
SREE Financial assets 20 184,306 342,731
REtE AR 284 Investment in associates 16 34,292 53,233
Hip g Ia Other receivables 21 8,495 6,440
ELFIEEE Deferred tax assets 29 309,865 89,576
927,046 908,389
RBEE Current assets
EUNE S BRI Trade receivables 21 393,552 828,845
H h FEUGRIE Other receivables 21 66,670 66,828
REREPHR Payments on behalf of residents 22 95,107 79,192
BHEBE Contract assets 23 52,460 113,636
FEUR A A T RUB Amounts due from related parties 24 6,697 3,963
ZRRHHE Restricted cash 25 450 491
BeMReEEER Cash and cash equivalents 25 286,774 247,320
901,710 1,340,275
REBAEE Current liabilities
ENE SRR Trade payables 26 194,032 190,992
HAbFERFIE Other payables 26 359,556 324,373
BRBE Contract liabilities 23 221,268 206,126
FESRIEALRIE Amounts due to related parties 27 4,081 9,629
MEAE Lease liabilities 28 5,636 5,362
FERTFT1E R Income tax payable 81,857 74,957
866,430 811,439
REEEFRE Net current assets 35,280 528,836
EEABERBRREBAER Total assets less current liabilities 962,326 1,437,225
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R BRI R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

20234F 20224F
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

kFRBEE Non-current liabilities
HAb R IR Other payables 26 5,876 18,548
HEBE Lease liabilities 28 6,425 10,051
EIEFHIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 29 10,492 11,864
22,793 40,463
EEFE Net assets 939,533 1,396,762

= EQUITY

R Share capital 30 1,361 1,361
& Reserves 867,561 1,332,790
AATEEAEEER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 868,922 1,334,151
IR A Non-controlling interests 70,611 62,611
B Total equity 939,533 1,396,762

CHEZ2R2024FE3 822 B #E & R ITRETEE o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2024.

BER 28
Liao Chuangiang Mou Zhaohui
EE EE
Director Director

F1REFI5E WM T AL S A &R The notes on pages 193 to 305 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
gy o statements.
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mEREmEER _ |
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE2023F12A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

ADAEEAEGRE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ke RHEE HbRE BRERE HREE  EEAR  RERA B FEREE ERAE
Share Non-

Share Share Other option Contribution  Statutory  Retained controlling Total

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reseve  earnings Total interests equity

AEETT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTL ARETR ARETT ARETI

RMBOO  AMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD

HouE1A1A As at January 2022 1% R4 B0 6N S50 IS W79 MO I 128690
EREHREE Profitand total comprehensive income
e forthe year - - - - - W B 1B 1065%

RREREE Recognition o equit-setted share-
BOTAHRS based payment tansactions

(RzE31) (note 31) - - - 5789 - - - 5789 - 5789
E2 By NN Transfer to statutory reserve = = = = - 18090 (18,0%) - - -
gD A Capitalinection by non-controlling

interests - - - = - = - - 205 215
EXFAFHBAT  Diidend paid tonon-contioling
SARERNRS  interestof subsidiares - - - - - - - - (A1 A

R2ENANAR  Asat31 December 2022 and

ABE1R1R 1 January 2023 1,361 5421 1607 58,401 8501 200592 465,014 1,334,151 62,611 139,762
EREEREE Loss and total comprehensive expense
e for theyear - - - - - - (Mes) (W% a0 (4TS

BRATESEMEE  Fairvalue loss on financial assets

YaABHER atfairvalue through other

EEOLTERS comprehensive income,

B RHE net of tax - - - - - - (11250) (11250) - (11.250)
ERELE Recognition of equity-settled share-

ROZAHRS based payment transactions

(Hist31) (nate 31 - - - % - - - 39 - )
BREEITLE Transfer o statutory reserve - - - - - 17928 (17,928) - - -
FERERTE Capita njction by non-controling

interests - - - - - - - - 20 200
EXMFHBAT  Dividend paid to on-controling

JEERERNRE interestof sbsidiares - (4,364) - - - - - (4.364) (4500) (8.964)

RUBEANA As at 31 December 2023 1,361 519,847 1601 58110 8501 218,520 (14.148) 868,922 10611 939,533

F1RBEFISENM T AL EL A ETRERA  The notes on pages 193 to 305 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
BEgEly o statements.
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meReRER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE2028FE12A3NBIEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

REFDRERTRE

Cash flows from operating activities

20235
2023

AR®ETR
RMB’000

191

20224

2022
ARET T
RMB'000

AT FLRT(E8), % F]  (Loss)/profit before income tax (581,896) 138,910
KL THIIEE % - Adjustments for:
s, (2 A Amounts written off/(recovered)

AR EIR & 58 as uncollectible 7 6,424 (2,652)
YT N Depreciation and amortisation 10 29,875 32,287
BAFELERZARSN Change in fair value on financial assets

SREENTEE at fair value through profit or loss 143,425 1,215
FEFX Interest expense 9 673 770
HEME - BE K&K Net losses on disposal of property,

[gi=pet-c] plant and equipment 7 666 1,035
LIFTHENEE Loss on termination of leases (22) 25
BB YE M B Provision for loss allowance 10 698,562 125,372
FEEEE A RIEEA Share of result of associates (6,306) (10,530)
REEE N a2 IERE Impairment loss on investment in associate

BB 16 24,070 =
ARG #E S B IR ST A Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

Fi< 31 369 5,789
LEESEBRINEE Operating profit before working capital changes

A 315,840 292,221
JEUE SR ALY Increase in trade and other receivables

FRIAIE N (197,289) (200,707)
REFEFMFIEM Increase in payments on behalf of residents (22,478) (31,367)
BUPEELE N Increase in contract assets (6,562) (4,791)
JENE SBRA N EMPER  Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

e, Chd) 36,321 (85,075)
FEUR B85 A T FIEIE N Increase in amount due from related parties (2,734) (2,875)
FERTEAE A L RUB (Decrease)/increase in amount due to related parties

CR),/ 15 (5.548) 2,690
AHBEEEMN Increase in contract liabilities 15,142 39,154
ZRHIER 2R Decrease in restricted cash M %
KEFTRIRE Cash generated from operations 132,733 9,276
ST ER Income tax paid (66,699) (80,479)
AL ST TZ (BT ) Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities

HE)FEH 66,034 (71,203)
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GEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2023 20224F
2023 2022

AR®T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

RETBHHEBRERE Cash flows from investing activities
ST UCHERT B A TR FERT  Payment for consideration payable related

KE to acquisition of subsidiaries (10,770) (18,595)
HEYZE  ME MK Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
FriS 5808 equipment 1,558 540
BEYE  BMEMK Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 (3,186) (6,879)
R = A AR A AR B Dividend received from associate 10 1177 =
RILEBE NG TE Capital injection for investment
in an associate - (4,900)
KRB EE T 2 F5E Net cash used in investing activities (11,221) (29,834)

RMETEERERE Cash flows from financing activities
MZEREEAMBATIE  Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders of

PR AR B S PRI AR B non-wholly owned subsidiaries (8,964) -
IEIERERTE Capital injection by non-controlling interests 200 245
BERRE Dividend paid - (2,797)
BRFE Interest paid (673) (770)
BEHEAE Repayment of lease liabilities 33 (5,922) (6,316)
BEFE TR L FEE Net cash used in financing activities (15,359) (9,638)
ReERFELSEHEER Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

#8in GRd)BEE cash equivalents 39,454 (110,675)
FURe kReEE Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

BH of the year 241,320 357,995

FRBAERREFE Cash and cash equivalents at
HE the end of the year 25 286,774 247,320

FE1NREEIENM AN SHEE S H®EL  The notes on pages 193 to 305 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
BEEEf oy o statements.
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HE2023F12A83NBIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

FREEHFEEERABA(NTEAT RN
017F10ABRERSHSREBARER
MRk AERRERART - Rz
Bz b HE /A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands © £ X BE& E it AP EAR
FANE ([ A B ) R YITh 42 H = & 5K 66
SRAEIRERDAESTE o KRRIKRHK
2018F12ZH6 BN ERBBER S MBER AR
(TBE3RFT ) EMR E7 -

ARBNBEEERARREEKRERRA
A(RERE]  HERERBRUEHS
((REBEZHEE ) EMKINERERR
MARREEREREEEEREGR AT
(MERHEER]) RARFNKRZZERA
Bl » ZRRIRFASESEM - EBO
IRBERZ P ER £ -

ARRIREWEB AR (G %M ) tE
REVMEEERY  BREYEEE - AE
KB BRI RS - HBIRFF S
B RESEE  REBLZREMEERR
& o

HZE2023F12A31 B It FERNGE MR
XRORKRHEESSN024FE3 822 B H#E £
{Zﬁo

Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 13 October 2017 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is Room 507, Block A, Kaisa Center,
66 Nanyuan Road, Futian, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
The Company’s share were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 December 2018.

The Company's immediate holding company is Ye Chang Investment Company
Limited ("Ye Chang Investment”), an investment company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), whereas the directors of the Company regard Kaisa
Group Holdings Ltd. ("Kaisa Holdings") as the Company's ultimate holding
company, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) engage in the
provision of property management services, which includes management
of properties, maintenance and repair of buildings and ancillary facilities,
community security management, car-park management, equipment installation,
and property consulting services.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2024.
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EIKZEZHFEBBR/A R KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA") and the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”).

The material accounting policies that have been used in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group's consolidated financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI") which are stated at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are used
in preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management'’s best knowledge and judgement
of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power over the entity, only substantive rights relating to the entity (held by
the Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a subsidiary in the
consolidated financial statements from the date it gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-group
asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also
tested for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts reported
in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.



196

AN
,%/T\:l

B RS Rk Myt

EIKZEZHFEBBR/A R KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 HEEE®R)

IR AR B MR RS
A B ARARAREEE AR
MEFIIR o FHEBREDREEARE
MERBEIEANFRERGSAENREME
T et AR REE SR PR R 2 S AN AR
BAZHENE  YR&GFaRmREMm
EEWERFIIR

AR B R =S — KB A B 2 22
& - AR ER 2Bt I A TR
ZERE TR EZAFE
BEREAREERZ A FEEIEM
Kl BARLR 2 EE(BRERER)
KA EREFSHERE S 2 BRE(E
B AR ZETEEREREENK
NFEEME - MEERFERER
Hip 2 ER s R X s 25t 0 Al
AT E s 2 E Wk R M s R
At BRREABNARREERL
ERBEEZTAARBERDR
ERSREREREREAT) - R
REZHIEE B INRERATHE AR
ZEMRERFEE - BIREEEM
BHRELERFESRI SR TE | 1K
BRERARRM = PIRER 2 AF
BE  X(WERRBERRKEE
BRZEZNTHERRA

BRIEMB AR FHEL ERFTANLE
MR - BRI BB IR R
(FI5E32) 7 - FEB A Bl A A E R
MERRIIRR - RAKHABARKRE
HERREEITMELNREZE) - 5K
AT EREREEREENRA -

MBARMEERAR AN HE B
el kRIS MEESIER - TR
PTUWCER AR B AR B B R BB A 3
WRERENIEL - 2EBREHIRAR
MBS ER -

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from the equity attributable to
the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Where
certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or
fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position (note 32), subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held
for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost
also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are
recognised in the Company's profit or loss.
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2.3 Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses which are not under common
control are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition — date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value on the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date. The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounting
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as a financial
liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value with
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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Business combinations (Continued)

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity before the
acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence,
which is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity
method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the determination of the Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the associate is carried at
cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of
the associate’s net assets less any identified impairment loss, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). The profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for the year,
including any impairment loss on the investment in associate recognised
for the year. The Group’s other comprehensive income for the year includes
its share of the associate’s other comprehensive income for the year.
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2.4 Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates. Where
unrealised losses on assets sales between the Group and its associate
are reversed on equity accounting, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where necessary,
to conform the associate or joint venture's accounting policies to those
of the Group when the associate’s financial statements are used by the
Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group's interest in the
associate is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

After the application of equity method, the Group determines whether it
is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in associate
is impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable
amount (i.e. higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) of
the associate and its carrying amount. In determining the value in use of
the investment, the Group estimates its share of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the associate,
including cash flows arising from the operations of the associate and the
proceeds on ultimate disposal of the investment.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities, foreign
currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated (i.e. only
translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

20%-33.33%
10%-33.33%

Leasehold improvement
Furniture, fittings and office equipment

10%-20%
2.5%-5%

Motor vehicles
Buildings

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.



2.6

2.7

2.8

EIKEEFEBABR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 201

3% - BERHREE)
BRERANABEN AR AR EE TR
B2 A B AR S E RS - Max BB
B AR RE AT SERT 2 - BRAR BN

BT ARENRHERBERAR A
BYBE(MER) - I EMEA
(NAEE B AR 3R ) TA B A B O B RCHA RS
RBas P IER

BE
EBAHELZAENESEH#
AKERMEAREE - mEERR
WEAHEEERENATE KR
WRETT (ERIFEE R s 2 & 7R S
73 SRR A BB 77 AR (a0 ) &Y
RFEZBE  BAAKENEE
FAHAEERAEFAFEIES
HZRRTE °

BEEA AR RETRERRIR - &
BRORERECELEN  YEEF
EITRERI

REREEHRBRRR - BEHEE
AMeeBHBRENERE L EMEKaE

HEBZ SHEA -

BILEE (BRI
ERBSHNEFEEVLSIEKABR
R MY HER% - BBERAIERF
HAR B B E R A AR R AT 8 I (T
R REHREEESIER - EBRAI{ER
FHNEFEENGTAER TSR
AEAREEE S o B A E A {E AR
BERNEESY - A AFEMEALT ¢
EFBE VESES
BESHEERAFEAFHENSHRER
HRR ST WA E E R E A% o

EEERT XM 29T E TR
BRI -

2.6

2.7

2.8

R B RARTEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs
and maintenance, are recognised to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the
date that control is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured
as the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually for impairment.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of gain
or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost. After initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation
commences when the intangible assets are available for use. The
following useful lives are applied:
Customer relationship 7-10 years
The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as described below in note 2.9.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets (other than contract
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assets)
The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

—  Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries;

— Intangible assets;

—  Property, plant and equipment;

—  Right-of-use assets; and

—  The Company's investments in subsidiaries (note 32)

Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or those
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they are impaired. All
other assets are tested for impairment whenever there are indications that
the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some
are tested at cash-generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified. Goodwill in particular is
allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose and not be larger than an operating segment.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets (other than contract

assets) (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which goodwill
has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying amount of
goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other
assets in the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or
value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period
relates.

2.10 Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are transferred. A financial
liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or
expires.



&

204 EIKEEFEBABR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

R BB IRR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. EXEFBUEREE ») 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL|C|ES (Continued)
210 &R IT A (%) 2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

SREEZSERNSHE Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

it #E 8 KB E KD BIRE B EIE Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant
LR F5SR[ EER P A a eS| financing component and are measured at the transaction price in

B GERAEZEINE ZEERIN accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, all

FESREELLATE  tnalr3E financial assets are initially measured at fair value, in case of a financial

RATEKIEIAENSHEE 8 asset not at FVTPL plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to

EiNEEEBEBRNEZSREENT the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets

SR o AT EKIBHEAENS R carried at FVTPL are expensed in the profit or loss.

BEMNRXHRARBRIN

SRMEEGEERAEMELH AT AR Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as hedging
SRVEBERIN DA THIEER : instruments, are classified into the following categories:
IR SERNANET E 5 3 -~ amortised cost; or
- EBATERBZEAR: % - FVIPLor
— BATESEBEEREAR - = ROCl
SEETRE T YIMIBEE The classification is determined by both:
— EUEEEBEHESREE KRR —  the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset; and
AR
— SRBEZAYBEERERY - —  the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
SRIBERIBSNER Z FrG 1Bk All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in
AR R EWRAEREBEY - M profit or loss are presented within finance income, net, except for provision
EREEREIASBEENES S for loss allowance which is presented as a separate item in profit or loss.

5l] o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the
following conditions (and are not designated as FVTPL):

—  they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
financial assets and collect its contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect
of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade receivables, other receivables (excluding
prepayments), payments on behalf of residents and amounts due from
related parties fall into this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL and FVOCI

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than
“hold to collect” or “hold to collect and sell” are categorised at FVTPL.
Further, irrespective of business model, financial assets whose contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted
for at FVTPL.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment, the Group elects to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in “Fair value reserve —
non-recycling” in equity. Such elections are made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, but only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets at FVTPL and FVOCI (Continued)

Equity investments (Continued)

The equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss in “Fair value reserve — non-recycling” will not
be reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to retained profits.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables (excluding
other tax payables), amounts due to related parties and lease liabilities.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially measured at
fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the
Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method except
for derivatives which are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are
carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s
fair value that are reported in profit or loss are included within finance
income, net.

Trade and other payables (excluding other tax payables) and
amounts due to related parties

Trade and other payables (excluding other tax payables) and amounts
due to related parties are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.11 Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

HKFRS 9's impairment requirements use more forward-looking information
to recognise expected credit losses (“ECL”) — the “ECL model”. Instruments
within the scope included loans and other debt-type financial assets
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, contract assets recognised
and measured under HKFRS 15.

The Group considers a broader range of information when assessing
credit risk and measuring ECL, including past events, current conditions,
reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between:

—  financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in
credit quality since initial recognition or that have low credit risk
(“Stage 1"); and

—  financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit
quality since initial recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 2").

“Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of
impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL" are recognised for the Stage 1 category while “lifetime
ECL" are recognised for the Stage 2 and Stage 3 categories.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
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(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date. These are the expected shortfalls in
contractual cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience and external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the
ECL rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss
rates for the contract assets.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other receivables equal to
12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increase in the likelihood or risk of default occurring since initial
recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the financial assets at the reporting date with the risk of default occurring
on the financial assets at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.11 Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in regulatory, business,
financial, economic conditions, or technological environment that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations; and

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 180 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the end of each
reporting period. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if it has a low risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash
flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when (i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral held
by the Group); or (ii) the financial asset is more than three years past due.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation ; or

the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties; or

the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables,
contract assets and other financial assets measured at amortised
cost are set out in note 4.1(ii).

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities
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A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue (see
note 2.21) before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.11 and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2.10).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue (see note 2.21). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 2.10).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and other financial
institutions and in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank deposits which are
restricted are included in “Restricted cash” of the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.14 Leases

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract,
that conveys the right to use an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition, the
Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which
are whether:

e the contracts contain an identified asset, which is either explicitly
identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at
the time the asset is made available to the Group;

e the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use,
considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract; and

e the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use. The Group assess whether it has
the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

Allocation of consideration to components of contract

For contracts that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease and non-lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.14 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability on the consolidated statement of financial position.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of
the lease commencement date (net of any lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from
the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term unless the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. The
Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicator exists.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liahility at
the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are
made up of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable payments based on an
index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payment of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for lease
payments made and increased for interest cost on the lease liability. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the
period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected
in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is
already reduced to zero.

Short-term lease

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 month or less.

The Group presents the right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

(b)

The Group as a lessor
As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as either operating or finance
leases.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, and
classified as an operating lease if it does not.

The Group sub-leases some of its properties and the sub-lease contracts
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

2.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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2. EXEFBERBME ») 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
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A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events but
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the part
of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties is treated as
a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it
becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be
required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a
provision is recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs, except in the
extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is recognised at the
amount of consideration of shares issued, after deducting any transaction
costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the
equity transaction.

2.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.19 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to,
or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated according
to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, tax losses available to be carried forward as well
as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit, including existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity if they relate
to items that are charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.19 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
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When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average tax
rates that are expected to apply to the taxable income of the periods in
which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an estimation of (1)
when the existing temporary differences will reverse and (2) the amount of
future taxable profit in those years. The estimate of future taxable profit
includes:

—  income or loss excluding reversals of temporary differences; and

—  reversals of existing temporary differences

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if, and
only if,

a.  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and

b. intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in net
if, and only if,

a.  the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities; and

b.  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

ii. different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.20 Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
relevant income and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make contribution
to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed in the central pension scheme. The
Group has no forfeiture of pension scheme contributions (i.e. contributions
processed by the employer on behalf of the employee who has exited the
scheme prior to vesting of such contributions). As at 31 December 2023, no
forfeited contribution under the pension scheme of the Group is available
for deduction of contribution payable in coming years.
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2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
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Short-term employee benefits
Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises
costs for any related restructuring.

Equity-settled share-based compensation benefits
The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation plans for
remuneration of its directors and employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share-
based compensation are measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the equity instruments awarded. Their value
is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense in profit or loss
over the vesting period if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity instruments granted vest
immediately unless the compensation qualifies for recognition as asset,
with a corresponding increase in the “Share option reserve” in equity.
If vesting conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting
period, based on the best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of equity instruments that are expected
to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of equity instruments expected to vest differs from previous
estimates.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
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Equity-settled share-based compensation henefits (Continued)
At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in “Share option reserve” will be transferred to “Share capital”.
After vesting date, when the vested share options are later forfeited or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
“Share option reserve” will be transferred to “Retained earnings”.

Kaisa Holdings, also operates equity-settled share option schemes and
grants equity instruments (“option”) to employees of its subsidiaries
within the group of Kaisa Holdings.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of options of Kaisa Holdings is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions. At each reporting date, the
Group revises the estimates of the number of options and awarded shares
of Kaisa Holdings that are expected to ultimately vest. They recognise
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the Group,
with a corresponding adjustment made to contribution from shareholder
over the remaining vesting period.

2.21 Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue
The Group provides property management services, pre-delivery
and consulting services, community value-added services and smart
solution services. Revenue from providing services is recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered.
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(i)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)
To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows a
b-step process:

1. ldentifying the contract with a customer
2. ldentifying the performance obligations
3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations;
and

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are
satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated
amongst the various performance obligations based on their relative
stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not
directly observable, they are estimated based on expected cost plus
a margin or adjusted market assessment approach, depending on
the availability of observable information. The transaction price for a
contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group presents
the contract in the consolidated statement of financial position as a
contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the Group’s performance and the customer’s payment.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or
as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the
promised goods or services to its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Revenue (Continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

Property management services

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed amount for
services provided on a monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to invoice and that corresponds
directly with the value of performance completed.

For property management services income from properties managed
under lump-sum basis, where the Group acts as a principal and is primary
responsible for providing the property management services to the property
owners, the Group recognises the fee received or receivable from property
owners as its revenue and all related property management costs as its
direct operating expenses.

For property management services income from properties managed
under commission basis, the Group recognises the commission, which
is calculated by certain percentage of the total property management
fee received or receivable from the property units, or total property
management cost incurred or accrual by the property units, as its revenue
for arranging and monitoring the services as provided by other suppliers to
the property owners.

Pre-delivery and consulting services

Pre-delivery and consulting services to non-property owners mainly
includes fees for construction sites management, display units and
property sales venues management and consulting services to property
developers at the pre-delivery stage, and property management consulting
services provided to other property management companies which are
billed based on actual level of services provided at pre-determined price
and revenue is recognised when such services are provided.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Revenue (Continued)

Community value-added services

Community value-added services include mainly i) value-added services,
which mainly include a K Life mobile app to consolidate the Group's
previous platforms to offer an upgraded one-stop service for all of the
residential communities, is recognised when the services are rendered:; ii)
fees generated from our car parking and space leasing, which is recognised
over the time when such services are rendered; iii) commission income
from real estate brokerage and asset management services is recognised
at the point in time when the services are rendered and accepted by
the customers; and iv) revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer,
generally on the acceptance of the goods by the customer. Payment of the
transaction is due immediately when the community value-added services
are rendered to the customer.

Smart solution services

For smart solution services, the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset or work in progress that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced, thus the Group satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, by reference to completion of the
specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual costs incurred up
to the reporting date as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is
a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under “Other
gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

2.23 Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group.

the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions applies:

the entity and the Group are members of the same group.

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Related parties (Continued)

(continued)

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

2.24 Segment information

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported
to the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for their
review of the performance of those components. The business components
in the internal financial information reported to the CODM are determined
following the Group’s major product and service lines.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENT
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS"”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October
2020 and February 2022)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillars Two

Models Rules

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had
no material impact on the Group’s financial position and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

The adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how
the results and financial position for the current and prior years have been
prepared and presented.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENT
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

Amendment to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or
non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendment to HKAS 1 Non-current liabilities with Covenants?

Amendment to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangement?
HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?
i Effective date not yet determined
Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

The directors of the Company anticipate that applicable pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group's accounting policy for the first period beginning on or after
the effective date of the pronouncement and do not expect the pronouncement
will have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.
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4. BRI ER 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
41 BERBEZE 4.1 Financial risk factors

AEBEEBHBRZBMBRR © MX
R - EERR  RBIERR - SNE
[\ K EAL ERE R - ANEEAERE
R ERETEIESR™ ST AITE
A - WRSKEEFFEH AR E R
RENBERZE

ERMEERSERR

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: interest
rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and other price
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Categories of financial assets and liabilities

20234
2023

AR®TR
RMB’000

20224F
2022
ARET T
RMB'000

REBHERANEREERBE : Financial assets at amortised cost
and impairment:

FEUE SRR Trade receivables 393,552 828,845
HAbfEW RIE (RE3ETERZXIE)  Other receivables (excluding prepayments) 56,105 55,520
REEPNR Payments on behalf of residents 95,107 79,192
JE Y B A R Amounts due from related parties 6,697 3,963
2RI Restricted cash 450 491
BE RIS EEIER Cash and cash equivalents 286,774 247,320
EAVELKEMEHEUWE ABRE  Financial assets at FVOCI:

SRMEE .

FEETRAKRE Unlisted equity investment - 15,000

BAFEREZARNSEEE ¢ Financial assets at FVTPL:

Hih & ph & & Other financial assets 184,036 327,731
1,022,721 1,558,062

REERANEREE Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

B E ZERR Trade payables 194,032 190,992

HAbERFRIB (T RIEEM Other payables (excluding other tax payables)

FERIHLIE) 356,589 335,256
FERTREE A L FOE Amounts due to related parties 4,081 9,629
HEAE Lease liabilities 12,061 15,413

566,763 551,290
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4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, lease liabilities and
loan to a third party. Restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Lease liabilities and loan to a third party at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group closely monitors
trend of interest rate and its impact on the Group's interest rate risk
exposure. The Group currently has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging interest rate risk should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s exposure to interest
rate is considered immaterial.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms of
the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit
to customers in the ordinary course of its operations and from its
investing activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components
of the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December
2023 and 2022 is the carrying amount as disclosed in as above.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. Internal risk control assesses the
credit quality of the customers, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverability of these receivables at each reporting
date based on historical settlements records and experience and
adjusts for forward-looking information, to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for ECL
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables and contract assets.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the past due
status. The ECL also incorporate forward-looking information.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group considered that there was an
increase in credit risk of trade receivables having considered effect
of delay in settlement of trade receivables resulting from the slow
recovery of the PRC’s economy. An ECL amount of approximately
RMB621,414,000 (2022: RMB118,990,000) was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2023 in respect of the trade receivables
based on the principle of prudence.

The contract assets in relation to smart solution services primarily
relate to the Group's rights to consideration for work completed but
not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred
to receivables when the rights become unconditional. The Group
has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables in relation to customers from smart solution services are
a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group considered that there was
an increase in credit risk of contract assets from related parties
having considered effect of delay in settlement of trade receivables
resulting from the slow recovery of the PRC’s economy. An ECL
amount of approximately RMB61,447,000 (2022: RMB4,089,000)
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2023 based on the
principle of prudence.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

=) 4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

For cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, the Group has
assessed that they were placed at state-owned banks and other
medium or large size listed banks and other financial institutions
with high credit rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. The risk of default is low based on market information and
the Group considers the credit risk to be insignificant.

Amounts due from related parties for trade nature

As at 31 December 2023, the Group considered that there was an
increase in credit risk of amounts due from related parties having
considered the effect of delay in settlement of trade receivables
resulting from the slow recovery of the PRC’s economy. An ECL
amount of approximately RMB608,011,000 (2022: RMB104,507,000)
for amounts due from related parties for trade nature, was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2023 based on the
principle of prudence.

Deposits, other receivables other than those from related parties and
payments on behalf of residents

The Group has monitoring procedures and follow-up actions
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverability of these receivables at the reporting date to ensure
that adequate ECL are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group
considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis at the end of each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Deposits, other receivables other than those from related parties and
payments on behalf of residents (Continued)

Forward-looking information is incorporated in the ECL model. The
Group has performed historical analysis and identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL. It also considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating
e external credit rating

e  Qactual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of individual property owner or the borrower

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the individual property owner or the same
borrower

e significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the Group and changes in the operating
results of the borrower
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4. MIEEMEE 4 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
41 HEERBEEZEE) 4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) EERE(E) (ii)  Credit risk (Continued)
20234 2022512 A31H » & As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance provision was
BEEBEETOT : determined as follows:

20204
2022

20235
2023

B
B

Expected
loss rate

REAE
Gross
carrying
amount
ARET T
RMB'000

BiR
EERE
Loss
allowance
provision
ARET T
RMB'000

REAE
Gross
carrying
amount
AREFT
RMB'000

B
R
Loss
allowance
provision
ARETT
RMB'000

EWESERZ(FEIE  Trade receivables (excluding
EWBEEALES trade receivables from
B related parties)
I s ER PR Neither past due nor impaired 0%/0% 8,072 - 9,533 -
BR-FR Overdue within 1 year 5%/5% 301,022 15,051 262,819 13,141
BH-ZEMEF Overdue 1102 years 25%/25% 55,150 13,788 68,471 17,118
BERE=F QOverdue 2 to 3 years 35%/35% 38,613 13,515 17,882 6,259
BHRE=F Overdue over 3 years 60%/60% 23,453 14,072 10,842 6,505
426,310 56,426 369,547 43,023
EKE S EX Trade receivables
(BEAL) (related parties)
VSR INERE Neither past due nor impaired 0%/0% - - 7113 -
BH—ER Overdue within 1 year 97.25%/28.40% 382,862 372,333 397,595 112,908
BHE-ZWE QOverdue 1to 2 years 97.25%/34.85% 247,644 240,834 318,342 110,928
BEME=F QOverdue 2 to 3 years 97.25%/67.12% 222,681 216,557 1,625 5118
BHRE=F Overdue over 3 years 97.20%/NE A 7,446 1,241 = =
N/A
860,633 836,965 731,275 228,954
4t Total 1,286,943 893,391 1,100,822 21,977
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4. BIEER &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 HEERBEEZEE) 4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) FE@ERE

(ii) Credit risk (Continued)

2023 20205
2023 2022
TR BB B
BEX  REAE  EERE 2 RREE  EEEA

Gross Loss Gross Loss

Expected carrying  allowance carrying allowance
loss rate amount provision amount provision
ARMTR ARMTR ARETT ARETRT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

B& HiEWRIE  Deposits, other receivables
RRREFAR and payments on hehalf
(FEERMTHE) of residents (excluding

prepayments)
b Deposits 1%/1% 23538 235 26,004 260
HiEWIERAR  Other receivables and payments
(E3SINE on behalf of residents

BH—ER Overdue within 1 year 5%/5% 89,364 4,469 86,073 4,304

BH-EWE Overdue 1 to 2 years 25%/25% 3177 8,295 32,276 8,069

HEME=F Overdue 2 to 3 years 35%/35% 24,375 8,532 2,510 878

BEER=F Overdue over 3 years 60%/60% 5122 3433 3,403 2,043
176,176 24,964 150,266 15,554

AEEERE2EHELES
ABE (PN REBEBAB
EEORRBEE - BRERE
B R R RRATELEER) A
BEERHEER REREH
R AEEEEEEHEHF
HREFRARE  UYERETE
BEHEBERENBARBERTR
EREFR -

The management of the Group determines the expected loss rate
by reference to several key inputs such as the Group's historical
probabilities of the default risk of debtors, the credit risk exposure
of the receivables and forward-looking information. At the end of
each reporting period, the management of the Group reassesses
these inputs regularly and considers whether the input used in the
determination of the expected loss rate significantly improved or
deteriorated.
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4. MIEEMEE 4 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
41 BIHEEBEEZEGE) 4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) EEREE) (ii)  Credit risk (Continued)
20234 ) 202212 A31H » fE As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance provision
WE SEFRREMEIKFRIE for trade and other receivables, deposits and payments on behalf
e MREEPHR(TBIERE of residents (excluding prepayments) reconciles to the opening loss
HFIE ) R X B B 1 o allowance for that provision as follows:

ZEEREBRERLROT ¢

304 %&e > Hitr
B2ERR EWFER
(TR kK R&REF
BEAL BEALT AR(FEE
E35&R) BEZRR  RARE)
Deposits,

Trade other

receivables receivables
(excluding and payments
trade Trade  on behalf of
receivables  receivables residents
fromrelated  from related (excluding Contract
parties) parties  prepayments) assets Total
ARETRE AR%®Tn AR¥TR AR%TR AR%Tn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

202251 A18 As at 1 January 2022 28,540 124,447 13,261 11,921 178,169
PEE TR Provision for loss allowance

BREERRE recognised in profit or loss

(PBHzE10) (note 10) 14,483 104,507 2,293 4,089 125,372

R02F12A318 As at 31 December 2022 and

2023%F1/18 1 January 2023 43,023 228,954 15,554 16,010 303,541
RIERPHERM Provision for loss allowance

BEEERE recognised in profit or loss

(FzE10) (note 10) 13,403 608,011 9,410 67,738 698,562

R2023512831R As at 31 December 2023 56,426 836,965 24,964 83,748 1,002,103
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade payables,
other payables (excluding other tax payables), amounts due to
related parties, lease liabilities and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group's objective is to maintain an appropriate
level of liquid assets and committed lines of funding to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual maturities for
its financial liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. When the
creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled, the liability
is included on the basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in
instalments, each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in
which the Group is committed to pay.

The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.
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4. BIERARER s
41 BBRBEEE)
(iii) FRENMERBR(E)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued)

—FR KR
BREX -ZWE MELE BREE HEMELE REE
Within Total

1year or Between Between Over undiscounted Carrying
ondemand 1and2years  2and5years 5years cash flow amount
AR®TT ARBTT ARETR AR%Tr ARBTR ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RABE12ANE  Asat31 December 2023
ERNBHER Trade payables 194,032 - - - 194,032 194,032
HibENTIE Other payables

(TBEEM (excluding other

FEfiBiE) tax payables) 30713 5,876 - - 356,509 356,509
JERBEEATIVE  Amounts due to related parties 4,081 - - - 4,081 4,081
HERR Lease liabilities 6,084 5,078 1,561 - 1213 12,061

554,910 10,954 1,561 - 567,425 566,763

R02E128318  Asat31December 2022
BB SER Trade payables 190,992 - - - 190,992 190,992
HihENFIE Other payables

(TBEEM (excluding other

ENTHIE) tax payables| 316,708 18492 ) - 335,266 335,206
FEMBEATIUE  Amounts due to related parties 9629 - - - 9629 9629
HEEfE Lease liabilties 5,974 4,904 512 - 16590 15413

523,303 23,3% 5768 = 552,467 551,290
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4. BIERARER s
4.1 UERBREZEE)
(iv)

SN LR

SNERBEERTAZAFE
HARRBA LR E RSN E R EE
KB AR - AEEAF
ZNERBRAEEREE (A
Br((Erl)REXT((Ex])
FHE) - BT EETAIFEEE
BEPERXFEMNETE -

AERTAHEZ & B & E AR
ERGESAREZBERNT :

e IR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposures to
currency risk arise from its financial assets which are denominated
in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD"”) and United States Dollar (“USD"). They
are not the functional currencies of the group entities to which these
transactions relate.

USD denominated financial assets, translated into RMB at the
closing rates, are as follows:

20234 20224F
2023 2022

AR®TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

RekReEHEEE Cash and cash equivalents 1,564 2,407

TRINTARBRAFEZRAT
BREENRESHESEE
BINGEER X TIHEN R
B - BRELRIIRAERE
B A B A EB R 5 SN LB B
KA REREHEXAEE
8 &fEMbE

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit after income
tax for the year and equity in regards to an appreciation in the group entities’
functional currencies against USD. These sensitivity rates are the rates used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s best assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

A
BREL=R EiERED R
Sensitivity Decrease in Decrease in
rate profit or loss equity
ARMBF T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
20235 2023
=TT usb 50E & 2
50 basis point 6 6
20224 2022
=TT usD SOfEE 2L 9 9

50 basis point
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4. BIERARER s 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 BIEREBEZEE) 4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) SMERBE (%) (iv) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
BT EZ S mEE KT HKD denominated financial assets, translated into RMB at the
fERE A AR IS0 : closing rates, are as follows:
2023F 20224F
2023 2022
AR¥ET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
Re NS EEIER Cash and cash equivalents 2,393 8,455
TRINTAEBREAEEZRA The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit
EHEEAN RERAHERE after income tax for the year and equity in regards to an appreciation
B EE L BT ENSR in the group entities’ functional currencies against HKD. These
E - BRELETRAEEE sensitivity rates are the rates used when reporting foreign currency
B A B 1EREBIR &5 SN B B s risk internally to key management personnel and represents
KA REREYEXRT R management's best assessment of the possible change in foreign
&) 2 s EMET exchange rates.
AR
BRELR B B
Sensitivity Decrease in Decrease in
rate profit or loss equity
AR¥ET T ARMT T
RMB'000 RMB'000
20234 2023
BT HKD 501E & 2
50 basis point 9 9
20224F 2022
BIT HKD ORI 2, 32 32

50 basis point
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H b B LR
7N 5= B A E 220224 F2 2023412
A31 8 I F 78S KB RE

B

ATEMEH

SR ARIHEATEEFAAMHER
5680 A SR AR 2 FAEFIE T
REROTRNT :

HREEXABREEETESH
HECRERR) (F1EBR)

BREVERMBEINEELRE
A B RE AR - RERAD
B kEE (AVREER) AX
MEREXTAIBREARE
(R2EMR) »
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(v)  Other price risk
The Group did not expose to material price risk for the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2023.

4.2 Fair value estimation
Financial instruments carried at fair value, by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

e (uoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liahilities (level 1).

e |nputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and not using significant
unobservable inputs (level 2).

e |nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, significant unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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4. BIERRER )
43 ATLEER

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Fair value hierarchy

REBEIARKAE LR KRR

REE20234F 12022412 A31H [EF
BB B2RFIL M ES
%  REENBRERNAFEERZ
IR EIREE A F 3RS B HRE B T UARE

7

A2023F12H31H
A ELER
AR SREE

As at 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no
transfers between level 1, 2 and 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the reporting date in
which they occur.

F1ER 28R 3/ st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARBTRE AR®TRT AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

AR®T T
RMB'000

- - 184,306 184,306

- - 184,306 184,306

2022412 B31H

BN ELEA
2EWRE AR
SRIEE

BAFELER
AR ESREE

As at 31 December 2022
Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

- = 15,000 15,000

= = 327,731 327,731

= = 342,731 342,731

TMTANDFETE
RIEETAFER - ARERATEER
AERTSEE - IAKERAYE
AESER/RFIANERTAMES
AEEE2ERREELRRTIZH
HBE FERTABEEHABER
MAFEFESEREIRNITAM
 AEEERBBEY A ERMLERD
HEITIHE - TRIEHERNAETX
FTRMEENRNFENER -

hf[[3

Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. For the Group’s financial instruments with fair value
measurement that are categorised under Level 1, the Group reference
to the quoted market price in active markets for identified assets. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs and hence the fair
value measurement are categorised under Level 3, the Group engages
independent qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

4. BIBEAMER )
4.3 DAVFEEBHR(E)

ERMIANAPETE®E)

i REEENATE
Fair value at
ABEF
2023

ARBTR
RMB'000

Description
mE
i/l
ARETT
RMB'000

Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments (Continued)

fERM

Valuation technique

EXTURRBARE

Significant unobservable inputs

TIREGAHE
RATENBE
Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

BOFEEEMEE - 500 BNE-RRMAREREEES WEERENTOREMNE . UEERXES  SREEATE
WS \NENEREE RESBARERALEER  NFHREN%G) EPFHREE ¥R

Financial asset at
FVToct

ROBRAREENENRE -

Income approach - Discounted cash
flow method was used to capture the
present value of the expected future
economic benefits to be derived from
the asset with suitable discount rate.

ENERISZETR BRI
[ERSRETETANRL -
Revenue growth rate ranged from 8% to

9% (2022: 25% to 30%, taking into
account the management’'s experience
with reference to the independent
qualified valuer's knowledge of market
conditions of the specific industries.

RN (2002F 135%) * &
hat RERE A EEERE
EEMIMETIERRAE «

Discount rate of 20.5% (2022: 135%),
taking into account weighted average
cost of capital determined using a
Capital Asset Pricing Model.

Higher the revenue growth rate would
increase the fair value of financial
assets

TREHE  SRAELTYE
B

Lower the discount rate would increase
the fair value of the financial assets
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4. BIERBRER 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
43 ATEEHBE) 4.3 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
SRMIENATEIE(E) Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments (Continued)

FTEERAYE
it REEENATE fhERH EXTARREAHE BAVENEE
Relationship of unobservable
Description Fair value at Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value

ABE WE
03 e
ARETT  ARETR
RMB1000 RMB00

RATESEEARY 184,306 W WNE-RRFRRLRELES HEEMREO(0F mE  EBEREYR SRAELTE
THAE REAEMAZRALEER  SWHEBERXHEE B ER
FOERAREENGNRE .  THRERENERYSZE
TRERIENEEETED

R «
Financial asset at Income approach — Discounted cash Estimation selling price with expected ~ Higher the selling price growth rate
FVTRL flow method was used to capture the growth rate for non-residential would increase the fair value of the
present value of the expected future properties by 2% (2022: 2% to financial assets

economic benefits to be derived from 5%), p.a. taking into account the

the asset with suitable discount rate. management's experience with
reference to the independent qualified
valuer's knowledge of market
conditions of the specific industries.

FRE%(ANE 105%) &% FREGE  eREELTE

]
ARRREAAERERLYE  HR
EHIMETSEARA -

Discount rate of 12% (2022: 10.5%), Lower the discount rate would increase
faking into account weighted average  the fair value of the financial assets
cost of capital determined using a
Capital Asset Pricing Model.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

5.1

5.2

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment,
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.9, where the
recoverable amounts of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates. Details of
impairment assessment and key assumptions are disclosed in note 17.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwvill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets (other
than goodwill) at the reporting date. These non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or CGU and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.



246

R B ERARTEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. EXEHAFT RAE

5.2

5.3
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M20235F 128318 - REBE IR
EFRAIREHNBE AR ZRERE
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BE - ZE2HEREEE QTR
Cl&5  BEREERAFEREE
ERATHRESE - ErrEFERER
B AEBETEESZ(HETEIEH
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AR ERR o

R2023%12A31H » REtE R a2
REREREEAAR34,292,0007T
(20224 : AR#53233,0007T) @ 5
RAFERBRPRERABEARE
24,070,0007C(20224F : ARBEZ L)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5.2

5.3

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of the property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets are RMB19,250,000,
RMB25,969,000 and RMB184,041,000 (2022: RMB23,559,000,
RMB31,456,000 and RMB200,566,000) respectively.

Impairment of investment in associate

As at 31 December 2023, the Group performed impairment assessment
on investments in associates in relation to those investments that have
impairment indicators. Determining whether impairment loss should
be recognised requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
relevant associate which is the higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the management
of the Group to estimate the present value of the estimated cash flows
expected to arise from dividends to be received from the associate and the
proceeds from the ultimate disposal of the investment. In case where the
actual cash flows are less or more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future cash flows estimation or
discount rate, a material reversal or further recognition of impairment may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the investment in
associates amounted to RMB34,292,000 (2022: RMB53,233,000), after
taking into account the impairment of RMB24,070,000 (2022: RMB nil)
recognised in profit or loss during the year.
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Estimation of impairment of trade receivables and other
items within the scope of ECL under HKFRS 9

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to ECL (including trade
and other receivables (excluding prepayments), payments on behalf of
residents, amounts due from related parties and contract assets) based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
used judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of trade receivables and other
items within the scope of ECL of HKFRS 9 and ECL allowances in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed. For details of the key
assumptions and inputs used, see note 4.1(ii) above.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables (excluding prepayments), payments on behalf of
residents, amounts due from related parties and contract assets are
RMB449,657,000, RMB95,107,000, RMB6,697,000 and RMB52,460,000
(2022: RMB884,365,000, RMB79,192,000, RMB3,963,000 and
RMB113,636,000), respectively. Details of the provision for ECL allowance
of trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments), payments on
behalf of residents, amounts due from related parties and contract assets
are set out in notes 21, 22, 24 and 23 respectively.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income amounting to RMB184,306,000 and RMB nil
respectively (2022: RMB327,731,000 and RMB15,000,000) are measured
at fair value with fair value being determined based on significant
unobservable inputs using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation
are required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the
relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could result in material adjustments to the fair value of these instruments.
See note 4.3 for further disclosures.
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6. WERSEBEHR 6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
6.1 Uz 6.1 Revenue
(a) WHEIEBFIEHYWESER (a)  Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from provision of property
% RN MERRSE - E management services, pre-delivery and consulting services,
188 AR5 & 55 e i SR Ty 22 AR 7% community value-added services and smart solution services. An
HFTS I8 - ANE B NE 22023 analysis of the Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December
F 20212 A31 B IEEE Rk 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
BAFE :
20235 20226
2023 2022
Wi HEQEHX e BEELERX
Direct Direct
operating operating
Revenue expenses Revenue expenses
AR¥TR ARBTR AR¥TT ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
PR 7 38 5 Type of services
MEEIEIRS Property management services 1,338,099 1,031,662 1,248,191 964,885
AT B A RS Pre-delivery and consulting services 155,811 117,568 239,941 182,324
R ERRS Community value-added services 176,065 76,205 155,495 51,946
HRERBR TR Smart solution services 124,292 87,485 140,256 113,621
1,794,267 1,312,920 1,783,883 1,312,776
2023F 20224F
2023 2022
ARBF T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RS ERS Timing of revenue recognition
BiE 5 R AR Recognise over time 1,751,380 1,740,812
KRB ER Recognise at a point in time 42,887 43,071

1,794,267 1,783,883
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6.1 W)

(a)

(b)

(%)
HE20BF12ANBILFE » #
EREERREKB AR ([E
KEER]) MEBERRRE
EERES R AREERK
2515% (20224 : 19%) ° BRrE2fE
KEEBREBERNRREE
TENRZIN REBTEA KR
EXFPMEEMELAIEER
H 22023 2022512 A31H 1E
FEURES10%E A £ ©

BHEBEEREHNEEFBRH
FT23HEE -

RERNBEHEE

S KB R A I A A MR
RRBME  EERFAAZEER
MEBEREAEEESREUR
EPNEBEEERYER A&
BRI RERREERBER
AREZENEHE - FRERER
TE AEBEEEBETHREZX
FRLANZRIBBEOEE -

PAtRIBERBNE @ ZER
BREREARRER  BRFER

LA ARETRBMELE -
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

6.1 Revenue (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from Kaisa Holdings
and its subsidiaries (the "Kaisa Group”) and its associates and joint
ventures contributed 15% (2022: 19%) of the Group’s revenue. Other
than the transactions with Kaisa Group and its associates and joint
ventures, the Group had a large number of customers and none of
whom contributed 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The details of contract assets and contract liabilities were disclosed
in note 23.

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services and pre-delivery and consulting
services, the Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals to
the right to invoice which corresponds directly with the value to the
customer of the Group's performance to date. The Group has elected
the practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for these types of contracts.

For community value-added services, they are rendered in a short
period of time and there is no unsatisfied performance obligation at
the end of the year.
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6. KESRDEBBER &

6.1

6.2

EIEFEEFEBARA T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED £ 3R ANNUAL REPORT 2023

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

s (48) 6.1 Revenue (Continued)
(b) (%) (b) (Continued)
MEEMAFTERBmMS + B For smart solution services, the transaction price allocated to the
20234 202212 A318 » e remaining unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations
R TNHRBLOKEE D ELY as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
BN SHEEAT :
2023F 20224F
2023 2022
ARMT T AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—FR Within one year 97,482 123,073
HBiE—F More than one year 94,920 104,748
192,402 227,821
EXBEENZESBRIEED These amounts disclosed above do not include transaction price allocated to
PEEBHNRBHRZERE - performance obligations which have been satisfied but not yet recognised due to
ZERZBERELENEAR variable consideration constraint.
A BRR il fm R AR o
DEER 6.2 Segment information

ERECRRTELBREA(TE
EEREA ) EENOBEETAE
S - AARNPTEFEHATS
8 ESRERRHEEED BER
EERBREA ©

B E 20234 %2022 12 31 8 IEF
B AREXEZEEPEESREDE
BEERY  RITRIREMRY - L&
ERRTS R B AR R RIRTS - B
BERARERARAE @ REKE
B R IR AT LA o
It ARARMEZLBEREAREH
AR R ZER D ER — [ -

AEBMESELERUNPE -
I AN B A E 20234 }20225512
A3 B I FEMAREHREPE -

HR2023F 2022128318 - FiE 3k
MBVBEHNNPE -

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (the”CODM") . The CODM,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segment, has been identified as the executive directors of
the Company.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group engaged
mainly in the provision of property management services, pre-delivery and
consulting services, community value-added services and smart solution
services in the PRC. Management reviews the operating results of the
business as one operating segment to make decisions about resources
allocations. Therefore, the CODM of the Company regards that there is
only one segment which is used to make strategic decisions.

The major operating entities of the Group are domiciled in the PRC.
Accordingly, all the Group's revenue were derived in the PRC for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the non-current assets were
located in the PRC.
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7. Hih(EE) 5B EE 7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEHBUR R WA (M EE) Unconditional government subsidy income (note) 8,044 21,234
HEWE - BERREESE Net losses on disposal of property, plant and
HRE equipment (666) (1,035)
(ss), /Y= R aT de Bl 2 Trade and other receivables and payment
FEUE 5 B8R TR M E A E LK on behalf of residents (written off)/recovered
FHEARRERERLIR as uncollectible (6,424) 2,652
YN W 25 F 58 Exchange gains, net 81 254
A Others (1,405) 1,286
(370) 24,391
MHEE : 5% BE 48 MEUR B R B3 75 BRI BP T A9 4 Note: The amount represented subsidy received from the local government bureau in the PRC.
Bh o 15F 4 R KCHR 3% 45 B 1 B A5 a1 R K Y There was no unfulfilled condition and other contingency attached to the receipt of

PR R B AEIR - subsidy.
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8. EEREFIFZ(EIEESHESE) 8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

20234 202246
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
TE& - HH Mk EMiEF Wages, salaries and other benefits 709,810 762,813
VARG R4S B S AR B X Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
(FftE3t) (note 31) 369 5,789
FEAESMHR Contributions to housing provident funds 14,664 17,622
REHRFGRIRETEIHR Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 81,129 72,775
805,972 858,999
FEBARMNES B BRSMmERTR The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of a retirement benefits
SRR BNFEIZKE - sRRETET scheme operated by the government of the respective cities in the PRC. The only
gimE AEENE—FEAELEEMHR obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to
e make the specified contributions.
HE2023F K202F12ANBILEFE - # During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there is no forfeited
EAMIREBER(BEZRERATEEEMH contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior
FEEEBIRLZTENESER At to vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce the
SO A e B AR R EIR R HFUKTE o existing level of contributions.
9. BIEMA 9. FINANCE COST
2023F 20224F
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000
mERX Finance expenses
HEAENERX Interest expense of lease liabilities (673) (770)

BhE A Finance cost (673) (770)
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10. BRET S AT (&) EF 10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME

20234
2023

AR®TR
RMB’000

BRPRS AT (B518), B RIS H
B (GEA) T RSB IRIZES :

(Loss)/profit before income tax has been arrived

at after charging/(crediting):

2 S5 B 55 B Auditor's remunerations 1,600
BINRA—BEEEHE Staff costs — including directors’ emoluments

(Ff17E8) (note 8)

— S ABEBEEERA — Included in direct operating expenses 660,671

— s ATTHREX — Included in administrative expenses 145,301
AL AT ZRIEHAA  Costin relation to smart solution services 87,485
HHEENTHEER Lease charges on short term leases 20,171
EAhFiIE Other taxes 7,215
EBREE Business entertainment expenses 9,262
e Depreciation

— W BB RERME(MIEE15)  — Property, plant and equipment (note 15) 5,271

—FREEE(NE9) — Right-of-use assets (note 19) 19,117
R A E R (M E17) Amortisation of intangible assets (note 17) 5,487
FEREXEER Legal and professional fees 10,541
i YNENE Office expenses 14,288
BN ELERARN Change in fair value on financial assets at fair value

SREELNTEEE) through profit or loss 143,425
B8R Provision for loss allowance

— BN E SRR (HIRE41) — Trade receivables (note 4.1) 621,414

— &S - BEMEWGRIE R — Deposits, other receivables and payments

REREFPHR(TBEE on behalf of residents (excluding
TERFIR) (M EE41) prepayments) (note 4.1) 9,410

— &5 HEE T — Contract assets (note 4.1) 67,738
Hiss, (Y A e ez Trade and other receivables and payments

FEEE 5 B 7k N H fih fE U on behalf of residents written off/(recovered)

FIEARRKEPF as uncollectible 6,424
ZIRE Travelling expenses 4,564

TAX

20224
2022
AREF T
RMB'000

1,500

691,959
167,040
113,621
15,975
8,238
7,632

6,876
19,925
5,486
5210
16,636

1,215

118,990

2,293
4,089

(2,652)
3,851
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1. FiEHiESE (Fx%) 11. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSES)
20234F 20224
2023 2022
ARKET T ARBTIT
RMB'000 RMB000
BNERFT1S AL Current income tax
— R EEMERH —PRC Corporate Income Tax 77,349 65,334
PEFERETE (MI7E29) Deferred tax (note 29) (221,661) (33,019)
(144,312) 32,315
TRIBFM S BRE AN Rt E A 2 5 m F 8 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax
R - rates:
20234F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB’000
BT ERET(ER), /757 (Loss)/profit before income tax (581,896) 138,910
BRETSF AT & AT IE Tax on profit before income tax calculated at
R RE GEBRATS & the rates applicable to profit in the tax
RIS LA R AEF]) jurisdictions concerned (145,474) 34,728
—ETRARNER — preferential income tax rates of certain
g Hi companies (3,943) (4,890)
— AR — non-deductible expenses 6,215 4,662
—EIEEE R AR — share of results of associates (1,576) (2,633)
— M ARTER AR —tax loss not recognised 1,197 696
—ERAEAREAN — utilisation of previously unutilised
PR tax losses (731) (248)

et (3 e) Bx Income tax (credit)/expenses (144,312) 32,315
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AR B B AR VEE - T)
RIBEMIRITEDN - RERED - BZF
FRMAEFTERPOEMNRERAVEAE -

RIS R AT R — MR R25% © K ED
MEKREMEETEERAR - EEMEK
EMEEEERARIRMMEEDXE
EAR QB R E 220234 12022412 A 31
B [E /R E 4 R 1 E PSR B i T IR R
STERTUEF Z15%E - ZERRFE
FRAEPAFETHNEERAR - AIZE
BRI HIE15% ©

YT ERNS se R AR A R B 20236 1
A15HBEE S EMmZE ([ EEFird
¥)EE  YEMMARBEEER - &
BIRENRFER20HF=FHEZHER
FHE15% o

RETRENEEERGNEEER (Y
RKEEER NS - RIETBEMEBMH ST
WOEH - AEEDEEIMEEEERIR
REFABNE  HEMEXEEERLET
HYXERRRLMEHIE RN RES
B SR T M R RIS BT IR O A o VETT
BRZH  AEEAERPBERLEN
BISEE - BBURE & T IR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRC Corporate Income Tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in Mainland China has
been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits
for the years, based on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

The general corporate income tax rate in the PRC is 25%. Provision for the PRC
Corporate Income Tax for Kaisa Property Management (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.* (“AX
ETEIREY EEIE AR A R]"), Kaisa Property Management (Chongging)
Co., Ltd.* ("EEMEKEMEEIEERAA]") and Kaisa Property
Management (Liuzhou) Co., Ltd.* ("BINEILEMEEEER A F]") are
calculated at 15% of the estimated assessable profits for both years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022. Those companies are qualified as the company under
the development strategy of the PRC’s western region and are able to enjoy a
preferential income tax rate of 15%.

Shenzhen Jiake Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd.* (&I THERIZ se R A
R 72 7]") has obtained the certificate of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
("HNTE") with effective from 15 November 2023, and was registered with the
local tax authority to be eligible for a concessionary tax rate of 15% for three
years from 2023 to 2025.

*

The English translation of the name of the company established in the PRC is for reference
only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.

For certain group entities engaged in property management services (“The
PM Entities”), pursuant to relevant local tax regulations in the PRC, the Group
has elected to file consolidated tax return for the PM Entities incorporating
assessable profit and tax losses attributable to the PM Entities as well as certain
communities which are managed by the PM Entities under commission basis. As
a result of such arrangement, the Group is able to temporarily utilise tax losses
of loss making communities, resulting in deferral of payment of certain provision.
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11.

FRB#ER(BAX) )

" EITE B

18 5 eR Bl (b 2 FTISBEL + E20086F1 A1 E
12+ 1R B M A F) 102008681 1 B AT
RHRBMHBFIRTIRRE - REFEINEE
PRRR A R B UK 0% TN BE - IR IR
BEBORBHOTS - HRENBAF
M EEERA AE BB - BT
ERBIEASHITBIE -

B 20234 20212 AN B IEEE -
RARMBRAREZBHEE(BEB)BRAT
A FEFAS%TBFIFL R -

EBFEH
HE2023F R202E12ANBIEEE - I
ESTRABFER  AAREERZESF

B R B R B B BN ERBGF] -
BINREH

ARABRENSHSATERHEHS
SR RS ARAR - MU
WAB BB ASHEEAR AREEBE
LHBAREEATVENEBELAS T
AT - B S 2 B A L BB
8%t -
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11. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSES) (continued)

PRC Withholding Income Tax

According to the Corporate Income Law of the PRC, starting from 1 January 2008,
a withholding tax of 10% will be received on the immediate holding companies
outside the PRC where their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend of profits earned
after 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate can be applied to the
immediate holding company of the PRC subsidiaries, which is incorporated in
Hong Kong, according to the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Company's subsidiary, Profit Victor Investments (Hong Kong) Limited, is able
to apply for the 5% withholding tax rate during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Hong Kong Profit Tax

No Hong Kong Profit Tax has been provided for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 as the Group has no assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for the years.

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Company Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly,
is exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax. The group companies
incorporated in the BVI were under the International Business Companies Act of
the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, exempted from British Virgin Islands
income tax.
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12. EEMER AR EEFHA L 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
121 ES# & 12.1 Directors’ emoluments

B EAN FmEB REEDTHED Director’s and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed

WENENEELRTETHASME pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies
W Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees

ARBT R
RMB'000

BRABF1NANBLEE
Year ended 31 December 2023

E R 1
RENER
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind
ARETR
RMB’000

3 g |

#X

Retirement
scheme
contributions
ARET R
RMB’000

NRERE
B> Ay
inbrec

Equity-settled
share-based
payment
ARBT T
RMB'000

Total

ARBTR
RMB'000

YTES: Executive directors:
BERLE(ER) Mr. Liao Chuangiang (Chairman) - 2.240 123 787 3150
FEREAL Mr. Li Haiming 9 - _ _ %
R A (M) Mr. Nie Qiang (note (b)) Y] _ - _ ]
R (M) Mr. Zhao Jianhua (note (c)) m - - - n
LR L(BEe) Ms. MOU Zhaohui {note (g) 540 559 13 - 1222
s e torsdli) Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan (note (f) 3 - - - B
HOEE S A (P ) Mr. Xie Binhong (note (g)) 3 _ _ _ 13
BYFHTES Independent non-executive directors:
ZmEAE Mr. Liu Hongbai 163 - - 2 183
S&FuL Ms. Ma Xiumin 163 - - 20 183
et Mr. Chen Bin 163 - - 20 183
1513 2,199 246 847 5,405
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12. EEMERERESH AL 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (ontinued

121 EEML(E) 12.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
HENNFNANALEE
Year ended 31 December 2022
NIk E
o= i RN B2 A
REMET s HIFRE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement  Equity-settled
and benefits scheme share-based
Fees inkind contributions payment Total
ARETT ARE®ETT AR%®TT AR®ETT AR®TRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BITEE: Executive directors:
BEBLE(ERE) Mr. Liao Chuangiang (Chairman| - 2,004 19 958 3,081
SBLL(FEH) () Ms. Guo Li (Vice President) (note (d)) = 732 8 m 992
SEHEE () Mr. Wu Jianxin (note (a)) 3 _ _ _ 28
FHBRAE Mr. Li Haiming 86 - _ _ %
B E Mr. Nie Qiang 48 - - - 8
#RE R () Mr. Zhao Jianhua (note (c)) 118 - - - 118
2B+ (IHiHe) Ms. MOU Zhaohui (note (e)) 133 187 4 = 361
BUFBTES Independent non-executive directors:
2tk Mr. Liu Hongbai 155 - - 2% 179
SRR L Ms. Ma Xiumin 155 - - 2 179
Yyt Mr. Chen Bin 155 - - 24 179

868 2923 248 1,202 5,261
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12. EEMERABESHFALH)

121 EEME(8)

PR

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

REFFEN202256 817 B BHEHIT
-

T AER2023F7 2B B ITAITE
$ °

HERERENRWNFIANAERIT A
WITESE -

ELZ LT R202F9 816 BB TRNITE
$ °

EE T R02FIB16RERT A
WMITE R RITHARE -

SRR AN 0BFETIA B ERIT A
WITESE -

ADEIE SR 20238 B 25 A ER T A
WITESE -

D N

EIEEFEBAR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 259

R B RARTEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

12.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

()

Mr. Wu Jianxin resigned as executive director on 17 June 2022.

Mr. Nie Qiang resigned as executive director on 12 July 2023.

Mr. Zhao Jianhua was appointed as executive director on 22 August 2022.

Ms. Guo Li resigned as executive director on 16 September 2022.

Ms. MOU Zhaohui was appointed as executive director and chief executive officer

on 16 September 2022.

Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan was appointed as executive director on 12 July 2023.

Mr. Xie Binhong was appointed as executive director on 25 August 2023.
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12. EEMERERESH AL 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (ontinued

12.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

121 EEME (&)

PR ARTEEME RIRERE
BEARRA RAREEH RN R

M -

EIBRE B IFRITESHE R
EERARRERRMA R H B
@ o

FARBERHEESKERTRABR
RARBREEMFMA L -

VAR A H A0 S 5 e el ST IR PR Y R
219 EFTBORA E - AR REK
SRl ONCIV R RG-S e Bap Thed
FTEEHBEAENF BENME -

EXFITRE AEERNEE2023F &
02F12ANBIEFEAEEAERE
EEENF O SIEARNEEET
RAIEFEHRBAERNE -

122 5EEEHAL

FR - AEENAEREHFALRIE
M (20226 - MB)ES - Effex
MR EXFIRDAT o £ - BT
T=2(20224F : =) EAARENE a0
™

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under with a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses are measured according
to the accounting policies as set out in note 2.19. Particulars of the share
options granted to the directors under the share option scheme of the
Company by the Company and the ultimate holding company are set out in
note 31.

The emoluments shown above represents emoluments received from the
Group by the director in his capacity as employee of the Group and/or in
their capacity as director of the companies comprising the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

12.2 Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year included two (2022: two) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining three (2022: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2023F 20224

2023 2022

AR¥T T ARBTIT

RMB'000 RMB000

e ENREYET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2317 2,213
VARG HE AR B S O FRIE Equity-settled share-based payment 328 857
RIRFTEIME R Retirement scheme contributions 370 358

3,015 3428
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12. EEMERAEREEH AL 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (ontinued

122 HEBBSHAL(E) 12.2 Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
it ATEHE N TLAT &R : The above individuals” emoluments are within the following bands:
20235 20224
2023 2022
1,000,001 7T 22,000,000 7T HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000 3 3

2,000,0017% 7T 2 3,000,0007 7T HKD2,000,001 to HKD3,000,000 - =
3,000,001,% 7T 24,000,000/ 7T HKD3,000,001 to HKD4,000,000 - =

3 3
HE20208F %202F 128318 IEF No directors or the five highest paid individuals received any emoluments
B BEEESIhERe T ATAR from the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
SEWEERBSEARRSIINARE compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31 December 2023
B o A B A O SR SR BRI M - B and 2022. No directors or the five highest paid individuals have waived or
2023F X 2022F 12 AN EH EFE - agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2023
BEEYNEARSHFALIREXRE and 2022.
WEEMBE -
13. BIR(&R) BF 13. (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) BREAR(ER) BA (a) Basic (losses)/earnings per share
BREAR(EE), B TREE2023 Basic (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit
FR2022F12 A31 B IEFEAR QR attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
BAEE(EBE), (I BRIABRBEITE ordinary shares in issue for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
AN EEETE -
20235F 20224F
2023 2022
ARABEA ANELFE (Loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners
(E518) /% Fl of the Company (in RMB'000)
(AR®TFTT) (449,984) 93,385
O TEBIRINEEE Weighted average number of ordinary share
Eig in issue 154,110,000 154,110,000
FIREKR(ER), B Basic (losses)/earnings per share (in RMB)

(AR¥IT) (2.92) 0.61
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13. BRR(E5E), BF »)
(b) SREE(ER) BF

13. (LOSSES)/EARN'NGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted (losses)/earnings per share

20235 20224F
2023 2022
FRE BT L BRI Weighted average number of ordinary shares
S8 in issue during the year 154,110,000 154,110,000
BRI E L AR Effect of issue of shares under adjustment
BT E (BT for share option scheme (note) - =
T EGREE(B5E) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
BN AR for the purpose of calculating diluted
DN 8K (losses)/earnings per share 154,110,000 154,110,000
BREE(EER) &7 Diluted (losses)/earnings per share (in RMB)
(ARET) (2.92) 0.61
MIE - Note:

HE2020FR202512 8318 IEFE - AR
B&AD B I T E(R A 52 S B AR 2 IS A REAT
8 - BAutstEFNEREE(EE) BT
B WERRAQFN2019F7 198 E 2
RITERER D iR -

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the computation of diluted
(losses)/earnings per share for the year does not assume the conversion of the Company's
outstanding share options granted on 19 July 2019 because the average market price of
the shares is lower than the adjusted exercise price of those share options.

14. I 2 14. DIVIDEND
BES 0 FRTEIRE 220234 &20224F
12ANBIEFERRBRE ©

The Board of Directors has resolved not to declare a final dividend for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B BE
£ER
BAZRME
Furniture,
fittings
Leasehold and office Motor
Buildings  improvement equipment vehicles
AR¥ETT AR¥Tr ARETR AR®TR AR%®Tx
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
A Cost
®W202251 818 As at 1 January 2022 1,246 446 45,430 7121 54,243
HNE Additions - - 6,721 158 6,879
HE Disposals - - (6,704) (1,021) (7.725)
R02E12A318 R As at 31 December 2022 and
023%F1 418 1 January 2023 1,246 446 45,447 6,258 53,397
HE Additions - 626 2,447 13 3,186
HeE Disposals - (Nn4) (3.237) (1,939) (5,890)
M2023F12A318 As at 31 December 2023 1,246 358 44,657 4,432 50,693
REHE Accumulated depreciation
R202F1A18 As at 1 January 2022 192 275 25,929 2,116 29112
FEXH(ME10) Charge for the year (note 10) 83 130 5,791 872 6,876
HERER Written back on disposals = = (5,775) (375) (6,150)
20205128318 Rk As at 31 December 2022 and
2023F1 818 1 January 2023 275 405 25,945 3213 29,838
FEZ (M0 Charge for the year (note 10) 83 83 4,609 496 5271
HERRRE Written back on disposals - (420) (2,508) (738) (3,666)
R2023512831H As at 31 December 2023 358 68 28,006 297 31,443
BREFE Net book amount
H20235128318 As at 31 December 2023 888 290 16,611 1,461 19,250
R2022F12 8318 As at 31 December 2022 I 4 19,502 3,045 23,559
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16. REtE AT 2IRE 16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
20234 20224
2023 2022
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEE R B 2 EKA Cost of investment in associates 23,182 23,182
PR EEE SR R e Share of post-acquisition profit and other

Wzt - MR E WL E comprehensive income, net of dividends received 35,180 30,051

W RERE R R 2 IRERE Less: Impairment loss on investment in associate
E1E (24,070) =
34,292 53,233

20235 K 2022512 A3 H » NEE 2 3F
EmBERR (HWEMSRE - BEf
L HEA12ANE)EBOT ¢

Name of associates

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates,
whose quote market price is not available and having a reporting date of 31
December, are as follows:

MR R
kb

B

ENGESE ]
HyRE 28 L i

Proportion of

RIERER B AR
(MEKENE])

(“Kaisa Technology Group Co., Ltd.")*
(“Kaisa Technology”)

BBy =R AR AR AR ([ B )

("Yancheng Tingyuan City Service Co., Ltd.")*
(“Yancheng”)

ATEmREmELREAR AR (B ])

(“Zhejiang Derui Urban Operation Service
Co., Ltd.")* ("Derui”)

Place of Particulars of interest
incorporation registered held by the
and operation capital Company Principal activities
A EY AR 4520% EERSAEARFREE RIHE
16,327,0007C (20224 :
45.20%)
PRC RMB16,327,000 45.20% Development and sales of
(2022: 45.20%)  computer network
H Y ARHE 49.00% IRIFRAHFZIMEEIR
30,000,0007T (2022 -
49.00%)
PRC RMB30,000,000 49.00% Environmental and public
(2022: 49.00%)  facility management
aalE AR 49.00% YIEEIR
10,000,0007T (20224 -
49.00%)
PRC RMB10,000,000 49.00% Property management

(2022: 49.00%)

The English translation of the name of the company established in the PRC is for reference
only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.
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16. %Hﬁ%ﬁaZ?ﬁﬁ(%) 16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
ARSI E ABRRY B KB 2N 7] &8 Set out below are summarised financial information of a material associate,
W7 AR E Yancheng, which is accounted for using the equity method:

751 EEI

2023F 20224F

Yancheng Yancheng

2023 2022

AR%T T AREBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

MBEE Current assets 47,050 32,838

EMEBEE Non-current assets 24,900 29,787

mEafsE Current liabilities (18,549) (19,547)

BEFE Net assets 53,401 43,078

Wz Revenue 85,915 87,842

F R F Profit for the year 10,323 12,333

FREMEERE Other comprehensive income for the year - =

FREEKESEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 10,323 12,333

B R A M B N B i 1 B B Y A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
AR REERERESIAT amount of investment in an associate, Yancheng, is set out below:

i 37 Bk

2023F 20224F

Yancheng Yancheng

2023 2022

AR¥T T ARET T

RMB'000 RMB'000

BN RN EE S EER Total net assets of associate 53,401 43,078
AEBFTIF A EERLLD) Proportion of ownership interests held

by the Group 49% 49%

SZAEFBEA R R ANNREE Carrying amount in the consolidated statements of
financial position 26,166 21,108
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16. REFZE QAR Z21RE (o) 16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
PATNES IR A AN E KB 2 A FlE Set out below are summarised financial information of a material associate,
KERI 2 BRERIE - Kaisa Technology, which is accounted for using the equity method:
FEIRERH FIRFERR
20234 20224F
Kaisa Technology  Kaisa Technology
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
MENEE Current assets 42,344 47,542
ERBNVE E Non-current assets 20,533 20,591
mERE Current liabilities (16,414) (16,526)
(BfE) EE$E Net (liabilities)/assets 46,463 51,607
Weas Revenue 937 1,374
ERN(ER) HF (Loss)/profit for the year (5,144) 8,091
FAHMEERE Other comprehensive income for the year - -
FERNEE(FX) Wiz Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (5,144) 8,091
B RS A R B B AR i A R IR R A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
KRR E MR E BRI S EREAT amount of investment in an associate, Kaisa Technology, is set out below:

ERFERE EIRERIR
20235 20224F
Kaisa Technology  Kaisa Technology

2023 2022
AR®T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

B AT (BE) BESME  Total net (liabilities)/assets of associate

R 46,463 51,607
e E PR A R R L1 Proportion of ownership interests held

by the Group 45.20% 45.20%

KB RMEE Carrying amount of the investment 21,001 23,326

S Goodwill 3,069 3,069

SZAEPBEARREANNREE Carrying amount in the consolidated statements of
financial position 24,070 26,395

o OREEE Less: Impairment loss (24,070) =

- 26,395




)

3R ANNUAL REPORT 2023 f£Jk3¥=1F £ @APR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 267

e AR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. RS DB ZIRE ) 16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued
AT 851 24 25 55 A BE 1 25 KBS & N B4 Set out below are summarised financial information of a material associate,
I M EREE - Derui, which is accounted for using the equity method:
=5 =¥
2023F 20224F
Derui Derui
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
MENEE Current assets 27,639 15,912
ERHEE Non-current assets 1,848 1,680
REAGE Current liabilities (12,903) (5,900)
EEFE Net assets 16,584 11,692
Wegs Revenue 59,837 19,016
F HARESF) Profit for the year/period 7,292 1,692
F/HRE M2 ERE Other comprehensive income for the year/period - -
F RN A5 Total comprehensive income for the year/period 1,292 1,692
B RS A R B R A R IRV IR A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
BRI AREERSRRE DT - amount of investment in an associate, Derui, is set out below:
=g =
2023F 20224F
Derui Derui
2023 2022
AR%ET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
Bra N R EEFEEE Total net assets of associate 16,584 11,692
REBPTISHA EERLL P Proportion of ownership interests held by the Group 49% 49%
AR R ARREE Carrying amount in the consolidated statements of
financial position 8,126 5,729
ZNEE BN Mt E A B S N BRI RS T E A The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other commitments

R AR Eak H At A - relating to its investment in associates.
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17. BEREBHEE

17. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

i) BILEE
Goodwill Intangible assets
YT
PR 2 E8 EFBR
Property
management
services Customer
segment  relationships Total
AR%ET T AR®T T AR%ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2% Cost
1202241 A1 H As at 1 January 2022 160,828 46,187 207,015
72022912 A318 ~ As at 31 December 2022,
2023F1H1H & 1 January 2023 and
202312 H31H 31 December 2023 160,828 46,187 207,015
E-Sg: 1 Accumulated amortisation
202241 A1H As at 1 January 2022 - 9,245 9,245
BEoH Amortisation - 5,486 5,486
2022412 A31 8 & As at 31 December 2022 and
202351 418 1 January 2023 - 14,731 14,731
b3 Amortisation - 5,487 5,487
A20235F12831H As at 31 December 2023 - 20,218 20,218
BRERE Net hook amount
20235128318 As at 31 December 2023 160,828 25,969 186,797
120224612 A31H As at 31 December 2022 160,828 31,456 192,284
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17. BEREBWTEE &)
EBEE G ETEEE A E M ATUEE A JEIERR
e BB HNEEFER
FEMNIBOARAEE -

REBEHHERNTPRIEIRNKE
BHIN R ERR - ANEFHAERR
HEE R E RS - IR AR R ET B IH7
R o BTN E S AT E R E T E106F
BEERTE

B (AETI B AR EIETT - EER
SENAFWE B HERNB B EAREN
REFBEFA

SURERANE - ReEEL B AIKEE
BREBEEFANTFREASINERER
AHE  WIRATERREERRR SR
WEB HEMETEERAARNES]
JE o IBR R RMRE MR R RE T
BER - BRERRWIRSE LB RERD

TREHIEIEEEAN 20235 & 2022412
A3 HETEERENRNIRS REEA

R B RARTEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred in a business combination and the
amount of the non-controlling interests in the acquires over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Customer relationships acquired in business combinations are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contractual customer relations have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the expected life of 7 to 10 years.

Independent valuations were performed by independent valuers to determine the
amount of the mobile application and customer relationships recognised by the
Group as at respective acquisition dates.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amounts for the cash
generating unit was determined based on value-in-use calculations covering a
detailed five-year budget plan followed by an extrapolation of expected cash
flows at the growth rates stated below and the valuation conducted by an
independent valuer and approved by the directors of the Company. The growth
rates reflect the long-term average growth rates for the service lines of the cash
generating unit.

The following table sets forth each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill as at

HEMKRIFT B/ 31 December 2023 and 2022:
20234 20224
2023 2022
FAFHRERR Growth rate within the five-year period 0-11% 2-14%
AL I &R Pre-tax discount rate 14% 20%
KAMER R Terminal growth rate 2% 2%

MBI RS D ST BRI E A RIA ]
KeeHErERAEE(ERAER]DE
(TEEAS B M AR TEE) ° F20234F K 20224
12 A3 B BB R AR -

AEBERERE  FREEFETER
EETEA SRR EE ST EHRE
ERLE TSRS -

The recoverable amounts of the subsidiaries acquired under property
management service segment are calculated based on value in use ("VIU”)
exceeded its carrying value. No impairment provision was considered necessary
to be provided as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The management of the Group believes that any reasonably possible changes in
the key estimation of the VIU calculations would not cause the carrying amounts
to exceed its recoverable amounts.
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18. T EMIB A BIEE 18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
T BB A TR 20234F % 2022412 A31 8 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as
HEEBINT - follows:

AL/ R/ ih/ERTR ADAREME
BEWSR AN EREREN BRRE REZAAML IEEH
Place and date
of incorporation/ Percentage of
establishment/ Registered/Issued ~ ownership interests
Name of company operations Type of legal entity and fully paid capital  held bythe Company  Principal activities
uBE  AnE
A3 Y/
ANREREE
Directly held by the Company
BRRERRAT RERLHE - EREEAA VES 100% 0% REEHR
Xie Mao Investment Company Limited 00757 A26H Limited liability company 1N Investment holding
BV,
26 July 2007
RARMERE
Indirectly held by the Company
aHRE(ER)ARAR &5 NIFIR1R BREFAR 10,0007 7C 100% 0% RELR
Profit Victor Investments (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability company HKD10,000 Investment holding
2 April 2012
ERRNREBERAT hE EREEAA AR H65723,0007 100% 0% HEER
Kaisa Property Group Company Limited® WEANA Limited liability company RIMB65,723,000 Property management
The PRC,
21 December 2012
EREFER(RI)BRAT hE EREARA ARE3100000007T 100% 0% WEER
Kaisa Property Management (Shenzhen) Co., Limited.* 1999103208 Limited liability company RIMB310,000,000 Property management
The PR,
20 October 1999
ATk ERENFERERAR WEl - N13FRABH BREMAF AR 5000000070 100% 0%  HEEE
Kaisa Commercial Property Management The PRC, Limited liability company RIMB50,000,000 Property management
(Shenzhen| Co,, Ltd.* 8 May 2013
AT ENE R RERAT hE EREAAA ARE200000007 100% 0% REZR
Shenzhen Jiake Intelligence Technology Co., Limited™ N3E12ABA Limited liability company RVIB20,000,000 Equipment installation
The PRC,

23 December 2013
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18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

18. T EMB A FFE »

EMRL/ KL/
"EHHR AN
Place and date

of incorporation/
establishment/

Hh/BRTR

EEERER HRRE

Registered/lssued

Name of company

MITAEE TREERBERAA
Shenzhen Dapengche Engineering Maintenance
Service Co., Ltd*

REMEARNFERARAT
Kaisa Property Management (Dongguan)
Co., Ltd.

RETERENEERERAA
Kaisa Property Management (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.*

ERMERENFERARAA
Kaisa Property Management (Chongging)
Co. Ltd.*

BNERFDEERERAA
Kaisa Property Management (Huizhou) Co., Ltd.*

MNEREDEERERAR
Kaisa Property Management (Liuzhou) Co., Ltd.*

A ENE e R RARAT
Hebei Changrunda Environmental Enginegring
Co., Limited*

RREXFNEERERAA
Taiyuan Kaisa Property Management Co,, Ltd.*

EREKENERBERAR
Ningbo Kaisa Property Service Co., Ltd.*

operations

4
WAENATE
The PRC,
27 November 2014

e - 200757 A18H
The PRC,
18 July 2007

e - 200851 A0
The PRC,
30 January 2008

el 03T AR
The PRC,
1 July 2013

e - 201357 A16H
The PRC,
16.July 2013

e 017F4 A E
The PRC,
27 April 2017

el - 005105288
The PRC,
28 October 2020

mE - 018F6 AR
The PRC,
27 June 2018

i 2018511 A6H
The PRC,
6 November 2018

Type of legal entity

EREAAT
Limited liahility company

BREEAT
Limited liability company

BRELAR
Limited liability company

EREAAT
Limited liahility company

BREEAT
Limited liability company

BRELAR
Limited liability company

EREEAT
Limited liahility company

BREEAT
Limited liability company

ARELAR
Limited liability company

and fully paid capital

ARHE500000007
RMB50,000,000

ARH10000,0007
RMB10,000,000

ARE30,0000007T
RMB30,000,000

AR 300000070
RMB3,000,000

AEREES000007T
RMB500,000

ARH500 00070
R\B500,000

ARHE100000007
RMB10,000,000

AEREES000007T
RMB500,000

ARH500 00070
R\B500,000

ARAREEME
BEZAM
Percentage of

ownership interests

held by the Company
uBE  ANF
2023 2022
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
60% 60%
51% 51%
51% 51%

Principal activities

BERFR

Maintenance and repairing

mxEE

Property management

nxER

Property management

nxEE

Property management

mxEE

Property management

nxER

Property management

NEERRBER
Property management
related business

mxEE

Property management

nxER

Property management
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18. TEMBATFHTE » 18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

AL/ RE/ i/ERTR ADARERE
BEHSRAM EREREN BRRE RREZAAL
Place and date
of incorporation/ Percentage of
establishment/ Registered/lssued ~ ownership interests
Name of company operations Type of legal entity and fully paid capital  held by the Company Principal activities
uBE  ANE
A3 yi\//A
FRABNZERERAR( FRAREE)) hE - 199F7ANR  BREEAR ARES5,0000007C 60% 0% MEER
Jiaxing Dashu Property Management The PRC, Limited liability company RIMB5,000,000 Property management
Company Limited* (*Jiaxing Dashu Group’) 30 July 1999
FETREEEERARAR(RARMEE])  TE W0FIANR AREEAR AR1,000 0007 60% 0% WEER
Jiaxing Rongshu Hotel Management Co, Ltd* The PRC, Limited liability company RMB1,000,000 Property management
("Jiaxing Rongshu Group”) 11 September 2007
THERNEERARAR(NIEFER]) hE - WUFGANE  EREAAR AR 100000007 1% % WEER
Jiangsu Hengyuan Property Management The PRC, Limited liability company RIMB10,000,000 Property management
Company Limited® (*Jiangsu Hengyuan”) 29 Jung 2004
B ERREREERAT WE NEIR9R BREMAF ARE1,0000007 51% % MEER
Yancheng Hengyuan Sanitation Service The PRC, Limited liability company RIMB1,000,000 Property management
Company Limited* 9 March 2017
ERAENFREARAA TERAR]) hE - 0FIAIE BREAAF AR 2,000 0007 60% 0% WEER
Ningbo Langtong Property Service Company The PRC, Limited liability company RMB2,000,000 Property management
Limited* {"Ningbo Langtong”) 9 January 2013
HLmREERARAR(DHIRE]) hEANEIATE  BREAAR AR 100000007 60% 0% WEER
Zhejiang Ruiyuan Property Management The PRC, Limited liability company RIMB10,000,000 Property management
Co., Limited* (*Zhejiang Ruiyuan”) 17 July 2002
ERINEHARREERAETEFEAEH The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
FEXENBHFEEERDOHARAA] the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
WEBAFR - RRBIEERA @ 7 H Ak portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
BRRAFHEREIRERBNILE would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

*

The English translation of the name of the company established in the PRC is for reference
only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.
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18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

18. X EMB A EIF1E =)

AEEBREOREAE AR ([ 3
ERER DOMBAREE  HIELEE
M AT S BRI B R &SI T

The Group includes four subsidiaries group with material non-controlling
interests (“NCI"), the details and the summarised financial information, before
intragroup eliminations, are as follows:

FFRRRESENRERR

R2023%12A318
As at 31 December 2023
IHEREE ERHE HLH R
Jiangsu
Jiaxing Hengyuan Ningho Zhejiang
Dashu Group Group Langtong Ruiyuan

REAHESR

RW23E RABFE RABF RABF
123311 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2023 2023
ARETR ARETR AR%T R AR®ET R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Proportion of ownership interests and

RERELH voting rights held by the NCI 40% 49% 40% 40%
RBEE Current assets 68,329 61,822 19,586 94,439
FREEE Non-current assets 10,476 3. 3,042 22,686
mEAE Current liabilities (40,849) (46,498) (11,250) (56,275)
FrREaE Non-current liabilities (1,677) (1,896) (387) (2571)
BEFE Net assets 36,279 51,205 10,991 58,279
RS REE Carrying amount of NC| 14,512 25,090 4,39% 23312
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18. TEMBATFHTE » 18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

RA23F128318
As at 31 December 2023
ERAHEE TEEREE =i WTERIR
Jiangsu
Jiaxing Hengyuan Ningbo Zhejiang
Dashu Group Group Langtong Ruiyuan
ARETR ARET R ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ez Revenue 164,088 113,212 57,150 179,408
gt Total expenses (159,562) (166,066) (57,352) (165,610)
FEREF Profit for the year 4,526 1146 (202) 13,798
FRNEMEEYE Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - -
FREEKEERE Total comprehensive income
for the year 4,526 1,146 (202) 13,798
Ealie fay e Profit/(loss) attributable to NC|
wHl/ (B8) 1,811 3501 (81) 5,520
FERERENEE Total comprehensive incomey/(expenses)
Wa/ (FB%) 88 attributable to NC| 1811 3,501 (81) 5520
RETENG/(FA)E4E  Netcash flows generated from/{used in)
hEFE operating activities 16,179 (2,660) 490 11,456
BRETHMERERE Net cash flows used in investing
ikl activities (173) (1,131) (743) (878)
BEEHIARSAREFE  Netcash flows used in financing
activities (5,500) - - (6,099)
Be MRS EEER Net increase/decrease in cash and

by 1 k] cash equivalents 10,506 (3,791) (253) 4,419
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#8 e 18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

M2022%12A318
As at 31 December 2022
REAGEE  IHEREE ERAR TR
Jiangsu
Jiaxing Hengyuan Ningbo Zhejiang
Dashu Group Group Langtong Ruiyuan
20225 P02 120225 20225

12H318 12H318 12H31H 12H318
As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022 2022
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
RMVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

FHERERS AR BAER  Proportion of ownership interests and

KR voting rights held by the NCI 40% 49% 40% 40%
MBEE Current assets 58,978 68,337 16973 85,739
FRBEE Non-current assets 12,29 34,696 2,970 24,162
mBAR Current liabilities (32,077) (56,754) (8,266) (56,456)
ERBAE Non-current liabilities (1,945) (2,221) (483) (3,214)
BEFE Net assets 37,252 44,058 11,194 50,231
I RERREE Carrying amount of NCI 14,901 21,588 4478 20,092
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18. TEMBATFHTE » 18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

202512318
As at 31 December 2022
EALYNGEE LEEREE AR iyt
Jiangsu
Jiaxing Hengyuan Ningbo Zhejiang
Dashu Group Group Langtong Ruiyuan
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ez Revenue 157,038 166,823 48490 190,278
HZesE Total expenses (152,895) (155,988) (48,072) (176,258)
FEREF Profit for the year 4143 10,835 418 14,020
FRNEMEEYE Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - -
FREEKEERE Total comprehensive income
for the year 4143 10,835 418 14,020
FERRE S R Profit attributable to NCI 1,657 5309 167 5,608
JEMRiESE(E2E s Total comprehensive income attributable
o] to NCI 1657 5,309 167 5,608
meTEFG/(FTA)E4E  Netcash flows from/used in) operating
MERE activities 3,440 2442 834 11,690
REZBFARETE Net cash flows used in investing
k) activities (308) (398) (506) (5,404)
BEZHHMSE/(FTH) Net cash flows from/(used in| financing
ReneTeE activities (6,097) 865 - (141)
Be kB2 ZEHEE Net increase/decrease in cash and

#/ R FE cash equivalents 2,965 2,909 328 6,145
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¥XHH RHUNEEE
HEEE BREHEEEE
Leased assets
Leased assets for provision
for owners- of properties
occupied management
purpose services Total
AR%T R ARET T AR%T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(H¥aE)
(Note)
202241818 Asat 1 January 2022 17,306 200,000 217,306
pradv Additions 4,254 - 4,254
RIFHE Termination of leases (1,069) - (1,069)
e Depreciation (6,592) (13,333 (19,925)
MN2022612A318 & As at 31 December 2022 and
2023F1 A1H as at 1 January 2023 13,899 186,667 200,566
IR Additions 5,264 - 5,264
RIFEE Termination of leases (2,672) - (2,672)
e Depreciation (5,784) (13,333) (19117)
R2023F12A31H As at 31 December 2023 10,707 173,334 184,041
MiEE : RBASE—RMBARRSEELE= Note: Pursuant to certain leasing agreements entered by a subsidiary of the Group with a

FREBZE201NF12ANAILEFEANTLAN
ETHERS  AEEEEENB2024%
TATBRFAFEAERE THREEEEYD
¥ BRERETRAREDNEEERE RS
FEEEMEABERBESWA - BEWHE
ATAEHE  AEEEIHARBARKE
200,000,0007C - W HEE— S EERERAEE
BESYNRIE ZEERAEEERKAN
MIREEE (1A )HIER -

number of independent third parties during the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
was granted the rights to use of certain non-residential properties in the PRC for 15 years
commencing from 1 January 2022, including but not limited to the right to provide property
management services and sublease the non-residential properties for rental income. The
leasing agreements were non-cancellable and the Group has paid total considerations of
RMB200,000,000 and no further obligation to pay for the use of the leased assets. These
right-of-use assets are carried at costs less impairment loss, if any.
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20. £RIEE 20. FINANCIAL ASSETS

BATEE  HAVES
BEARY  H2ERE
SREE ABHLMEE

Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair value
at fair value through other
through profit ~ comprehensive
or loss income Total
AR®T R ARET R AR%T R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
H2023F12A31H As at 31 December 2023
k)] Non-current
Hh e mt & E (i) Other financial assets (Note (b)) 184,306 - 184,306
R2023E128318H Total financial assets at
CREELE 31 December 2023 184,306
120224F12A31H As at 31 December 2022
FERE Non-current
I EMRARE (i iE(a)) Unlisted equity investment (Note (al) - 15,000 15,000
Hibem&E (kb)) Other financial assets (Note (b)) 327,731 - 327,731
2022612 A31HE Total financial assets at

CREERSE 31 December 2022 342,731
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20. EMEE 5

BAE

(a)

(b)

ZEERIER P B AIE LT E BRI
R ZEREERERETETENS
FREIRTS o R BEAEE B TE A4
B AFEEREtE2EKERRATE
B8 A R ¥15,000,0007C (20224F : ARKZ
JC) o BIAMFEA3FTI - JE ETRRARE /Y
AFEFENEAFIBATFEER -

ZERBARR01NFE12 AR AFEHEAH
ERATENE TIEEEME(TWEDNB
REFZAHNRE - REBBESOLHE - &
RAI—RMBARAESGEBHRBHEEL
ZHNRSEFHENREEENIDS B
70% ° M A BN YIEE LRI A R UE
EMASBA - ARRESR A LIBRE
FIT R ER (B H & IR TS ) IR AN SR B —
MEB—ED -

MAEA A WL B - MAEEATR
B ARERNBEFEXNNEREN] TUER

°

Bl

HAREHTHR FASE R Ll 2R ¢
HE KRR - REERR AR AT ELIER
ARMESBEE - BRTP EEEEFHERTEL
Zie AFECREBERERAFEEIEA
R 143,425,000 7 (2022 4F A R #1,215,000
JT) ° QAP EASFTIL - AR EAESERES
BAFEEL -

R B RARTEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The amount represents an investment in equity shares in an unlisted entity established
in the PRC, which is mainly engaged in providing internet insurance services of car
industry. A fair value loss of RMB15,000,000 (2022: RMB nil) has been recognised in other
comprehensive income during the current year due to unexpected slow recovery of the
PRC economic. The fair value measurement of unlisted equity investment is classified as
Level 3 fair value hierarchy as described in note 4.3.

The amount represents consideration paid for an exclusive right to sell certain non-
residential properties in the PRC (the “Properties”) for a five-year period since December
2021. Pursuant to the relevant contractual arrangements, a subsidiary of the Company
is entitled to 70% of the excess of the selling price over the agreed minimum price with
the counterparties to the contractual arrangements. The subsidiary also has the right
to receive rental income arising from the Properties before the Properties are sold. The
directors of the Company considered that the operations under the abovementioned
exclusive right namely, the provision of sale services, form part of the Group's ordinary
course of business.

The amount paid by the Group in prior years is refundable in case of any shortfall as
stipulated in details in the related contractual arrangements.

Since the contractual arrangements give the Group a contractual right to receive cash
which are variable as described above, the asset is considered as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss. A fair value loss of RMB143,425,000 (2022: RMB1,215,000)
has been recognised in profit or loss during the current year due to the unexpected slow
recovery of the PRC economic. The fair value measurement is classified as Level 3 fair
value hierarchy as described in note 4.3.
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21. BNE 5 IR R H A B U TE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20234
2023

AR®TR
RMB’000

20224F
2022
ARBTIT
RMB’000

Trade receivables EWE SRR
— Third parties —$=5 426,310 369,547
— Related parties (note 24) —BAEA T (M7E24) 860,633 731,275
1,286,943 1,100,822
Less: loss allowance for trade receivables B RIE SRS EER
(note 4.1) (FF5E4.1) (893,391) (271,977)
393,552 828,845
Other receivables HibEWFRIE
Other deposits Hitiz e 23,538 26,004
Prepayments A RR 19,060 17,748
Payments on behalf of staff REEB IR 15,076 9,474
Payments on behalf of residents under lump-sum basis X BB HIRKKREP NI 21,018 22,394
Others Hi 4197 2,525
Less: loss allowance for other receivables S HAhRE U SR IE B R A
(note 4.1) (HftaE41) (7,724) (4,877)
Total other receivables H b e R IR 4B RR 75,165 73,268
Less: other receivables under W FERENER D Y H AL E
non-current portion I SRIE (8,495) (6,440)
Current portion mENEL D 66,670 66,328
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2. EWESESRHMEWEIE 21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contined)

(%)

Mz - Notes:

(a) M2023FE12A318  AEBEFREREKE S (@) All of the Group’s trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2023 are denominated
BR R R HL fth JFE WK TE G DA R M 5 B (2022 in RMB (2022: all RMB).
FEHAAREE) -

b) REVESERBHEKESEZANIEH (b)  Trade receivables from property management services are trade receivables due for
NECRAMERIBESTNOERE SER - X payment upon the issuance of demand notes. Pre-delivery and consulting services and
AT R EA RS ARG LA 2 28 RE FRR 77 RARFE AR B smart solution services are receivable in accordance with the terms of the relevant
THEARE A IER U - MAEE—/RA service agreements, and the Group normally allows an average credit period ranged from
EEETHEHEEHNFIRENR - 0 days to 90 days to its customers.

20234 k20225512 A31H - BIRE SR
2 (SHEEEEEN) REZ HHNERD The ageing analysis of the trade receivables before loss allowances as at 31

W December 2023 and 2022 based on the invoice date is as follows:

20234 20224F

2023 2022

AR¥ET T ARETIT

RMB'000 RMB'000

1808 Within 180 days 495,049 431,383
18123650 181-365 days 196,907 246,279
15224 1-2 years 302,794 386,813
28 3F 2-3 years 261,294 25,507
3L Over 3 years 30,899 10,840

1,286,943 1,100,822
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22. RRIFFAFR 22. PAYMENTS ON BEHALF OF RESIDENTS
20234F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARBTIT
RMB'000 RMB000
REEPFR Payments on behalf of residents 112,347 89,869
B REEPHFORE LS Less: allowance for impairment of payments on
(B&¥4.1) behalf of residents (note 4.1) (17,240) (10,677)
95,107 79,192
HASEIZRMEHEEEETROEE The balances with the property management offices of residential communities
ENEENEREASERREEMAES managed by the Group under the terms of commission basis represents
MORZBASZEEEREFWEE expenditures paid by the Group on behalf of the residential community in excess
ERBHF D o of the property management fees collected from the residents of that residential
community.
R2023F 202512 A31H - KRREFH As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the payments on behalf of residents were
FTIAAREEHE - denominated in RMB.
23. ENEE AFE 23. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES
2023F 202248
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARBTIT
RMB'000 RMB000
EHEE Contract assets
EREDBERR R T R ARTS A AR Contract assets related to smart solution services
BREE 136,208 129,646
W ARBEEIRER Less: loss allowance for contract assets (83,748) (16,010)
52,460 113,636
EHERE Contract liabilities
BB fRR T ERIE A R Contract liabilities related to smart solution services
arasE (38,759) (39,335)
HYIRERRBERNSL Contract liabilities related to property management
aE services (182,509) (166,791)
(221,268) (206,126)
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23. ENEE BB »

BRNEETREAKEEREENREH
HMABHNE TR IENREEHR - &
HWEERERENKSERITRHERER
WkIR - &# 8 AT 2 8w AR AR
BmRkEFPRERR - KE—REELD
AR - BRAEER B ERASKEXLIE
FRmEH °

FABEATIHNENEERENEED
Bl A AR #79,647,0007T (20224 AR
73,190,000 7T ) & A R # 23,174,000 7T ( 2022
F 0 AR#22,056,0007T) °

TRIVRA AN S HIR R A U et 45
BHRAEMNERME

FURTAB B ELRD
ERER Y
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights to consideration for
work completed but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are
transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. The contract
liabilities primarily relate to the advanced consideration received from customers
while the underlying services are yet to be provided. Considerations are usually
received in advance of the performance under the contracts. Such assets and
liabilities increased as a result of the growth of the Group’s business.

The contract assets and contract liabilities included the related parties with
amount RMB79,647,000 (2022: RMB73,190,000) and RMB23,174,000 (2022:
RMB22,056,000) respectively.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current
reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities:

20224F
2022
ARET T
RMB'000

20234
2023

AR®TR
RMB’000

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning
of the year

129,355 118,214

BHFREANEERBERR —EMFA
Wl RS o

All contract assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered/settled within
one to two years.
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24. FEUNEAEAN LT FIE

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

20234
2023

AR®TR
RMB’000

20224F
2022
ARBTIT
RMB’000

LA EEY PN B Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
—E51E — Trade nature 534,204 448,075
—JEESME — Non-trade nature 4,604 2,768
538,808 450,843
EBYRRMEBARGELE Amounts due from joint ventures of fellow
RIE subsidiaries
—EB51nE — Trade nature 229,812 193,312
— B HHE — Non-trade nature 2,060 1,163
231,872 194,475
R RARIER A TN Amounts due from associates of ultimate
ATFIE holding company
—E5 g — Trade nature 96,617 89,888
—FEHMHE — Non-trade nature 32 32
96,649 89,920
867,329 735,238
B BHMELHEEER  Less: loss allowance for trade nature balance (836,965) (228,954)
30,364 506,284
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24. FEUREAE A L FRIE () 24,

TREIINSHE A IREZAHAET
RR R EE R B KEEALTR(ES
HE ) B ERER DT ©

R BB RARMIRE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
(Continued)

The following is the ageing analysis of amounts due from related parties (trade
nature) before impairment loss based on invoice date presented at each of the
reporting dates.

20235 20224

2023 2022

AR¥T T AREFIT

RMB'000 RMB'000

180H N Within 180 days 258,079 239,830
1812365H 181-365 days 124,783 165,478
122 1-2 years 247,644 318,342
2E3F 2-3 years 222,681 7,625
IFL Over 3 years 7,446 =
860,633 731,275

R2023F 2022512 A3 8  3EESMHH
NEKEZMBLAR  REMBARNE
B R SRR A B A B & A B3R IB A
EIRH - R EWEREREE -

720234 X 2022F12 A318 - fEURREEE A
TRIBUAREE -

REBRETREARNERERBIENY
WENPBATERERNBE(BEBE
N FRRRER) ETTHIRT S -

AEECERAEBMBREERFIHRR
EMRBMCITEFRE BT E AR ERE
&R -

The non-trade nature of amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures of
fellow subsidiaries and associate of ultimate holding company are unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable on demand as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, amounts due from related parties were
denominated in RMB.

The Group's credit limits offered to related companies are based on assessment
of their financial viability and reputation in the industry, including historical
payment records.

The Group applied simplified approach to provide the expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9 for the trade nature balance.
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25 ZRF/ENRFEESRINLEE 25. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH

IHH EQUIVALENTS
e RERITNEMESFBEROGERIAT Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions are denominated
b EHHE in the following currencies:
2023F 20224F
2023 2022
AR¥ET T ARETFTT
RMB’000 RMB000
SHE-UAARE Denominated in — RMB 283,267 236,949
HE— BT Denominated in — HKD 2,393 8,455
FHE—LAETT Denominated in — USD 1,564 2,407
287,224 247,811
W R EIIR S (MEE) Less: Restricted cash (note) (450) (491)
BRE MRS EEIER Cash and cash equivalents 286,774 247,320
MizE - 2023128318 » ZR&HIFESFEEREK Note: As at 31 December 2023, restricted cash mainly represents the maintenance fund held
EP#A M HEEE S A R #388,0007T (2022 on behalf of the residents amounting to RMB388,000 (2022: RMB428,000) and guarantee
F : AR¥428,0007T) A R FhE AR BRI deposits for the use of bank service outside mainland China amounting to RMB62,000
BITRBMELNERER - 2RAAR (2022: RMB63,000) respectively.
#62,0007T (20224F = AR563,0007T) °
FAAREENREERERTMEMES R Included in cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions of the Group is
BEBHNZRNAARBITENRITES RMB283,267,000 (2022: RMB236,949,000) of bank balances denominated in RMB placed
B AR 2832670007T (20224 : AR with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the PRC's Foreign
236,949,0007T) IifF BN BEHRTT - AR Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
EATIBRLGENEY - RIEREINE of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
BIBIEDI R INEAE - HE RNRERE currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

0] REEEAE S BERERRINERT
EERTTIRARE LI BINE o
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20234
2023

AR®TR
RMB’000

20224F
2022
AREF T
RMB'000

BB SRR Trade payables

—%=5 — Third parties 180,002 182,681

— A T (P7E27) — Related parties (note 27) 14,030 8,311

194,032 190,992

HAib T RRIE Other payables
U BB B A ml FEFT (B Consideration payables for acquisition of subsidiaries 16,17 26,941
FEstE TR Accrued staff costs 87,264 87,423
Hfth FE R I8 Other tax payables 8,843 7,665
Bz e Deposits received 83,217 74,486
REREF UK Receipt on behalf of residents 138,557 126,938
E A R ERTE A Others payables and accruals 31,380 19,468
H At B 5IRABRA Total other payables 365,432 342,921
W FERENER S Less: non-current portion
H fth e 1~ FIH Other payables (5,876) (5,077)
IR BE BT B A B FERHR B Consideration payables for acquisition of subsidiaries - (13,471)
FEMENER 5 B FE A FRIA Total other payables under non-current portion

kL] (5,876) (18,548)
ENE D Current portion 359,556 324,373
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26. B E SRR EMESFIE 26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(%)
ENESERDEEMNAEEHERR Included in trade payables were amounts due to the Group's suppliers. The
g - KREBEHABSHE » ZEHN outstanding balances were trading in nature and credit periods ranging from 30-
F302180H - IRIEHZEHE] - R2023F K& 180 days were granted. Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
2022F12 31 BIERTE 5 EE A BRI D AT trade payables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:
L
20235 20224F
2023 2022
ARBFT AR¥ETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
90HA Within 90 days 96,456 98,512
912180H 91-180 days 39,497 40,832
1812270H 181-270 days 16,921 20,509
2712365H 271-365 days 12,019 10,644
18365 H Over 365 days 29,139 20,495

194,032 190,992
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27. E{TEEALTFE 27. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
2023F 20224F
2023 2022
ARBT T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB000
FERIEA LR Amounts due to related parties
—E54E — Trade nature 14,030 8,311
—FEES5MHE — Non-trade nature 4,081 9,629
18,111 17,940
TREFIAHE B HEEE A28 The following is the ageing analysis of amounts due to related parties (trade
FERTRAE A TFIE (B S IHEE) BRE 24T - nature) based on invoice date presented the reporting date:
2023F 20224F
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
PHEA Within 90 days 3,205 3,391
912180H 91-180 days 1,766 1,168
1812270H 181-270 days 2,053 1,113
2712365H 271-365 days 2,094 1,545
B3Am365H Over 365 days 4,912 1,094
14,030 8,311
JERTRAEA TRIB AR - £ B AR The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

ZRIEE - on demand.
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A2023F
12H31H
As at

31 December
2023
AR%ET T
RMB’000

28. fHE&AE 28. LEASE LIABILITIES
TRINTAEBEREBEOFSHRE LT The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s
H: lease liabilities:

7202246
12H31H
As at

31 December
2022
ARBT T
RMB'000

SEHASRE - Total minimum lease payments:

—F R EIEf Due within one year 6,084 5,974

FE_FRHFF|H Due in the second to fifth years 6,639 10,616
12,723 16,590

HEaBEMARKMEER Future finance charges on leases liabilities (662) (1,177)

HEAEMRE Present value of leases liabilities 12,061 15,413

20234
12A31H

As at

31 December
2023
AR%ET T
RMB'000

20224
128318
As at

31 December
2022
ARBT T
RMB000

HIEHEEHIRE Present value of minimum lease payments:
—FAE|H Due within one year 5,636 5,362
F_ERFEIH Due in the second to fifth years 6,425 10,051
12,061 15,413
Vo Less:
R—F R EZH Portion due within one year included under
(IR RENEER) current liabilities (5,636) (5,362)

R—FR2| S
GIRIERBRER)

Portion due after one year included under
non-current liabilities 6,425 10,051
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28. HE&BE o) 28. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
HEFHFHE Details of the lease activities
REZE208F12A0NBILEE - AEFE] During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered into additional 8
SZEBOND (20224F : 517 ) TFE E Wk Vet (2022: 5) new lease agreements for office uses for one to five years. All leases
NERZ  FHNFE—Z2RF - FFEHELY are subjected to monthly fixed rental payment.

/,\§1—J-ﬂ .}TF_iFE._:E_ ©

NEBR AZEREL EEMEHE LRI The Group considered these leases do not have any extension or termination

RIS o options.

REZ0BFENANBIEEE  BEMW During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total cash outflows for the leases
R4 mH @5 A A R 126,765,000 7T ( 2022 are RMB26,765,000 (2022: RMB23,061,000).
F : AR#¥23,061,0007T) °
29. IEEFIEEE A S 29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
2023F 20224F
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

BEEHEEE : Deferred tax assets:

ﬁ?ﬂ HiR Balance at beginning of year 89,576 57,929
REZEFFA IR Credited to profit or loss (note 11) 216,539 31,647
RErAEMEmBERFTA Credited to the consolidated statement of

other comprehensive income 3,750 -

FR R Balance at end of year 309,865 89,576

BREHEERE : Deferred tax liabilities:

FE LR Balance at beginning of year (11,864) (13,236)

REZEFTA ) Credited to profit or loss (note 11) 1,372 1,372

FIRREER Balance at end of year (10,492) (11,864)
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

29. EIEFRIEEE,BE
FERIBEENBERGI T ¢

20235 20224F
2023 2022
AR¥T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB000
BE Assets
EEEERE Provision for loss allowance 250,526 75,885
EmemEE T ELSD Change in fair value of other financial assets 53,297 13,691
REE R R 2% E REEE Impairment loss on investment in associate 6,042 -
BRI IE A EAE Total deferred tax assets 309,865 89,576
=Fit Liabilities
EFEERMERS Excess of carrying amount of intangible asset over
AR B the tax bases (6,492) (7,864)
ROIE S F BB IR Withholding tax for undistributed profits (4,000) (4,000)
MIEBESFE Net tax liabilities (10,492) (11,864)

TEMSTHEREERMRBBEFEER
EF2008F1 A1HEELENGEFRE
EREERAREE BRI EERN
10% B9 T8 F0 56 (B B3 B4 75 {6 40 2 2 HE R 42
HN) o AR ANSE B B I AN £ [ P B B BB
REID KR 2 SRR R R - MU EE
ZE RN TBER A BRI 5 IR 2 155
TIFHRIEEREEE °

REBEBKIEF BB ARNERIERR
Al AR R B B R T R] L RIS IR &
BERTE  125% < BURTR RGBT -

AN SR8 A A A5 S DA 85 R R R AR T UK
AR HE SR T TR B 18 A R %10,963,000 7T
(2022 : AR%6,478,0007T) © LLERIE
B 18 18 72024 5F 22 20284F 1 fE i ©

The EIT Law and its implementation rules impose a withholding tax at 10%,
unless reduced by a tax treaty or arrangement, for dividends distributed by the
PRC-resident enterprises to their non-PRC-resident corporate investors for profits
earned since 1 January 2008. Since the Group controls the quantum and timing
of distribution of profits of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, deferred tax
liabilities are only provided to the extent that such profits are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

A lower 5% withholding tax rate can be applied to the immediate holding
company of the PRC subsidiaries, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, according
to the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group has unrecognised tax losses of RMB10,963,000 (2022: RMB6,478,000)
to carry forward against future taxable income. These tax losses will be expired
from 2024 to 2028.
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30. iz A 30. SHARE CAPITAL

BREENEBTHEBER R EE

No. of shares

PN
RMB000

Ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each

EE
A202251818 - 20225
128318 ~ 20351818 K

Authorised:
As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022,
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023

2023%12A31H 500,000,000 4,400
ERTRAZ Issued and fully paid:
120225128318 ~ 20235 As at 31 December 2022,

1818 %2023512A31H 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 154,110,000 1,361

31. MREERERAZMNNRS

(a)

D B S R R T 2

R AE AR R 722019456 B 18 H B BRI R
MR T HEBRESEEE R E
W o RIBEEIERT S 2 165K - AT
AIRBREENEERAL(BEASE
EEAKEARNES - B8 53R
BB - B BAA - fEE - RE
ARER)ELERE - R1TERE
BB AERT Bk A A RIERA 2 (R At
BRI R R AEITENTE
B A sE BT &2 TSR
BN BN 2 B ETAD30% ©

BB RERARE RS B EFH 104
BRBBEAE IR L EIRE - R/
B TR MEB GG BEARFER
RHEFEE - MABRERS TR AR
B B ERI0FEM ©

BT EA T 2 BREZITEES
BERUTZESE : (IFAFZK
R B BRI R P 3 H 2 B B R
ERMBZIERABTHE : (iR FZ
A& 70 BB IR A HR AT T (BB 32 P
EARBRAAEN 2 BRRERMR
ZFHIEAXWTE (i) AN BB
ZMEE °

31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Share Option Scheme granted by the Company

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution passed on 18 June 2019, a share
option scheme was conditionally adopted. Pursuant to the terms of the
share option scheme, the Company may grant options at its discretion, to
any eligible person (including directors, employees, officers of any member
of the Group, advisers, consultants, suppliers, agents and customers of
any member of the Group). The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be exercised under
the share option scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from
time to time.

No options may be granted under the share option scheme after 10 years
since the adoption. The vesting periods, exercise periods and vesting
conditions may be specified by the Company at the time of the grant, and
the options expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant.

The exercise price of the option under the share option scheme shall be
no less than the highest of (i) the official closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (i) the average of the official closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five Stock Exchange business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company.



<«

294 EIEEFEBAR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 43 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

R BB IRR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. UREEERP AR S ) 31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(a) ZAATTHNERESR(E) (a) Share Option Scheme granted by the Company (Continued)
BERCREET 2B N 2 BB IR Eh 5 a0 Details of the movement of the share options under share option scheme
T: are as follows:

SR
T TEE
(A& T5IR)
Weighted
average
exercise price
in HKD per share Number
202241 A1H As at 1 January 2022 15.7 10,050,000
FRR UL Forfeited during the year 15.7 (580,000)
M2022F12 A318 & As at 31 December 2022 and
F202351 R1 R as at 1 January 2023 15.7 9,470,000
FRye Forfeited during the year 15.7 (400,000)
R2023F12831H As at 31 December 2023 15.7 9,070,000
201978198 ARG AARAF] 0On 19 July 2019, the Company offered to grant to the directors of the
EERARNARENBARE TE Company and certain employees of the Company and its subsidiaries
ENRRER T ([2019F71AIRE |) (the “July 2019 Grant”) of 2,750,000 and 8,700,000 share options
2,750,000 17 % 8,700,000 17 2% A &) i% 2 respectively, of HKDO0.01 each in the capital of the Company. The closing
A AR TEE0.018 TRk (0 FY B AR 4 - price of the shares immediately before the date of grant was HKD15.36.
SRR B HBRIAR ) UL T (B 415.36 8,700,000 share options granted to the employees and 2,750,000 share
BTT o MR B 1 H #98,700,00017 BE A% options granted to the directors of the Company have a fair value at grant
K (7 7R X B & 4% H #92,750,000 date under the binomial model of HKD62,564,000 and HKD22,241,000,
MERENE LB BE-ENERN respectively.

T A F1E 5 Bl 462,564,000 7T &
22,241,000/ 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(a) Share Option Scheme granted by the Company (Continued)
The valuations were based on the Binomial Option Pricing Model with the
following data and assumptions:

20197 819H

19 July 2019

B

Grant

Fair value under binomial model HKD84,805,0007 7T
Closing share price at grant date HKD15.707% 7T
Exercise price HKD15.707% 7T
Annual risk free interest rate 1.87%
Expected volatility 50.86%
Expected option life 10 years®F
Expected dividend yield 1.15%

BRI E T AR DR IRER L B
ERHBHZERREBMETE - £
R A ERER R T B R TR R
TURHIA = -

“IRAHREERAD BHAGRER
B2 nVE - st EBREATEMS
ZABRAZMEBRIIRES 2 &IEMG
FHeH - BREZBERETIER
R RAIEREMAFAE - BH
B BB IIRIRE L BUREEE ©

REZ20BF12ANBILEE - &5
AR #369,000 B EMERE R
B R (20224 + AR ¥5,789,000
J0) - MEMRESREE T Al BRER
& - BEEERD XRS5 mERE
fAIEfE -

202312 A31 8 » 9,070,00017 B A%
EHEIE MR E M AT
F 178 (20224 : 5,970,00013) ©

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company's share price from the listing date to the grant date. The risk free
interest rate is equal to HKD swap rate over the exercise period at the
grant date.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the Directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Expected dividend yield are based on historical data.

In total, RMB369,000 of employee compensation expense has been
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB5,789,000) and the corresponding amount of which has been credited
to “Share option reserve”. No liabilities were recognized for the share-
based payment transactions.

As at 31 December 2023, 9,070,000 of the outstanding options granted
under the share option scheme were exercisable (2022: 5,970,000).
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31. UREEERP AR S ) 31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(a) ZAATEHWERESE (8 (a) Share Option Scheme granted by the Company (Continued)
FEE : Note:
AR A BRSPS RE (RN T ¢ Terms of share options at the reporting date were as follows:
M2A3N B RITEBREHE

Number of share
options outstanding
as at 31 December

Exercise period BRITEE
Exercise
price per share
B
HKD
202047 8198 Z202947 A 18 19/7/2020-18/7/2029 15.70 2,010,000 2,010,000
202147 198 £202947 A 18H 19/7/2021-18/7/2029 15.70 2,010,000 2,010,000
20224F7 198 £202947 A 18H 19/7/2022-18/7/2029 15.70 1,950,000 1,950,000
202347 A198 2202947 A18H 19/7/2023-18/7/2029 15.70 3,100,000 3,500,000
9,070,000 9,470,000
(b) ERARIERR D TR AERESE (b) Share option scheme granted by the ultimate holding
company
RI%201946 514 H BB M IR R Pursuant to the shareholder’s resolution passed on 14 June 2019, a post-
xR —HEHRAABERBRETE IPO share option scheme is terminated and the new share option scheme
BRI - T EREREI 820195 is conditionally adopted with effective from 14 June 1019. Pursuant to the
6 R 14 B BREG KRR - BIEFER terms of the share option scheme, the board of directors of Kaisa Holdings
AT B 265K EREERES ST may, at its discretion, grant options to any eligible person (including
BIEREREERAT(BIEEKSE directors, employees, officers of any member of Kaisa Holdings, advisers,
EREMKERRNES - EE = consultants, suppliers, agents and customers of any member of Kaisa
MBS - EEM - A HER R Holdings).

BARER)R L BRE -
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3. URELEERP TR S ) 31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(b) BRARERATEHNBERESTE () (b) Share option scheme granted by the ultimate holding

BEH - TEBRBEBIRMA REK
FEERR LRI E - MBS T
BIERIR H B HRI10FEW - Bk
RRTEIR T 2 BEREZ THRETFK
RATZ&EE « (IEREERZ K
DR B IR R P 3 h 2 B B R
EBRABZIERRTHE  (i)EREE
Bz B E R B AT A ERE X
PREXARBRMEL 2 BRAMER
PR 2 FHg IE AT E ¢ (i) ERFE
PR 2 EE ©

RN RERT 2R T 2 AR E B a5 4
T

company (Continued)

The vesting periods, exercise periods and vesting conditions may be
specified by Kaisa Holdings at the time of the grant, and the options expire
no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant. The exercise price of
the option under the share option scheme shall be no less than the highest
of (i) the official closing price of Kaisa Holdings" shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii)
the average of the official closing price of Kaisa Holdings' shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
Stock Exchange business days immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii)
the nominal value of a share of Kaisa Holdings.

Details of the movement of the share options under share option scheme
are as follows:

20235 20224
2023 2022
SRE S0
Fi917/EE FHEE
(ABTHR) (B TTIIR)

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price in HKD price in HKD
per share Number per share Number

M1A1H As at 1 January

FRRK Lapsed during the year

3.44 4,129,708 3.35 4,336,193
- - 1.45 (206,485)

3.4 4,129,708 3.44 4,129,708
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31. UREEERP AR S ) 31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(b) BRARERATEHNBERESTSE () (b) Share option scheme granted by the ultimate holding
company (Continued)

ZIEA B EEER T B MG The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate the fair
2 NTE o stEEREANTERE value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
A ERERNBREIRESE 7 &EE fair value of the share options are based on the directors” best estimate.
HSed o ENEY BERETIEE The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
Rz RRASEETA RN - assumptions.
FA2023512 A31 8 + 4,129,70817 & & As at 31 December 2023, 4,129,708 of the outstanding options granted
TR NIRRT TR AR RE ] under the share option scheme were exercisable (2022: 4,129,708).

F1T1E (20224F : 4,129,708 ) °

FGE : Note:
RIRE B EIR BB IR ST - Terms of share options at the reporting date were as follows:

BRERE

Number of share options*

Exercise period BRITEE"
Exercise
price
per share*
BT
HKD
201857 A19H £20274F7 F18H 19/7/2018-18/7/2027 3.44 825,942 825,942
201957 198 202747 A18H 19/7/2019-18/7/2027 3.44 825,942 825,942
202057 198 =202747 188 19/7/2020-18/7/2027 344 825,942 825,942
202147 A198 22027474188 19/7/2021-18/7/2027 3.44 1,651,882 1,651,882
4,129,708 4,129,708
REBREZ2023F12A31BLEFE The Group recognised a share option expense of Nil (2022: Nil) during the
RERERY AT (202F : F) ° year ended 31 December 2023.
* EIRES A RITEERREIER AR *  The number of options and exercise price was adjusted upon the ultimate holding

#20214F5 A7 8 FERC AR 8 T LA o company's completion of right issue on 7 May 2021.
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32. AT IR AT 32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
20235 20224F
2023 2022
BisE AR¥T T AREFIT
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
R B AR ZIRE Investment in subsidiaries 611,971 610,529
FEUSHT B A B FE Amount due from subsidiary 120,000 120,000
731,971 730,529
REEE Current assets
BeMReFEER Cash and cash equivalents 3,950 10,823
REBEE Current liability
AN e Other payables 2,922 3,059
REBEEZRE Net current assets 1,028 7,764
EEHAERRBAERS Total assets less current liabilities 732,999 738,293
EEFRE Net assets 732,999 738,293
s EQUITY
[N Share capital 30 1,361 1,361
ElEES) Reserves (note) 731,638 736,932
ERAEE Total equity 732,999 738,293
B HEZ 2202493 522 B #EE R IRET) Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2024.
?X% o
BEE 2 HE
Liao Chuangiang Mou Zhaohui
EFE EFE

Director Director
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32. RAT M ERRAT ) 32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
BisE Note:

The movement of the Company's reserves are as follows:

R4 1E

IR
Share
Share options Retained

REEF

premium reserve earnings

ARETR ARBTR AR®T T
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

R2021F12A31H & As at 31 December 2021 and
20224F1 A1H 1 January 2022 524,211 52,612 155,215 732,038
FEBEREEAYEE Loss and total comprehensive expenses
for the year - - (895) (895)
TR AR RELE B IR 1D Recognition of equity-settled
SRR S (H7E31(a)) share-based payment transactions
(note 31(a)) - 5,789 - 5,789
M2022512A318 & As at 31 December 2022 and
20231 A1H 1 January 2023 524,211 58,401 154,320 736,932
FEEBEBEREZEMASEE Loss and total comprehensive expenses
for the year - - (5,663) (5,663)
TERUA PR 4 E AR Recognition of equity-settled
SRR 5 (MI7E31(a)) share-based payment transactions
(note 31(a)) - 369 - 369
R2023F12A831H As at 31 December 2023 524,211 58,770 148,657 731,638
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33. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is
as follows:

HEERE EARE
Lease Dividend
liahilities [EVEL
ARET T AR®T R
RMB'000 RMB'000
R2022451 418 As at 1 January 2022 18,519 -
MERERELH Changes from financial cash flows:
FE U @i A L RE Advance from related parties = =
BERRE Dividend paid - (2,797)
TS Interest paid (770) -
EEHERE Repayment of lease liabilities (6,316) -
RERESREL BB Total changes from financial cash flow 11,433 (2,797)
HhE ) Other changes:
BIEFE Termination of leases (1,044) -
EERES Dividend declared - 2797
HEaEEMN(ME0) Increase in lease liabilities (note 36) 4,254 =
BE A (FT3E9) Finance cost (note 9) 770 _
12022128318 & As at 31 December 2022 and
2023F1 A18 1 January 2023 15413 -
MERSHRELT . Changes from financial cash flows:
e BE A 3B Advance from related parties - -
ERRE Dividend paid - -
BERFE Interest paid (673) -
EEHEEE Repayment of lease liabilities (5,922) -
BERSRELTEE Total changes from financial cash flow 8818 -
H s Other changes:
RIFHEE Termination of leases (2,694) -
THE & BN (MH7E) Increase in lease liabilities (note 36) 5,264 _
BB (HIFE9) Finance cost (note 9) 673 _
720235128318 As at 31 December 2023 12,061 -
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34, EiE
AEAE
KEBBFBA
RiRE B SHESNASEENT :

BB

Within one year

34. COMMITMENTS

Lease commitments

The Group as lessee

At the reporting date, the lease commitments for short-term leases are as
follows:

20235
2023

20224F
2022
ARBT T
RMB’000

AR®TR
RMB000

1,272 3,717

20235 K 2022512 A31H - ANEEF A
METIBESLAPBAENHEANAE =+ =
‘A -

M2023F12A318 - AEEEAHEEAE
ITEEEBAZ(RESKRAR) - 25
HEMNARRES RN RTE AT (20226F
Z)  BrftALER-

AEEAHEAA
20234 2022912 A31H - AEERE
PR REE AL HEREFRE Z R K HIE
He@zmmT -

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group leases staff quarters and offices
with a lease period of one to twelve months.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had committed to leases for staff quarters
and offices in which the leases had not yet commenced. The total future cash
outflows for these leases amounting to nil (2022: Nil) in aggregate which are
included in the table above.

The Group as lessor

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of buildings as
follows:

20234 20224F

2023 2022

AR¥T T ARBTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

TiEBiE—F Within one year 2,142 3,650
EF_FERF In the second to fifth years 1,350 246
3,492 3,896

MO R/B—ERF - WRERH K
AEEREHEFHEHERN B RAEEE
BENA BHEDIER - BOBTEBER

The lease run for an initial period of one to five years, with an option to renew
the lease and renegotiate the terms at the expiry date or at dates mutually
agreed between the Group and respective tenants. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.
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35. EALRS 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
MEM S AT E LN - ANEE R E A Except as disclosed in elsewhere, the Group entered into the following
TETHRZ ST ¢ transactions with related parties as follows:

(a) FEEHE[EHE (a) Key management compensation
2023F 20224F
2023 2022
AR%T T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEokn Directors’ fee 1,513 887
He hHEMEHREERET Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 5,618 5,688
[l=pFAn Discretionary bonuses - =
RUNETEIHER Retirement scheme contributions 862 846
AR REAE EAG(D SL NHIBASE  Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 1,230 1,894

9,223 9,315
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35. EATRS »)
(b) ERIEALHIRS

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

2023
2023

AR®BTR
RMB000

20224
2022
ARET T
RMB'000

R ESERE Provision of property management

services
REERRRHERA Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (ii) 53,258 67,604
RIZEKMBARIRASZME  Joint ventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (ii) 12,335 6,507
BRI ATIRIEGE AT Associates of the ultimate holding company (i), (ii) 5,223 4,776
R AT A K2 B PR A% Provision of pre-delivery and

consulting services
REBHRERHER A Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (ii) 75,468 92,696
RIZEMB RGBS ZME  Joint ventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (i) 43,696 80,334
BRI A RIEVEE S AT Associates of the ultimate holding company (i), (i) 10,106 30,581
REHERER Provision of community value-added

EReRR S RIRFE and smart solution services

AEENRZREHB A A Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (i) 25,126 18,918
REKBARIMALDE  Jointventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (ii) 29,753 24,977
RIRVEAR A BV & A F]  Associates of the ultimate holding company (i), (i) 9,096 5,070
HERX Lease expenses
AEBNRRMNNBAT Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (ii) 11,559 8,532
RZBATIHIESEMNE  Joint ventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (i) 314 =
ETREAMAX Staff welfare expenses
AEENRZRNMBA A Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (iii) 20 45
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35.

36.

37.

Eggkj:gé% (48)
(b) EREAEALTMRZ(E)
BeE

il MEEERBKA - M5 RERR
BRA ~ BEEBRRS RIRE R EFES
ERHAEREFIATERAEH [
At 5 =77 FT AR E) R AT RO (B AR I
TERRRUGER

(i) BABRHETEEERENBEAT
2 GhiE NR#626,0007T (20224 + AR
#1,375,00070) (EFRR R B ER) SN - Efth
FEA TR SHEMK _ETRAIEMAZAT
AEMNHAERHNFEBERS - I
BIEST ETAR RIS 14AETE THVETR
FEEM  AER/WBIIENTE
B RALE(HER) T -

(i) ZEEEATRSEK ETHRAI4AZE
FAENBERSHRFEBERS -
R - ZERHERRET ETRA
FUAZIE THHE - B3R FEF
Bl - DERSBMIFRTEEER
RAERTE - THRZERZIE—HK
PEERBEEGTRET - BAER
& TR RIS 14A KR AN EB B EE
AR o

FRERXH
AEE THHRSRARBAED -
HYRIERE RS MERT

REZE2023F 128N B ILEE - REEE]
YAEBFREEEMEEAGENETH
%) &% A AREES 264,0007T (20224F + A
R#4,25400070) - ERNAERR AR

7
s ©

HEAHRSEIR
AR AT TR B SRS
RIS B AL B A -

AEH
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Property management services income, pre-delivery and consulting services
income, smart solution services and rental expenses for car parks and office
are charged at prices and terms no less favourable than those charged to and
contracted with other third parties of the Group.

Except for related party transactions related to the provision of community
value-added services amounting to RMB626,000 (2022: RMB1,375,000) which
are exempted from disclosure, the other related party transactions constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or independent non-executive director or shareholder’s
approval (where applicable) requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These related party transactions constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
those transactions are exempt from the disclosure, reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or independent non-executive director or shareholder’s
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are
conducted on normal commercial terms or better and not secured by the assets of
the Group under Rule 14A.90.

The English translation of the name of the company established in the PRC is for
reference only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.

36. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-cash investing and financing activities
which are not reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

37.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered into certain
lease contracts in which additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
amounting to RMB5,264,000 (2022: RMB4,254,000) was recognised at the lease
commencement date.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Apart from the events disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group had no
significant events after the reporting date.
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Rk EtEEIRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HENANALEE
Year ended 31 December
019F 20005 0015 0005 ANBE
2019 2020 200 2022 2023
ARETT ARETE AR®ETE ARETT AR¥ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
s Revenue 1,261,909 1,730,149 2,666,440 1,783,883 1,794,267
BEEERY Direct operating expenses (883,498) (1,202.510) (1,877,541) (1,312,778) (1,312.920)
e Gross profit 3718411 527,639 788,899 471,107 481,347
A (818 Rlhas 58 Other (losses) and gains, net 590 (7323) 4,890 24,391 (370)
HERMSRERX Selling and marketing expenses 9172) (8,595) (13,243) (10,395) (12,590)
THRY Administrative expenses (155,850) (185,293) (245,359) (229,366) (189,859)
SREERANEE Provision for loss allowance on
ERERRE financial assets and contract assets (4.831) (10,986) (142.441) (125,372) (698,562)
" (BR) R Operating (loss)/profit 209,148 315,442 392,746 130,365 (420,034)
NG S Share of results of associates - 675 18,846 10530 6,306
BATEEERAER Change in fair value on financial assets at
SREENTEES fair value through profit or loss (2,089) (7.150) (53,549) (1.215) (143,425)
REE N A2 RERBEER Impairment loss on investment in associate - - - - (24,070)
RIEHEMB A7z Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary = 119 = = -
HERLLELEREAR Gain/{loss) on disposal of financial assets at
SRBEN/ (FE) fair value through profit or loss = 1202 159,301) = -
RIFNEZ FRER Loss on termination of an acquisition transaction - - (63.920) - -
BEWN/ (X)) FE Finance income/(expenses), net 3235 1223 228 (770) (673)
REEHA(ER) /B (Loss)/profit before income tax 210,294 312,584 135,050 138910 (581,896)
FERiHe/(FX) Income tax credit/(expenses) (43,225) 83,059) (66,929) (32,315) 144,312
ER(EE),/ R (Loss)/profit for the year 167,069 229525 68,121 106,59 (437,584)
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FAESREMEEER ) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR

LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Continued)

BENANALEE

Year ended 31 December

20195 20205 WNE 20025
2019 2020 2021 2022

ARETL  ARRTL  ARETRT  ARETR
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000

Rft2E(H%)/ b B

BN ERE

REHTEEN 7B RasH)

FE

EAVEEEEEREAR

Other comprehensive (expense)/income,
including reclassification adjustments

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value

MemAEATESE through other comprehensive income,

HBHE net of tax - - - - (11,250)
ENEMEEIE - AIEEFH  Other comprehensive expense for the year,

NERRE including reclassification adjustments = = = = (11,250)
EREMPE(EL),Mzs  Total comprehensive (expense)/income

ok for the year 167,069 229,525 68,121 106,595 (448,834)
UTATEEFAZE Total comprehensive (expense)/income

(%) WamaE for the year attributable to:
KAFEEA Owners of the Company 163,898 221,951 56,806 93,385 (461,234)
FFERES Non-controlling interests 317 1574 11315 13210 12,400

167,069 229,525 68,121 106,595 (448,834)

UT ALIEWEMST],/(B8)R  Profit/loss) for the year

2ENGHARE attributable to:
RARIEBA Owners of the Company 163,898 221,951 56,806 93,385 (449,984)
JERER Non-controlling interests 317 7574 11,315 13,210 12,400

167,069 229,525 68,121 106,595 (437,584)

ARAFEAELEER (Losses)/earnings per share attributable to

(B1E)/BRI(ABR owners of the Company (expressed

AR¥ IR in RMB per share)
K Basic 117 151 037 0.61 (2.92)
51 Diluted 117 148 0.36 061 (292)
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CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES

MM2A31H
As at 31 December

20194 20204 20214 20226 20235
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE Assets

EREEE Non-current assets 140,717 145,237 894,724 908,389 927,046
TEBEE Current assets 1,152,867 1,829,995 1,325,557 1,340,275 901,710
EEAE Total assets 1,293,584 1,975,232 2,220,281 2,248,664 1,828,756

ERREE Equity and Liahilities
b Total equity 688,848 1,263,168 1,286,930 1,396,762 939,533
FREBE Non-current liabilities 25,890 32,643 57,388 40,463 22,793
TOAE Current liabilities 578,846 659,421 875,963 811,439 866,430
BE85H Total liabilities 604,736 692,064 933,351 851,902 889,223
EEREEEE Total equity and liabilities 1,293,584 1,975,232 2,220,281 2,248,664 1,828,756
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Room 1901, 19/F, Lee Garden One
33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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